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Cayman Islands
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LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG KONG LAWS
Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Suites 3203-3207, 32/F

Edinburgh Tower, The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Hong Kong Registrars Limited
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Wanchai

Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00157

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

King's Town Bank Co., Ltd.
8F, No. 167, Dunhua N. Rd.
Taipei

Taiwan

CTBC BANK Co., Ltd.

8F, No. 168, Jingmao 2nd Road
Taipei

Taiwan

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2023

EBEEZEEER
RABRMELET
BREZEEEHR
EBPREFREFR 155
EMEISRBANE3NE
3203E3207%

FERDBEETRE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

E%&ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ a7
EEBFBELERA

Et

BT

SEANBE183H

AR L
174171271716 F
EHER

BERBERZBR AT
R 5% 00157

FEERRIT
ERBLBEERTERLTA
%:

EJ:j( EF‘ 15):'

FURBERBRITROBRAF

Py
=S

&dt
FbL 1675781

HEEEERRITROGRLAA

Py
=/S

L\it
B — PR1685R 81E



Corporate Information

NEER

(As at 22 February 2024 (“the Latest Practicable Date"))
R-Z-mME-A-+ R REBEETEED)

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Branch, Jingansi Sub-branch
1465 Beijing Road (W)

Shanghai

The PRC

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Branch, Zhijiang Sub-branch
377 West Zhijiang Road

Shanghai

The PRC

CTBC BANK Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Branch

27F Shanghai World Financial Center
100 Central Avenue

Shanghai

The PRC

WEBSITE

www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite

HERITRHOERAF
MmO THEEET
AR

£E

1t = A& 146557

RBIRITRHOERAF
EEmATIETREXT
H

5

IE)TFaRE3779%

FEEEHERITROBRAE
EBSTT

+

i hil

42 K38 10058
EEIRBRE B L 27F

4t

www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite_c

SEIFER BAREMNEARLT



(B RAx B7ASKE

NATURAL BEAUTY







Financial Highlights

LR

Selected Financial Data BEEERE “T-NF —E-TF —T-—F T —EC=

HK$'000 FET FBREE HMBREE HREE  HHEE  HEREE
(except per share data) (FRREIERIN FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023
Revenue WA 438413 410,673 487,810 335,880 336,015
Cost of sales HEKA 172,843 170,248 181,812 146,750 135,670
Gross profit EF 265,570 240425 305,998 189,130 200,345
Operating profit/(loss) EER/ (B518) 38,331 10,641 50,480 (19,205) (3,738)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF/ (FB) 21,908 7,758 35,264 (30,472) (15,111)
Dividends & A 0 6,006 6,006 0 (]
Earning/(loss) Per Share (EPS) —basic SRR &FI,/(B518) - £ $0.0110 $0.0039 $0.0176 (500152)  ($0.0075)
Dividend Per Share (DPS) AR $0 $0.0030 $0.0030 50 $0
Total assets BEE 757,400 831,972 930,444 872,309 872,434
Net asset value BEFE 567,793 611,230 657,918 597,462 574,524
Return on Equity (ROE) P& AN [2] 5 3.9% 13% 5.4% (5.1%) (2.6%)
Return on Assets (ROA) EEDR 29% 0.9% 38% (3.5%) (1.7%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

Revenue of the Group in 2023 increased by 0.04% to HK$336.0 million
compared to HK$335.9 million in 2022. The increase was mainly due to a
increase of HK$4.7 million in product sales, such segment contributed to 98.8%
of the Group's total revenue.

Revenue in the PRC market increased by 7.1% from HK$222.0 million in 2022 to
HK$237.8 million in 2023. Revenue in the Taiwan market in 2023 decreased by
17.8% to HK$84.7 million as compared to HK$103.1 million in 2022.

Revenue from other regions, including Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau,
increased by 25.4% from HK$10.8 million in 2022 to HK$13.5 million in 2023.
Contribution from these regions remained at an insignificant level of just 4.0%
of the Group's revenue.

The Group's overall gross profit margin increased from 56.3% in 2022 to 59.6%
in 2023 mainly due to: (1) the changes in revenue mix of products bundling
in the PRC market; and (2) Cost management efficiency has been enhanced,
accompanied by an improvement in production efficiency. Both production
capacity and labor efficiency are showing an upward trend.

Bt 7% 2] 8
B
AEFZEEHEH T = —FH335900,000/8
JCHEHN0.04%FE = F = = F #9336,000,0008 7T ©
ﬁﬁ%] 0 E B B E G iE & 1% 04,700,000
C R MO AR S E B SRR 98.8% ©

FREREMSCEEFBR _S 8
222,000,000 T M7 1% 2 —F = = F 1
237,800,000/87C : fEMZ 2 EX¥BABR-F
ZZ4FHY103,100,00088 TR A 17 8% E T ==
£ #984,700,00078 7T °

H iR (RIEES - B R RORF) 2 4

FEILHN25.4% + A =T = = 210,800,000 7T
WHINE T = =4 213,500,000/ 70 ° Z 5 i
BEAEEZEEE BRI ERFENY - EhAE
B FEEH4.0% ©

REBECEBERENERA_T -1
563%ijju:l:f7f_¢m596% IEEEEA'

ﬁl ’ )SZ EX$ i@xﬁ($ﬁﬁﬂm’+ S JZ$7T
BRR® - ERRMARI2RETBY -

Revenue by activities REBED 2 EXER 2023 2022 Changes
—E=-= —EF-— B E
HK$’000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
FHET %  TAT % FET %
Products E 331,943 98.8% 327,291 97.4% 4,652 1.4%
Services AR 7% 4,072 1.2% 8,589 2.6% 4,517) (52.6%)
Total BEt 336,015 100.0% 335,880 100.0% 135 0.04%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Products

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range of
products, including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products, health
supplements and make-up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and
beauty apparatus. Product sales are the Group's key revenue source and
primarily generated from franchised spas, online and other sales platforms, self-
owned spas and concessionary counters at department stores. Product sales
in 2023 amounted to HK$331.9 million, or 98.8% of the Group's total revenue,
representing an increase of HKS$4.7 million or by 1.4% when compared to
product sales of HK$327.3 million in 2022. The increase in product sales was
mainly driven by the increase in revenue in such segment in the PRC market by
9.4% to HK$234.3 million in 2023 as compared to HK$214.2 million in 2022 and
by the decrease in revenue in such segment in the Taiwan market by 17.8% to
HK$84.7 million in 2023 as compared to HK$103.1 million in 2022.

Services
Service income is derived from our self-owned spas’ services, medical
cosmetology services, training and other services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its self-
owned spas. The Group's strategy is to establish self-owned spas as model
outlets in strategic locations to stimulate franchisees to join in. As at 31
December 2023, the Group has two self-owned spas in the PRC and two self-
owned spas in Malaysia.
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Bt % 151 B ()

EfR
REBFZUBRZ I MBRERBEEES
Em-  EAMBHER BRRSE RS
EEABZBEERRERER - ERHEEAL
EETZWARR  BXERBEMBKES
D EERNEMEETS  BELENREFR DL
FESEAFEE B =FE v ERMER
#£331,900,00078 7T (3 1h A S B 42 YL A 98.8%)
ROTF - -F 7 EMEEEE327,300,000%
JCIE HN4,700,00078 7030 1.4% © EmmIHEEINE
EHR S =FZoBRPEKETNS 2
BEIE A FRIH 2 214,200,000/ TTIE A19.4%
2223430000078 TTA KR B ETHBREFREZ
103,100,00078 JTIRL 4> 17.8% 2 84,700,000/ 7T FiT
ﬁ o
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IR ~ Bl R E AR o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Services (Continued)

The Group does not share any service income generated from spas run by
franchisees under its current franchise arrangements. In 2023, service income
decreased by 53.3% to HK$4.0 million as compared to HK$8.6 million in 2022.

Bt % 151 B ()

PR 7% (&)

BRITMBLE R - AEB TG INER
EIRBER LTS 2 A RERE - RZT =
=F - RERER =T = = F 28,600,000/5 7T
S 4253.3% % 4,000,000 7T °

Service income R W 2023 2022 Changes
—E-= —E-— o)
HK$’000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FET % TET %  FAT %
Training income = 5 2= 1 0.03% 4 0.1% 3) (75.0%)
Spa/Medical cosmetology KBRS, BEER
service income PR 75 U 2 3,910  96.02% 8,585 99.9% (4,675) (54.5%)
Others HAh 161 3.95% = = 161 100.0%
Total st 4,072 100.0% 8,589 100.0% (4,517) (52.6%)
The PRC Market B K pE T I5
The Group's revenue in the PRC market increased by 7.1% in 2023 to HK$237.8 AREBRAE AETH v @ ¥ ER _T - -
million as compared with HK$222.0 million in 2022. The increase was mainly due £ 7. 222,000,000/8 TLIE IN7.1%E —E - =F 7

to an increase in the sales of products. Gross margin on product sales increased
from 55.9% in 2022 to 60.9% in 2023. The key reasons to the aforementioned
changes are: (1) the changes in revenue mix of products bundling in the PRC
market; and (2) Cost management efficiency has been enhanced, accompanied
by an improvement in production efficiency. Both production capacity and
labor efficiency are showing an upward trend.

Taiwan Market

The Group's revenue in the Taiwan market decreased by 17.8% from HKS$103.1
million in 2022 to HK$84.7 million in 2023. The decrease in sales in the Taiwan
market was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue from product sales
through TV shopping, E-commerce and telemarketing channels in the Taiwan
market. Gross profit margin on product sales decreased from 63.6% in 2022 to
53.5% in 2023. The key reason of the decrease in gross margin is the changes in
business channels, which in turn changed the revenue mix.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B 75 [ JEE ()
Taiwan Market (Continued) =% ik 16)

Benefited from the operation strategy of Eastern Media International BHREHEBEBRMNER AR (RHEER]) 2
Corporation (“EMIC") Group, the Group's products were sold through the ~ ZERES - AAEERBBRBRE OO HR
distribution channels of EMIC. In 2023, sales revenue from TV shopping, KiHE - R-_ZT-_=F  4ETEHENERE
E-commerce and telemarketing channels in the Taiwan market contributed ¥ « BF 15 « BiETTIHBEE RIS WAL
HK$20.3 million to the Group, accounting for 23.9% of the product sales in 7N 52 B & [} 3£ 20,300,00058 7T © 16 & E it & &

Taiwan. o dE B RE 2 23.9% ©
Revenue by
geographical region Rt B o 2 E R 2023 2022 Changes
—g-= T EEp
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 %
FET FET FET %

PRC B K BE
Products Em 234,254 214,244 20,010 9.3%
Services AR 7% 3,496 7,801 (4,305) (55.2%)
PRC Total PN 237,750 222,045 15,705 7.1%
Taiwan = |
Products Em 84,746 103,053 (18,307) (17.8%)
Services AR 7% = = = =
Taiwan Total Y-t 84,746 103,053 (18,307) (17.8%)
Others Hith
Products Em 12,943 9,994 2,949 29.5%
Services AR 7% 576 788 212) (26.9%)
Others Total Hangst 13,519 10,782 2,737 25.4%

—ECCEFR AREEVUNHERAR 15
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other income and other gains

Other income and other gains decreased by 37.3 % from HK$12.6 million in
2022 to HK$7.9 million in 2023. Other income and other gains in 2023 mainly
comprised rental income from properties and equipment, government grants
and interest income of HK$2.8 million, HK$0.5 million and HKS$1.5 million
respectively.

Selling and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group’s revenue
increased to 42.3% in 2023 compared with 41.5% in 2022. The distribution and
selling expenses increased by HK$2.9 million from HK$139.3 million in 2022 to
HK$142.2 million in 2023. Staff costs in relation to distribution work decreased
by HK$6.8 million to HK$66.5 million in 2023 from HK$73.3 million in 2022. Other
key expenses included advertising expenses of HK$19.6 million, depreciation
and amortisation charges of HK$12.1 million, transportation charges of
HKS$7.8 million, legal and professional fees of HK$12.9 million, travelling and
entertainment charges of HK$7.8 million and rental expenses of HK$3.9 million
in 2023.

Total administrative expenses decreased by HKS$2.6 million, to HK$66.0 million in
2023 as compared to HK$68.6 million in 2022. Administrative expenses mainly
comprised staff costs and retirement benefits (including directors’ emoluments)
of HK$27.8 million, legal and professional fees of HK$9.2 million, depreciation
and amortisation charges of HK$9.5 million, research and development
expenses of HK$3.5 million and office and utility expense HKS$6.7 million in 2023.

Other expenses and other losses
Other expenses and other losses decreased by HK$0.4 million, from HK$2.5
million in 2022 to HK$2.1 million in 2023.

Loss before tax

Taking into account of the fact that pre-tax profit margin increased to -3.5% in
2023 from -7.0% in 2022 in the Group, the loss before tax was approximately
HK$23.5 million in 2022 as compared to the loss before tax of HK$11.9 million in
2023.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation expenses decreased to HK$3.2 million in 2023 as compared to HK$6.9
million in 2022. The effective tax rates of the Group in 2022 and 2023 were
29.4% and 27.3% respectively.

Loss for the year
The Group's net loss was approximately HK$15.1 million in 2023 as compared
to the net loss of approximately HK$30.5 million in 2022.

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2023 was approximately HK$21.7
million (HK$11.6 million in 2022). As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$158.7 million (HK$160.6 million as
at 31 December 2022) with approximately HK$171.8 million of external bank
borrowings (HK$119.9 million as at 31 December 2022).

In terms of gearing, the Group's gearing ratios (defined as total bank borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equity) in 2022 and 2023 were 20.1% and 29.9%
respectively. Current ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by
current liabilities) as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 were 1.46
times and 1.21 times respectively. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities, other than those disclosed in its consolidated
financial statements and the notes thereto. With the cash and bank balances in
hand, the Group's liquidity position remains strong to meet its working capital
requirements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's secured bank borrowings with maturities
falling due within one year, in the second to fifth years without repayment on
demand clause and in the second to fifth years with repayment on demand
clause were HK$33.5 million (2022: HK$30.5 million), HK$3.5 million (2022:
HK$6.0 million) and HK$134.9 million (2022: HK$83.4 million) respectively, and
therefore the Group’s net cash (exclude time deposits with maturities of over
three months but less than one year) amounted to HK$-13.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$40.7 million). These bank borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and New Taiwan Dollars (“NTD") at floating
rates during the year. The Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk
via interest rate swap.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's secured short-term and long-term bank
borrowings were secured by certain freehold land, buildings and right-of-
use assets related to leasehold land, with carrying amounts of HK$96.2 million
(HK$92.4 million as at 31 December 2022).

Share Award Schemes

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 25 May 2022.
The board of directors (the “Board”) has adopted two share award schemes,
namely Scheme | and Scheme Il (together, the “Share Award Schemes”) on
25 May 2022 (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose and objective of Scheme
I are: (i) to recognise the contributions by certain Eligible Participants who
are connected person(s) of the Company and to closely align executive
interests with the growth and financial achievements of the Group; and (ii)
to provide a performance-driven long-term incentive award to motivate and
retain key senior management. The purpose and objective of Scheme Il are:
(i) to recognise the contributions by certain Eligible Participants who are not
connected person(s) of the Company and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and development of the
Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group.

The Share Award Schemes shall be valid and effective for a term of ten years
commencing from the Adoption Date. Since the Adoption Date and up to 31
December 2023, no share award was granted under the Share Award Schemes.

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
Most of the Group’s revenues are denominated in RMB and NTD as its
operations are mainly located in the PRC and Taiwan. As at 31 December 2023,
approximately 46.8% (58.1% as at 31 December 2022) of the Group's bank
balances and cash was denominated in RMB, while approximately 40.7% (37.9%
as at 31 December 2022) was denominated in NTD. The remaining 12.5% (4.0%
as at 31 December 2022) was denominated in United States Dollars, Hong Kong
Dollars and Malaysian Ringgit. The Group continues to adopt a conservative
approach in its foreign exchange exposure management. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group reviews
its foreign exchange risks periodically and uses derivative financial instruments
to hedge against such risks when necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Distribution channels

For revenue by sales channel, the Group achieved HK$294.5 million sales from
franchised/self-owned spas, medical cosmetology centers and counters in
2023 which increased by HK$4.1 million as compared to the figure in 2022
(2022: HK$290.4 million), representing 87.7% of the Group's total revenue (2022:

86.5%).

For sales from E-commerce, TV shopping and telemarketing channels, the
Group achieved HK$41.5 million sales which decreased by HK$3.9 million
compared to 2022 (2022: HK$45.4 million), representing 12.3% of the Group’s

total revenue (2022: 13.5%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Distribution channels (Continued)

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters in department stores. As at
31 December 2023, there were 1,554 spas or point of sales and 8 concessionary
counters. Of these, 1,550 were franchised spas or point of sales, while 4 spas
and 8 concessionary counters were directly operated and owned by the Group.
No concessionary counters were entrusted to third-party operators. Franchised
spas or point of sales are owned by the franchisees who are responsible for the
capital investment in these spas. They are obliged to use only Natural Beauty
or “NB" products in their spas. A wide array of services including hydrotherapy,
facial treatment, body care and skin care analysis, are provided in all spas,
while skin care analysis is widely available at the concessionary counters in
department stores.

Group-wide, a total of 213 (2022: 140) new stores were opened and 68 (2022:
76) stores were closed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Research and Development

Natural Beauty is dedicated to continuous research and development. Our
R&D team consists of experienced researchers with diverse expertise across
various fields, collaborating with leading beauty and biotechnology laboratories
both domestically and globally. Recently, we have successfully introduced
the bestselling Yam Collagen Firming Series from Shanghai to the Taiwanese
market. Additionally, we have forged a partnership with Perfect Crop, a beauty
and fashion technology company, to launch an online skin analysis tool that
integrates Al and AR technologies. This latest development enables consumers
to effortlessly understand their skin condition through cutting-edge technology.
[t has been implemented in our franchises in Taiwan, enabling them to offer
customers Al-based analysis and 50x magnification skin monitoring. We are
planning to comprehensively expand these advancements in the future.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Research and Development (Continued)

Our R&D efforts are primarily focused on product upgrades and new technology
research. The recent introduction of the Yam Collagen Firming Series from
Shanghai represents a significant breakthrough, featuring a unique blend
of triple collagen and collagen peptides, enriched with the Natural Beauty-
endorsed Mexican wild yam extract. This formula specifically designed for pre-
mature aging women, aiming to boost estrogen levels and stimulate collagen
production. This has not only earned widespread praise from our franchisees in
Taiwan but also highlighted our continuous efforts in research, development,
and innovation.

Natural Beauty demonstrates formidable strength in intellectual property,
holding several patents, including three stem cell patents and plant extraction
patents. We actively engage in academia-industry cooperation, participate in
peak academia-industry conferences, and continue to deepen our involvement
in the intellectual property domain. Looking forward, we will further strengthen
global collaborations, leveraging intellectual property to achieve greater
breakthroughs and accomplishments. Natural Beauty is dedicated to enhancing
global research collaboration and pursuing technological innovation. In
the future, we will reinforce our cooperation with laboratories worldwide,
continually innovate, and provide more high-quality beauty solutions. We
aim to achieve more breakthroughs in technology application and product
upgrades, maintain our competitive edge, and realize sustained growth.

Products

In 2023, the NB company was distributed in Zhangjiajie and Changsha, Hunan
province, issued two large-scale product launch conferences. During this year,
a total of 16skus new products and 14skus upgrade products were launched,
enriching the selection of natural beauty stores, to enhance the image of
natural beauty products. These products contributed a total of HK$31.9 million
(RMB29.3 million). The performance of NB-1 series was HK$68.9 million (RMB63.3
million). NB-1 series is still the main force of natural beauty skincare products
and has been upgraded from the end of 2022 to the 2023, NB-1 series once
again consolidate the status of products.

At the product launch event in Changsha, Hunan province, two new
instruments, the Italian EGO and the Italian ICOONE, were introduced at the
same time. They made a segmentation of the store-based SPA courses for
the franchise stores, accurately capturing the needs of middle-and high-end
consumers, in order to enhance the store hot and topic degree, and then
enhance the store consumption opportunities. The two devices generated a
total of HK$5.6 million (RMB5.2 million) and are expected to lead to even more
impressive market performance in the coming year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 479 employees, of whom
342 were based in the PRC, 119 in Taiwan and 18 in other countries and
regions. Total remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2023 was
approximately HK$105.2 million (HK$124.7 million in 2022), including retirement
benefit related costs of HK$9.0 million (HK$10.8 million in 2022). Competitive
remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable
staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis.

Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure of HK$69.3 million in 2023 was mainly related
to the new plant construction in the PRC amounting to HK$48.8 million,
opening of new stores, renovation and equipment amounting to HK$10.6
million.

Right-of-use Assets and Lease Liability

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards No. 16 — Lease (HKFRS 16) came
into effect on 1 January 2019. At the commencement date, the Group should
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The related right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are mainly located in the PRC and Taiwan. As at 31
December 2023, the Group's right-of-use assets were HK$30.7 million (HK$41.1
million as at 31 December 2022) and its lease liabilities were HK$14.5 million
(HK$23.6 million as at 31 December 2022). In 2023, depreciation charges of
right-of-use assets amounted to HK$5.7 million and interest charges of lease
liabilities amounted to HK$ 1.1 million.

Future plans for material investments or capital assets

Save as otherwise disclosed this annual report, there were no material
investments or additions of capital assets authorised by the Board at the date of
this annual report.
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OUTLOOK

The progress of our business growth was slow due to the sluggish economic
recovery and the evident conservative consumption for the year of 2023. The
economic development has shifted to the domestic market due to the slow
recovery after the pandemic and global turbulence and complex international
relations. We shall continue to leverage on the resources of Eastern International
Co., Ltd. to develop the chain franchising, TV shopping, e-commerce, and
telemarketing and others, maintain the multi-channel strategy and multi-brand
strategy, thoroughly implement differentiated product distribution under
different brands in different pipelines to enable the diversification of the sales
of products layers and expand the incremental market. Meanwhile, the new
combination of existing stores fission with the leading commission agents will
turbo up the expansion of franchise stores, our core business.

Key Market Development Strategies

= Taiwan:

= PRC:

Natural Beauty continues the multi-channel sale. With immunity
concerns of health food becoming the focus of consumption
in the post-pandemic era, we have focused on the marketing
of health food to generate income for franchise stores. The
short inventory days of health supplements can easily generate
income. Taiwan market achieved results in 2023, becoming
a new growth point for the franchise channel. At the same
time, we introduce high-end daily necessities and cross-border
e-commerce for franchise stores to achieve sales product
diversification, piling up more revenue per store, innovative
profit models, and a compound store model, which combined
beauty, health and lifestyle products, to assist franchised stores
in systematic management.

In addition to the diversified product supply under the current
multi-brand strategy supply of beauty, health care and high-
end daily necessities, B2B team is also established to select and
co-work with several leading commission agents to expand
franchise stores, accelerating the expansion pace of franchise
store. In 2024, with a multi-pronged approach, the incumbent
on-line bidding team will continue the data management to
gain more prospects, the existing franchised stores fission to
grow the number of stores, and the additional leading agents
to expand stores sharply together. Apart from the planned
fast growing of franchise network, Taiwan and PRC markets
will introduce the “compound store” model at the same time,
forming a win-win situation of “diversified sales and diversified
revenue” for the franchised stores.

Looking ahead to the year of 2024, the innovative “compound store” model
will be launched, and the new product map of beauty, health food, high-end
daily necessities and a plug all franchise stores to cross-border e-commerce will
generate more income, bring Natural Beauty business up to a new level against
the slow economic recovery.
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The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company firmly believes that strong corporate governance is the
foundation to delivering the corporate objective of maximizing return to
its stakeholders over the long term. The core of the governance structure is
an effective and qualified Board which is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance, sound internal control and effective risk
management to enhance transparency, accountability, integrity and honesty, in
order to earn the confidence from our shareholders and other stakeholders and
to safeguard the interests of shareholders.

The Board had adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”)
(available on the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/
irwebsite) which gives guidance on how corporate governance principles are
applied to the Company.

Compliance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code

The Board is of the view that throughout the year 2023, the Company
applied the principles and complied with all the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix C1
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The following
summarizes the Company’s corporate governance practices and explains
deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to

continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility
for its leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting
the Company’s success by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
Directors take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and regularly
reviews the contribution required from a Director to perform his responsibilities
to the Company and whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing
them that are commensurate with their role and the Board responsibilities.
The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) so that
there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of three Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information”
on page 2 of this Annual Report. Composition of the Board, by category of
Directors, including names of the Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors are disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles” of this Annual Report. The
relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the respective Director's
biography under the section "Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles” of
this Annual Report. Save as disclosed above, there are no relationships (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)) between
the Board members and in particular, between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

Board Meetings

The Board meets four times during a year as a minimum and, during 2023,
it met six times. It involves active participation, either in person or through
electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ attendance and training records EEgwm

Details of composition of each of the Board Committees, the Directors’  #Z5 H fF % 12 3|50 4%

attendance records at the meetings of the Board and each of the Board #Hz-—ZE—-=®+-"A=+—HIFER " &
Committees and the general meetings as well as the Directors' training records A& EZ 8@ YK B4AKEES @ GUESERE

=1

during the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows: Feexk SEAZEELEeeINREREZ

= = AKX =B /A rK

HERE - UREEHIEEHAT :

Remuneration Audit  Nomination Annual  Extraordinary
Committee Committee Committee Board General General Training
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Course
¥WZEE BHRZEE REZEE Ezg RREE RR%H 3
EE R EE EE - p¥- RE
Executive Directors HTES
Dr. LFI Chien EEET 0N na 44 6/6 ”n 11" Notesaandb
TEm fizrakb
M. LIN Chia-Wei HERERE 0N n/a 44 6/6 1 01 Note a
TER fizra
Ms. LIN Yen-Ling® MHER T L? n/a n/a n/a a /a n/a n/a
TEA TEm TER TEH TEA TER TER
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. LU Yu-Min® BEmRLt? a a a 6/6 01 0/1 Note a
TEA TEm TER fizta
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WREL T n/a 6/6 n/a 6/6 01 01 Notesaandb
TaA T fizrakb
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang RFEEE n/a n/a n/a 6/6 01 0/1  Notesaandb
TER @R TER fizrakb
Independent Non-executive BV FHTES
Directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BmELE 0, 6/6 44 6/6 " 11" Notesaandb
fizrakb
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien ey 0 46 24 46 1 1 Note a
fizta
Mr, LIN Tsalm-Hsiang WEREE W0, 6/6 44 6/6 0/1 11" Notesaandb
Miztakb
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ attendance and training records (Continued)

Those Directors who were not able to attend the Board and Committee
meetings in person could appoint another Director as their respective proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf. For indication purpose, attendance by proxy
was not counted as attendance by the Director himself/herself in the above
summary.

Notes:

(1 No Executive Committee meeting was held during the year ended 31 December
2023.

) Ms. LU Yu-Min resigned as a Non-executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee with effect from 1 January 2024. Six Board meetings were
held before 1 January 2024.

(3) Ms. LIN Yen-Ling was appointed as an Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee with effect from 1 January 2024.

(a) Attended training course that was organised by the Company and/or received
training materials provided by the Company.

(b) Attended other continuous professional development training course(s) that was/
were not organised by the Company and/or studied relevant reading materials.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular Board
meetings at least 14 days in advance. Directors are consulted to include
any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings. For other Board and
Committee meetings, notice is generally given pursuant to the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) and the respective Charters of the
Committees.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ attendance and training records (Continued)

The agenda of Board meetings or Committee meetings and the accompanying
Board papers are sent to all Directors at least three days before each Board
meeting or Committee meeting for their review and to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company so
as to enable them to make informed decisions.

All Directors have access to the Chief Legal Counsel and the Company Secretary
who are responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and
advising the Board on corporate governance and compliance matters.

Draft minutes will be sent to Directors and Board Committees members
within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days) after each meeting and
are available for review and inspection by Directors and Board Committee
members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent professional advice at
the Company’s expenses.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held for any material
transaction with connected persons. Independent Non-executive Directors
who, and whose associates, have no material interest in the transaction should
be present at such meeting.

The Company’s Articles provide for voting and quorum requirements
conforming with the requirements of the CG Code.

Securities transactions made by Directors and relevant
employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that the required
standard of the Model Code has been complied with throughout the year
ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the “Company’s Guidelines”),
which are equally stringent as the Model Code, in respect of securities
transactions by relevant employees of the Company who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company pursuant to
code provision C.1.3. No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code or
the Company’s Guidelines by the Company’s relevant employees has been
noted after making reasonable enquiry.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company, and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees,
leads and provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group's operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the

Company are delegated to management team.

There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board decision,
including:

- long-term objectives and strategies;

- extension of Group activities into new business areas;

- preliminary announcements of interim and annual results;
- material banking facilities;

- material acquisitions and disposals;

- material connected transactions; and

- annual internal controls assessment.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. LEI Chien serves as the Chairperson while Ms. LIN Yen-Ling is the Chief
Executive Officer. The roles of the Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer are
separate. The Chairperson focuses on Group strategic and Board issues while
the Chief Executive Officer has the overall responsibility for operations and
development.

The Chairperson has a clear responsibility to provide the whole Board with all
information relevant to the discharge of the Board's responsibilities.

Code provision C.2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at least annually hold
meetings with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of other directors. The Chairperson met the independent non-executive
Directors once without the presence of other Directors during the year ended
31 December 2023.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board, at all times, met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors, representing at least one-third of
the Board with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each of our independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. We consider all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board Independence Evaluation

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism
during the year which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure a
strong independent element on the Board, which allows the Board effectively
exercises independent judgment to better safequard Shareholders’ interests.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board reviewed the

implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts or letters of appointment, including Executive
and Non-executive Directors, usually serve one-year term, and are subject to re-
election pursuant to the Articles and the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director appointed shall
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election. Ms. LIN Yen-Ling will
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM") according to
the Articles.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
at each AGM. Dr. LEI Chien, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. YANG Shih-Chien will
retire by rotation according to the Articles and all of them, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director who has served on the Board for more than nine years
will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. We
will state in the related circular and notice of the AGM the reason why we
consider the Independent Non-executive Director is still independent and our
recommendation to shareholders to vote in favour of the re-election of such
Independent Non-executive Director. During the year ended 31 December
2023, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, an existing Independent Non-executive Director,
has served on the Board for more than nine years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

Position(s) held with the other members of the Group

On 1 January 2024:

(i) Ms. LU Yu-Min resigned as a Non-executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company; and

(i) Ms. LIN Yen-Ling was appointed as an Executive Director and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company.

Other major appointments

Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang, a Non-executive director of the Company, was
appointed as an independent director of Taiwan Shin Kong Commercial Bank
Co., Ltd. with effect from 29 June 2023.

Approval of Director’s service contract

On 29 December 2023, the Board approved all the service contracts and letter
of appointment entered into between the Company and each of the Directors
(except Ms. LU Yu-Min) for a term of one year commencing on 1 January 2024.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuing professional development for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company organised one
Directors' training on International Financial Reporting Standards.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the Directors and
members of senior management, which set out (a) the principal continuing
obligations of the Company and the Directors as a result of the listing of
the securities of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;
and (b) the systems and procedures that the Company, its Directors and
senior management should follow in order to ensure compliance with such
obligations.

On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive formal and
tailored orientation training to explain the responsibilities and duties, and other
regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors updated on the
Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

During the year 2023, all Independent Non-executive Directors are members of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Some Non-executive Directors are members of the Executive Committee and
the Audit Committee.

The attendance records of individual Directors for all Board and Board
Committee meetings in 2023 are set out under “Directors’ Attendance and
Training Records” on page 26 of this Annual Report.
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EEERME

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board Committees (namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee) that undertake work on its behalf with specific terms of reference
setting out their roles and functions available at the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board after each
meeting, which address their work and findings.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long,
Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang, Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. LIN Chia-Wei respectively.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not limited
to, determining the policy for the nomination of Directors, reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and
making recommendations to the Board on selection of candidates for
directorships pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy. It also assesses the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors. Full terms of reference
(Nomination Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

The Company provided sufficient resources for the Nomination Committee to
perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination Committee could seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses, to perform its
duties.

The Nomination Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
December 2023. During the year 2023, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the Board Diversity Policy and the Director Nomination Policy and conducted
an annual review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
pursuant to the CG Guidelines and code provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee also assessed the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and no material
matter was identified during the year.

Save as the above, the Nomination Committee has performed corporate

governance functions set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy aiming at setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board and having an
appropriate proportion of Directors who have direct experience in our key
markets, with different ethnic background, of both genders, reflecting our
business strategy. All appointment will be based on merit.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that the Board maintains
a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels
and will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, experience, expertise,
qualifications, skills and knowledge as well as independence of the Board. The
Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives
that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is also committed to
ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all levels (from the Board
downwards) are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates
are considered.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five male Directors and three
female Directors. The Nomination Committee considered that the Board had
achieved gender diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse mix
appropriate for the business of the Company and will review the composition
and diversity of the Board on a regular basis to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s workforce (including senior management)
is approximately 74.3% female, among which, approximately 43.8% of the
Group's senior management roles are held by women. The Board is satisfied
that the Company has achieved gender diversity in its workforce. The Company
intends that it shall continue to maintain at least one-third of the Groups
management roles be held by women.
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TEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy

The Company has also adopted a Director Nomination Policy aiming at setting
out the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of Directors
of the Company and ensuring the Board has a balance of skills, experiences
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company as well as the Board
continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

A summary of the director nomination policy is set out below:

Criteria adopted for selection and recommendation for directorship

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following criteria

should be considered:
Character and integrity.
Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are
relevant to the Company's business and corporate strategy.
Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board.
Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in accordance
with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines set out in

the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms
of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender diversity.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

Criteria adopted for selection and recommendation for directorship (Continued)
Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s business

and succession plan and where applicable, may be adopted and/or
amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to
time for nomination of directors and succession planning.

Nomination process

(@)  Appointment of new director

U]

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate,
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a
director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of director at the general meeting.
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TEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZREE®
Nomination Committee (Continued) REBEZEG W)

Director Nomination Policy (Continued) EERBBEREE)
Nomination process (Continued) EEEF (B

(b)  Re-election of Director at general meeting b) MRBREASLEERES

(M) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
director and the level of participation and performance on the
Board.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also review
and determine whether the retiring director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of director at the general meeting.

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate as
director at the general meeting, the relevant information of the candidate
will be disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.
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Audit Committee EREEY
As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee comprises three  RAFHRAH - BREZ B S H =2 B IEHTT
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Non-executive Director, namely & S M — & 3EMITE R © D Bl ABRIBE L

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman), Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien 4 (EJE) »

ME&?&E it 5 A MMOREE

and Ms. LIN Shu-Hua, respectively. The majority of the Audit Committee R+ - BEEE @A HKE BB IFRNITE
members are Independent Non-executive Directors, with Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang % * EAFRME Eﬁ'ﬁiﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁ HEZEERUAR
possessing the appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and &t RABNFHERER -

related financial management expertise.

O x

Draft minutes are sent to members of the Audit Committee within 14 days  &#%a

CERURRBRAERRE THOARNERERE

of each meeting. None of the Audit Committee members is a partner of the ZEE &K E - %Vi,\ ghEEAKER
external auditors of the Company. RNAEINEZ RIS A
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference; to seek any information it requires from any
employee and all employees are directed to cooperate with any request
made by the Audit Committee; to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice; and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant
experience and expertise to their meetings if necessary. Sufficient resources are
provided to the Audit Committee to discharge its duty.

Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) explaining the Audit
Committee’s role and authority are available on the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange's
website.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year ended 31 December
2023. During the year 2023, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual results
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 and interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2023 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures and arrangements for employees to raise concerns
about possible improprieties. During the year 2023, the Audit Committee
also met with the external auditors twice to discuss audit issues, before
recommending to the Board for approval of publication of results.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to take
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the Board regarding
the selection and re-appointment of external auditors.

There was a whistle-blowing policy which forms part of the employee’s
handbook.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. YANG Shih-
Chien, Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. LIN Chia-Wei respectively.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining the
policy and structure for the remuneration of Executive Directors, assessing
performance of Executive Directors and approving the terms of Executive
Directors’ service contracts, and determining or making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration packages of individual Executive
and Non-executive Directors and senior management.

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of Directors and senior
management, the Remuneration Committee ensures that no director or any of
his/her associates was involved in determining his or her own remuneration. It
also ensures that remuneration levels should be sufficient to attract and retain
directors to run the Company successfully.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Full terms of reference (Remuneration
Committee Charter) are available on the Company's website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2023. During the year 2023, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and recommended the approval of the proposed bonus awards
for all employees and senior management; reviewed and recommended the
adjustments of the Directors’ fee of Ms. LU Yu-Min, reviewed and recommended
the renewal of Director’s service contracts and letters of appointment of
all Directors (except Ms. LU Yu-Min). With reference to the Remuneration
Committee Charter, the Remuneration Committee members had carefully
reviewed and considered the contribution of each of the Directors to the
Group, the Directors’ experience in the beauty and spa business and the market
rate paid by comparable companies.

Independent professional advice would be sought to supplement internal
resources where appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

When determining the remuneration basis and structure of the Directors and
Executives, the following factors will be taken into account: (1) contributions
to the Group, (2) experience in related businesses of the Group, (3) respective
responsibilities and performance, (4) market average level, and (5) the overall
financial status of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Executive Committee

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee described above, details of the Executive Committee are set out
below.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Executive Committee comprises three
Executive Directors and two Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. LEI Chien
(Chairperson), Mr. LIN Chia-Wei, Ms. LIN Yen-Ling, Ms. LIN Shu-Hua and Mr.
CHEN Shou-Huang respectively.

Executive Committee is primarily responsible for formulating business policies,
making decisions on key business issues and policies, facilitating the approval
of certain corporate actions and exercising the powers and authority delegated
by the Board in respect of matters arising between regularly scheduled Board
meetings, and to review financial, marketing, retail, operation and other
business performance, as well as to review and approve annual budget and key
performance indicators ("KPIs") and track performance.

No Executive Committee meeting was held during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company'’s
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation by
key business processes and office functions, including project management,
manufacturing and procurement, financial reporting, human resources and
information technology.

The Company'’s risk management and internal control systems have been
developed with the following principles, features and processes:

The Company's risk management and internal control systems are designed
with the principles to enhance the operation effectiveness, reduce loss in assets,
ensure the reliability of financial reports and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations.

The systems cover the factors including, among others, environment control,
risk assessment, activity control, information and communication, and internal
surveillance.

The Company organises personnel and seeks assistance from external
professional advisory institutions to establish the risk management and
internal control systems which are subject to the review by the Company's
management team and approval by the Audit Committee and the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to identify
risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and various aspects
including key operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance and
information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm
that control policies are properly complied with by each department.

The management regularly reviews the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and compliance with best practices. In
coordination with department heads, the management assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans, and monitors the risk
management progress, and reports to the Audit Committee on all findings and
the effectiveness of the systems. The Chief Audit Consultant also reports to the
Audit Committee on the implementation of internal control.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The Internal Audit Department was established in early 2016 to enhance risk
management and internal control systems in a timely manner. The Internal
Audit Department is responsible for performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Internal Audit Department examines key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provides the effectiveness
of its implementation and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.

The Company has adopted a whistle-blowing policy to facilitate its employees
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy to strictly prohibits any
form of fraud or bribery and to observe and uphold high standards of business
integrity, honesty, fairness, impartiality and transparency in all its business
dealings at all times.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board conducted a review of
the risk management and internal control systems covering the year 2023 and
considered that such systems of the Group had been implemented effectively
and adequately. The Board's review will also consider the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a general
guide to the Company's Directors, officers, senior management and Relevant
Employees in handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

The Board confirms that it has received confirmation from the management
that the Company’s risk management and internal control systems are effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management provided explanation and information to the Board to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before the Board for approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic plans,
updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans and actions. The
Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records and preparing
accounts for each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting policies;

made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and

prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is included in
the Independent Auditor’s Report set out on pages 89 to 97.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly updates giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the accounts, and
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
to annual and interim reports, other announcements in relation to inside
information and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
report to regulators as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Group’s auditors,
in respect of audit services amounted to HK$2,159,000 and non-audit services
of review of interim results amounted to HK$200,000 which were reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year 2023, Ms. MOK Ming Wai of Tricor Services Limited, is an
external service provider and was engaged by the Company as its Company
Secretary. Her main contact person at the Company is Ms. Jenny ZHU (Chief
Legal Counsel).

Ms. Mok has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year 2023.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

The procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting
can be found in Article 73 of the Articles of the Company, which is available at
the Company's website (www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite) and
the Stock Exchange's website.

Documents relating to the Procedures for Nomination of Directors by Shareholders
and the Shareholder Communication Policy are available for download from the
Company's website (www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite).

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the Company's website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite to provide comprehensive

information related to shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders
may send their enquiries or requests to the following:

Address: 958 Changping Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China
Fax: +86 21 5256-0455
Email: ir@nblife.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

During the year 2023, the Company has amended and restated its
Memorandum and Articles of Association on 25 May 2023. Details of the
amendments are set out in the Company’s circular dated 12 April 2023.

An up-to-date version of the Company's Articles is also available on the
Company's website (www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite) and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for good investor relations and investor understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees or their
respective delegates are requested to attend the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has held one AGM and one extraordinary general meeting
("EGM") on 25 May 2023 and 23 August 2023 respectively since the issuance of
the last annual report.

Code provision F.2.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board of a listed issuer
should attend the AGM. The chairman of the board should also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees
to attend. In their absence, the chairman of the board should invite another
member of the committee or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

On the AGM held on 25 May 2023, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien, the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, were unable to attend the Company’s AGM. The
Board arranged for Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, who is well versed in all business activities and operations of the
Group, to attend the 2023 AGM to respond to shareholders’ questions.

On the EGM held on 23 August 2023, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long attended and
chaired the EGM. Dr. LEI Chien, an Executive Director, and Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang,
an Independent Non-executive Director, also attended the meeting.

The Company has optimized the planning and procedures of general meetings
by, for example, giving adequate time to all Directors to accommodate their
work arrangements and providing all necessary support for their presence and
participation at general meetings, such that the Chairperson of the Board and
all Directors will be able to attend future general meetings of the Company.

The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the 2023 AGM at least
20 clear business days before the meeting and for the EGM at least 10 clear
business days before the meeting.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor relations section
of the Company’ s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Voting by poll

Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of the 2023 AGM
and EGM. These procedures were also explained at the commencement of
2023 AGM and EGM.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited, was appointed as scrutineer during the 2023 AGM and EGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the 2023 AGM and EGM
and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that of the Company at
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

Shareholders Communication Policy

48

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy. The policy

aims to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and
to allow shareholders and the investment community to engage actively in the
Company. The Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders' Communication Policy and the results were satisfactory.

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining an on-

going dialogue with its shareholders as follows:

(a)

Shareholders’ enquiries
Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company's share registrar.
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(b)  Corporate Communication (b) AE)EE
"Corporate Communication” refers to any document issued or to be [RABAIEARE DL ENE
issued by the Company for the information or action of holders of any of A BEEARRN)EETG@RER
its securities, including, but not limited to, the directors’ report and annual FERBERZHMBE - RHHRE -
accounts together with a copy of the auditor's report, interim report, gEBE  BERRRRZAEERRES M
notice of meeting, circular and proxy form. Corporate communication HEZHNRIMITE - MREBER A
will be provided to Shareholders in plain language and in both English AIBALLZRF BREERS - UFIE
and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding. IR T BRBAAR o

(0  Corporate Website (0 AEHRIL
A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the Company’s KRB (www.ir-cloud.com/
website at www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite. Information hongkong/00157/irwebsite_c) & [ & &
on the Company’s website is updated on a regular basis. BBEIEE - AQRML EEEHMHERTE

HASE 3 -
(d)  Shareholders’ Meetings d BEXS

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf
if they are unable to attend the meetings. Board members, in particular,
either the chairmen or deputy chairmen of Board committees or their
delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditors
will attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy setting out the principle and
guidelines to be applied by the Company in respect of declaration, payment or
distribution of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles
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CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. LEI CHIEN (ALIAS JOANNA LEI)

Aged 65, is the Chairperson of the Company. She was appointed as the
Company's Executive Director on 26 October 2018. She is also the chairperson
of Executive Committee and a member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. She is currently a director of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Malaysia and Hong Kong. Dr. Lei is currently an executive director
of Pacific Construction Co,, Limited* (K ¥ 2% B R A 7)), a company
listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE: 2506). Dr. Lei is also serving on the
board of a number of non-profit organisations such as the Chinese
Childrenhome and Shelter Association* (12 & 2h #1857 ZB1ZHE) and
the National Women’s League* (2 R Bl fi7 22565 &). She has over 30 years
of experience in the media and broadcasting sector and corporate
management. Dr. Lei began her career as a media and development scholar at
the University of Pennsylvania from 1984 to 1987. From 1987 to 1996, she
worked in the media conglomerate Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. in New York. She
was eventually promoted to vice president and was one of the highest ranking
Asians in mainstream American media. From 1997 to 2002, Dr. Lei was an
investment partner of Baring Communication Equity Asia in Singapore. Her
investment activities included equity investment, debt restructuring, and
merger and acquisitions in telecom, media, and information technology
industries across the Asia Pacific region excluding Japan. In 2000, Dr. Lei
returned to Taiwan and from 2003 to 2004, she was an executive director of
Eastern Broadcasting Company Co., Ltd ("EBC"). She has been elected as senator
at the Legislative Yuan of the Republic of China in 2005 and until 2008. Dr. Lei
was appointed as the chairman of a government-owned enterprise, Kinmen
Kaoliang Liquor Co,, Limited* (& FTBEME Z M 1D B R A 7)) in 2008. From
2009 to 2017, Dr. Lei has worked again in EBC as a board director. Dr. Lei served
three consecutive terms as an independent director in the IBF Financial
Holdings Co, Ltd. previously known as Waterland Financial Holding Co., Ltd.*
(R E & RIERR A F]), a company listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE:
2889). Dr. Lei obtained a bachelor of arts degree in foreign languages and
literature from the National Taiwan University in June 1980. She has received a
master of arts degree in June 1983 and a doctor of philosophy in June 1996
from the University of Pennsylvania (Philadelphia).

*  For identification purpose only.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LIN CHIA-WEI

Aged 52, was appointed as the Company's Executive Director on 1 January
2023. He is also a member of Executive Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is currently the vice
general manager of the Investment Department of Eastern Media International
Corporation. Mr. Lin has over 20 years’ experience in investment bank and
private fund. He is a Certified Securities and Investment Analyst of the Republic
of China. He also holds a master degree in Business Administration from
Tunghai University.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER:

MS. LIN YEN-LING

Aged 60, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) on 26 October 2018 and the Company’s Executive
Director on 1 January 2024. She is also a member of Executive Committee of the
Company. She is currently the directors of some of the Company’s subsidiaries.
She graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from National Chengchi University
in Taiwan. Ms. Lin has been working in Eastern Group since May 2018 as Chief
Marketing & Sales Officer of Eastern Media International Corp., Chief Marketing
Officer of Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd., and Chief Sales Officer of
ETtoday Co., Ltd. Prior to the appointment as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, Ms. Lin was the general manager of Lintas China Group from 2016 to
2017. From 1997 to 2016, Ms. Lin had worked at Eastern Broadcasting Co., Ltd.
as Chief Operation and Sales Officer and Havas Worldwide as Executive Vice
President of Greater China and Chief Executive Officer of Taiwan.

*  For identification purpose only.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. LIN SHU-HUA

Aged 61, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 16
November 2018. She is also a member of both Executive Committee and Audit
Committee of the Company. She is currently also a director of some of the
Company’s subsidiaries. Ms. Lin is currently an independent director of Cashbox
Partyworld Co., Ltd. (TWSE: 8359), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. Ms. Lin was the vice president of the finance department of Eastern
Home Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd.* GRFR1E 5 MR D BR A F]) between
January 2005 and September 2008. In April 2016, Ms. Lin re-joined the same
company, holding the same position since then. After obtaining her
qualification as a Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China in August
1996, Ms. Lin has since then worked at the finance department of various
companies, including Eastern Broadcasting Co,, Ltd* (RZR BB ERHD BR
‘A |]), Eastern Multimedia Co., Ltd.* (RAREE BT H B R A7) and
Sensen Home Shopping Co., Ltd.* G&#x B B D B R A 7)), accumulating
over 20 years of experience in total. Ms. Lin graduated from the Department of
Accounting at National Chung Hsing University in 1987 and obtained an
executive master degree of business administration from the National Taiwan
University in 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN SHOU-HUANG

Aged 71, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 25
January 2019. He is also a member of Executive Committee of the Company.
He obtained a master degree in law from the Chinese Culture University and
subsequently obtained a doctoral degree in law from the National Taiwan
Ocean University. He is currently an independent director of Shin Kong Bank
Co,, Ltd. He used to serve as a part-time professor in the Institute of Marine Law
of the National Taiwan Ocean University, parliamentary vice minister of Taiwan
Ministry of Justice, the prosecutor of the Supreme Court Prosecutor’s Office,
the Chief Prosecutor of the High Court of Taiwan and the Head Prosecutor
of various districts in Taiwan. During the period when he served as the Chief
Prosecutor of the High Court, he was appointed as the president of Taiwan
After-Care Association and the Association for Victims Support.

*  For identification purposes only

EEREREEERE

FHITES :

MORELZ L

615% ' RZZE—N\F+—A+BEZTAR
RAEIFEHITESE - FHABEARRWITEEE R
EZZBERE - KERNMARNARETH B
NANEE - MEZLTREEEELEZI ST LN
NREECERMDBR A E (TWSE: 8359) 2B
VEE MEZLIR_ZTRF—AZ-_ZTZTN
FRLAETRFESERGBRARMISEE
BE - RZZT—RFWA - MrLEHMAR
—XAR AUETR B - ML EtR—A
AARFENARGHPERBRFMEETAIERE -
BRERABIZHMIFEEPFITIE - BIEEHRER
FERMDEAR LA - RAEBREROBERA
RAIRBRRBERMDERRT @ XEFEE0FL
B MZETR—ANEtFEERBEAEAZ
i E IR T AFESBEYEERES
REBABEIMERELTSA -

FHITESE :

FBRFIESKLE

7R RZE—NF—AZ+HEBEZRTAR
NEFERITES - BIMAARANITEES
B o HEERPB UL AREEEZEMER - B
JFEBBETBMN - HERBE L /&G FRES
FEEREMEMES BB I8 - REAEERB
BEFNEEBRITZELES - RICELET
Bl B8 F KRB E AR RAMBRERE -
BEEBBEBAR  Ra R RBRE
B AEREERRRERERUAREESE
HENEEFREESHG - EEeESSER
SREREZRAME  BRAREIMBIEASE
FAEREZ  MEZEZALEEEAREHSE
ERo

TEIFER BRARENNEAERDLT

51




52

Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

EEREREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG (ALIAS STEVE CHEN)

Aged 75, was appointed as the Company's Independent Non-executive Director
on 1 February 2010. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. He obtained his Bachelor degree of Economics from
National Chung Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry
of Economic Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held various
positions and represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan in various
countries and was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in Belgium from
1974 t0 1979. Mr. Chen was the Board Chairman of the Institute for Information
Industry in Taiwan from 2008 to 2009. Mr. Chen is currently the Board Chairman
of SINOCON Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan and the vice president
of Cross-Strait CEO Summit. He is currently an executive director of Asia Cement
(China) Holdings Corporation (HKSE: 743), listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He is also a director of Asia Cement Corporation (TWSE: 1102) and
Tatung Company (TWSE: 2371); a managing director and independent director
of Formosa Chemicals and Fibre Corporation (TWSE: 1326); an independent
director of INVENTEC CORPORATION (TWSE: 2356), which are listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange. Starting from 31 January 2020, he is the Board
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Petrochemical Development
Corporation, Ltd. (TWSE: 1314), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and ceased
to be an independent director and Chief Executive Officer on 31 January 2020
and 27 March 2023 respectively. From June 2011 until 10 June 2014, he was
an independent director of E-Ton Solar Tech. Co., Ltd. (GTSM: 3452), listed on
the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He was a director of GINTECH ENERGY
CORPORATION (TWSE: 3514), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, until 30
October 2017. He was an independent director of Walsin Lihwa Corporation
(TWSE: 1605), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, until 29 May 2020. He was
the Board Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of Powerchip Technology
Corporation (GTSM: 5346), listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market, until 12
August 2020. He was the chairman of the board of BES Engineering Corporation
(TWSE: 2515), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, until 16 September 2022.
He was a director of HannStar Board Corporation (TWSE: 5469), listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, until 15 June 2023. He was also a director of Bank of
Panhsin in Taiwan, Teknowledge Development Corporation and Powerchip
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corp.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. LIN TSALM-HSIANG (ALIAS WILLIAM LIN)

Aged 68, was appointed as the Company's Independent Non-executive Director
on 1 January 2023. He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He is currently an independent director of CAPITAL Securities
Corporation (TWSE: 6005) and Eastern Media International Corporation (TWSE:
2614), which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. Mr. Lin is also a professor
in the Department of Banking & Finance of Tamkang University and the
Honorary Chairman of the Financial Engineering Association of Taiwan. Mr. Lin
used to serve as a director of TWSE and a member of Securities Listing Review
Committee. He also served as an independent director of Global Lighting
Technologies Inc. (TWSE: 4935) and a director of various listed companies in
Taiwan. Mr. Lin has been working at various universities as an adjunct professor
in Asia. He obtained a doctor degree of Finance from Boston University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. YANG SHIH-CHIEN

Aged 79, was appointed as the Company’s Independent Non-executive
Director on 16 November 2018. He is also the Chairman of Nomination
Committee and a member of both Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He is currently the chairman and chief executive officer of Global
Strategic Investment Management Inc, a board director of Tecom Co.,, Ltd.
(TWSE: 2321), Yageo Corporation (TWSE: 2327) and Mitac Inc. (formerly listed
TWSE: 8122), an independent director of TOPKEY Corporation (TWSE: 4536)
and WUS Printed Circuit Co., Ltd (TWSE: 2316). He was a board director of TECO
Electric and Machinery Co., Ltd (TWSE: 1504) from June 2018 to July 2021 and
an independent director of Tong Hsing Electronic Industries, Ltd. (TWSE: 6217)
from June 2019 to June 2022. Mr. Yang was a national policy advisor to the
President of the Republic of China between January 2009 and May 2016. Prior
to that, Mr. Yang already worked in the government of the Republic of China for
more than 28 years, such as the director of the Planning and Evaluation Division
of the National Science Council, Senior Vice Minister of the Ministry of Economic
Affairs and Minister of State. Mr. Yang also worked as a research engineer at the
Chung Shan Institute of Science & Technology between November 1973 and
January 1978. Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering
from the National Taiwan University in June 1967. Mr. Yang subsequently
obtained a master and a doctor degree in electrical engineering from
Northwestern University in June 1971 and August 1973 respectively.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

EEREREEERE

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

MS. LIN YEN-LING

Aged 60, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 26
October 2018. She is currently also a director of some of the Company's
subsidiaries. She graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from National
Chengchi University in Taiwan. Ms. Lin has been working in Eastern Group since
May 2018 as Chief Marketing & Sales Officer of Eastern Media International
Corp., Chief Marketing Officer of Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd.,, and
Chief Sales Officer of ETtoday Co., Ltd. Prior to this appointment, Ms. Lin was the
general manager of Lintas China Group from 2016 to 2017. From 1997 to 2016,
Ms. Lin had worked at Eastern Broadcasting Co,, Ltd. as Chief Operation and
Sales Officer and Havas Worldwide as Executive Vice President of Greater China
and Chief Executive Officer of Taiwan.

COMPANY SECRETARY:

Ms. MOK Ming Wai

Ms. Mok has been appointed as a company secretary of the Company since
August 2022. Ms. Mok is currently the Head of Listed Corporate Services of
Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”). Ms. Mok has over 25 years of experience in
professional and internal company secretarial work. Ms. Mok was admitted
as a fellow of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom in December 2011.
(Note: The Company has engaged Tricor as external service provider and
appointed Ms. Mok as the Company’s company secretary since 15 August
2022)
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The Directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in (a) manufacturing and sales of a range of products including skin
care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products, health supplements and make-
up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and beauty apparatus and (b)
provision of skin treatments, beauty and spa services, medical cosmetology
services, skin care consulting and beauty training. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the section headed “Management discussion and analysis” for
the discussion of business review of the Group’s businesses for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Management of Major Risks

Since the Group operates in a highly dynamic and competitive landscape,
continuous and effective risk management is vital for sustainable business
operation. Some major risks currently being managed are:

Product Competitiveness

Facing increasingly fierce competition in the industry, it is particularly important
to maintain brand and product competitiveness. The Group will continue to
invest, actively develop new product lines and promote the diversification of
the customer base in order to pursue greater development.

Inventory management
Inventory management and control plays a significant role in the Company’s
liquidity since bloated inventories will tie up unnecessary funds.

Online Threats

Online business is the current hot spot in the market. Since 2019, the Group
introduced Korean brands to open its self-owned online business in the
mainland. In the future, in the face of fierce competition in the online business,
the Group will continue to interact with customers through a diversified
channel strategy and provide services to customers of different consumption
and age levels.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Donations for charity

The Group made donations for charity to a total amount of HK$58,000 in year
2023.

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no material breach of, or non-
compliance, with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationship with employees

Competitive remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and
motivate capable staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to their training
and development. Professional training courses are offered to beauticians
employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

Relationship with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders
The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no material and
significant disputes between the Group and its suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner, the Group endeavors to comply with the applicable environmental
laws and regulations and to adopt effective measures to ensure the efficient
usage of resources, energy conservation and waste reduction. Such initiatives
include the recycling of used papers, the adoption of energy saving measures.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had not been subject to
any fines or other penalties due to any non-compliance with health, safety or
environmental regulations.

For details of the Company’s environment policy and performance,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of the Company for the year 2023, which will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company

(www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite) under the section of

“"Announcements” in due course.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 98.

No interim dividend (2022: Nil) was paid to the shareholders during the year. At
the Board meeting held on 22 February 2024, the Directors did not recommend
the payment of any final dividend (2022: Nil). Details of the dividends are set out
in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, about 5.7% and 10.6% of the Group's revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services were attributable to the Group's largest
customer and the 5 largest customers combined.

During the year, about 16.3% of the Group’s total purchases (instrument) was
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier, and about 27.1% of the Group's
total purchases was attributable to the Group's 5 largest suppliers combined. To
the best knowledge of the Directors after making all reasonable enquiries, no
Director, close associate of each Director, or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) has any interest in the suppliers and/or
customers mentioned above.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2023 were fair valued
by an independent firm of professional property valuers. The fair value loss on
investment properties amounting to HK$5,764,000 has been recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the year and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 and for the previous four financial years are set
out on page 8 of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the publishing date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Dr. LEI Chien (alias Joanna LEI)
Mr. LIN Chia-Wei
Ms. LIN Yen-Ling
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2024)

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang
Ms. LU Yu-Min (alias Vicky LU)
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (alias Steve CHEN)

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien

Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang (alias William LIN)

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting. Pursuant to this article, Ms. LIN Yen-Ling,
the Director appointed by the Board after the holding of the last AGM on 25
May 2023, will hold office until the forthcoming AGM.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s Articles, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting. Dr. LEI Chien, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
and Mr. YANG Shih-Chien shall retire by rotation pursuant this article.

All the above-mentioned Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

Ms. LU Yu-Min resigned as an Non-executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company on 1 January 2024 due to the expiry of
service contract and her intention to focus on personal matters.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any

proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings and
withdraw if appropriate.
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CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD COMMITTEES FEREEERS
The Chairperson of the Board and the members of each of the committees of FAREBEARESZTIHEH  EESTER
the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were: RARIETELZEGZKENT ¢

Chairperson *E

Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson of the Board)) EEELEFSEE)
Members of Audit Committee: EREEBHE !
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman) BRI [ 5L A2 (/)
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua MOREL +

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien oy e

Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang MEFE LA
Members of Remuneration Committee: FMZEERE
Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang (Chairman) MEFEEE(EE)
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BRI P2 2 A&

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien A S A

Dr. LEI Chien EfFELT

Mr. LIN Chia-Wei MREFTE
Members of Executive Committee: BITEEERE !
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson) EEEE(ERE)

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua MOREL L

Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BRPIR A&

Mr. LIN Chia-Wei MREFTE

Ms. LIN Yen-Ling (appointed with effect from 1 January 2024)
Ms. LU Yu-Min (resigned with effect from 1 January 2024)

MLt —_E-_NE—A—AEET)
FEmERAZ+(R—Z - ME—H— A& T)

Members of Nomination Committee: REEEERE :
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (Chairman) et A (F /)
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PR3 P2 2 A

Dr. LEI Chien EEEL

Mr. LIN Chia-Wei MRELE

Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang MEREE
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CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
The compositions of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company as well
as the Chairperson of the Company as of date of this report are set out below:

Eﬁ&ﬁ%iﬁ

(&)

TRIFJNBEAREETERY - ARAERZ
ZBg wHZEE - %ﬂ TZEERRAEER
;\Z%HBZ}\,E\LA&ZIK’A AIEE

Board Committees

Exz8e

Audit Remuneration Executive Nomination

Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board of Directors EZeNE ERZEE FMzeSe BITEES REZES
Executive Directors BITES
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson of the Board) EEELEFZEE) - M C M
Mr. LIN Chia-Wei MREEE - M M M
Ms. LIN Yen-Ling MR Lt = = M =
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WREL T M = M =
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BRFIE L% = = M =
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTEE
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRI £ & C M S M
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien HERELE M M S C
Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang MEFLE M C = M
Notes: B5E -
C Chairman/Chairperson of the relevant Board committees C EREELZEENEE
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHEFEZEENKE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company,
the Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders were
approximately HK$15,547,000 which represents the share premium and
retained profits of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors has entered into a
Director's service contract with the Company for an initial term of one year from
1 January 2024, which may be terminated by either party giving to the other
party at least one month’s notice in writing. The Director’s service contract of
Ms. LU Yu-Min was not renewed.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of one year from 1 January
2024, which may be terminated by either party giving to the other party at least
one month notice’s in writing.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has any unexpired service contract or letter
of appointment which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year 2023.

Remuneration of Directors, chief executives and

senior management

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and chief executives on a named
basis and the senior management by band, are set out in notes 15 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Permitted indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, every Director shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as known to any Directors, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or any of their close associates had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to
be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 347 of the SFO and the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Report
EEEWMESE

BEERBEHN®
EBUIERITEETCHARAREILEER - B
—EoNFE—-A—HEVF AR —F  A[hT
M—FBEBRMEFEHEL—@AZE@MBA
F AR AL o

B EXIWEEESN - AR EBAE EF] A
PRAIR—FERRMNHE(—REEMERIN) T
AR\ 2 RIETRBRTE & KRB K °

EEEAK

R_FB_=FF  ARABMET LS RER
R/ SHOTARREBN 2 BREMEEIH
MEXR  TEAEANEFE -

EE - FETHAERSREBEAEN
i
BEENFTBIHRAEBURIEA NS REEA
BIEEHHEBEZ D NFIEBE LRI ERERE
TERERMFE15K%16 °

BERFNREE
REARBDAUNRE - NRARBREZEA
BNARNBESREBEETHEMEEHNITHE
BRI AR MR EREHIBRZA
BRA B X BRREE-

ADFBSARE 2 EF VoMY DR
EBEEHETRNAROERBERR -

EERFETBRAEREZRSG
s

RIZBE-=F+-"A=+—8  stEREEAN
Mo BEEEXNARAAEBITRABRFET
MEZHEARARRNEREZE(EER
FHH R EEEAIEXVED) B - FERERR D X
BEHF  BEIWREEEREEFESLEK
BIEXVEE 78D EBR A E AN B REE R FTHY
B AR (BREBEZSHFLBEKRINEH
BN HEWEEREBEENERRAR)
BB R IRIEE S R EGRIEI21EAR
RIATHEMELMERN AR - RIEE
F R B ER G FE 34716 MZESTRIZEME AR
A M A TR SR B o

TEIFER BRARENNEAERDLT

61




62

Directors’ Report
EESWESE

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 13 May 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme whereby the
Board of Directors can grant options for the subscription of the Company’s
shares to any full-time employee of the Group, the chief executive, executive or
non-executive director of the Group at the time when a share option is granted
to such person as determined by the Board at as a performance incentive and/
or reward for their continued and improved service with the Group and by
enhancing eligible participants’ contribution to the Group, in order to advance
the interests of the Company and its shareholders and such other persons. The
share option scheme of the Company expired on 12 May 2021.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company’s share option scheme has
lapsed. During the year ended 31 December 2023, no share option was granted,
cancelled or lapsed under the share option scheme.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the New Scheme
was nil.

SHARE AWARDS

The Company
Particulars of the Company’s share awards schemes are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 25 May 2022, the Company adopted two share award schemes, namely
Scheme | and Scheme Il (together, the “Share Award Schemes"). The purpose
and objective of Scheme | are: (i) to recognise the contributions by certain
Eligible Participants who are connected person(s) of the Company and to
closely align executive interests with the growth and financial achievements of
the Group; and (i) to provide a performance-driven long-term incentive award
to motivate and retain key senior management.

The purpose and objective of Scheme Il are: (i) to recognise the contributions by
certain Eligible Participants who are not connected person(s) of the Company
and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.
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SHARE AWARDS (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the share award schemes, the Board shall not make
any further award of Awarded Shares by allotment and issuance of new Shares
which will result in (i) the aggregate number of the Shares awarded by the
Board under the share award schemes and the share option scheme exceeding
ten per cent (10%) of the relevant class of shares of the Company from time to
time; and (ii) the aggregate number of new Shares awarded by the Board under
the scheme exceeding three per cent (3%) of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (including the beginning and the end
of), a maximum number of 60,006,027 shares of the Company are available for
grant pursuant to the terms of the share award schemes.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board pursuant
to the Share Award Schemes Rules, each of the Share Award Schemes shall be
valid and effective for a term of ten (10) years commencing on the Adoption
Date, and lapsing on 25 May 2032.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no share award was granted under
the Share Award Schemes.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme and share award schemes disclosed above,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2023.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, within the knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons or corporations had or deemed or taken to have an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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EESWESE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

FTERR®
AEDATRGREBRO TR

AAREREEIEBITZEBR

Approximate

percentage of
Number of the issued
ordinary shares  share capital of
Name of substantial shareholder Notes Nature of interest beneficially held the Company
BERE GELEE®T
TERRHE BB Mzt REEME EBEREE REASHOBEIL
Eastern Media International Corporation 1 Interest of controlled companies 600,630,280(L) 30.00%
("EMIC")
RARBEERAAD BR QA SRl NGIEY F
(IREREIRR )
Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A. 1 Beneficial owner 600,630,280(L) 30.00%
("FESS")
EREFMEEZH)RHBERAA EREAA
(ERERMED
CHAO Shih-Heng 2 Interest of controlled companies 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
il SR LN £
Good Titanic Limited 2 Interest of controlled companies 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
SR VNCID £
Insbro Holdings Limited 2 Beneficial owner 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
RIEER AR AR BEREAA
TSAI Yen-Yu 3 Interest of controlled companies 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
EEE REH R EER
LEE Ming-Ta 4 Interest of spouse 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
FEE foiBrEss
Next Focus Holdings Limited 5  Beneficial owner/Interest of 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
controlled companies
ERBEEAN/ ZEH AR
Starsign International Limited 5 Interest of controlled companies 292,958,524(L) 14.63%
AL NGIE F
Standard Cosmos Limited 5  Beneficial Owner/Interest of 292,958,524(L) 14.63%

L :Long position

controlled companies

EnBEAA/ZEHQRAER

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2023



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

m

Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of EMIC. As
such, the shares of the Company in which Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A.
is interested were attributable to EMIC.

Insbro Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Good Titanic Limited, which is in
turn owned as to 100% by Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng. Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng is the sole
director of each of Insbro Holdings Limited and Good Titanic Limited. As such,
the shares of the Company in which Insbro Holdings Limited is interested were
attributable to Good Titanic Limited and Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng.

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited. Next Focus
Holdings Limited is therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and
interest of 445,315,083 shares of the Company owned by Next Focus Holdings
Limited was attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu.

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to be
interested in the 445,315,083 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-
Yu pursuant to the SFO.

Next Focus Holdings Limited directly holds 152,356,559 shares of the Company
and directly owns 100% of Starsign International Limited. Starsign International
Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos Limited, which, in turn, is
the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa Group
Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such, the 290,618,524 shares of
the Company collectively held by Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa
Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited and 2,340,000 shares of the
Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited (totalling 292,958,524 shares
of the Company) were attributable to Standard Cosmos Limited and Starsign
International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors are not aware of
any other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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EEERES
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE R

The Group had the following continuing connected transactions with — NEB @R E A THET NI EREESS

connected persons:

1. ET New Media Cooperation Agreement 1. RAFEBSEHR
On 12 May 2023, Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited (B R-ZZE-_=FFA+-H BAEZELEY
RFEEMEHERRD B R A F)) (‘Taiwan NB”), an indirect wholly-owned BB OERAR(RARZEEZEN
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a cooperation agreement (the BAR [EBAE])ERRIIEET
"ET New Media Cooperation Agreement”) with ET New Media Holding R AR AR ([REFERE]DIIYE
Limited Company (R ZRET I 8215 AR A% 19 B PR 2 7)) ('ET New Media”). e ((RARFTEE A ERED -
The major terms of the ET New Media Cooperation Agreement are HARMERAERE T E G

summarised as follows:

Subject matter

EEEHE

Pricing

EfE

T

Taiwan NB agreed to engage ET New Media to produce, publish and broadcast
advertisements and to organise media events, with a view to enhance the image of the
“Natural Beauty” brand and to raise public awareness on the brand (the “Advertising
Service”).

In accordance with the framework as agreed under the ET New Media Cooperation
Agreement, Taiwan NB may from time to time instruct ET New Media to carry out
advertising projects. The parties shall separately agree on the timing, manner and fees of
each specific advertising project at the appropriate time.
REEBAXRAEZRRFNRKEBEUE HHLERRSEBERLY 5 HERST
[BAEImBER RIEImERARMEE (BERED -

REXRFRNREBAFHRZHTIER  aBEAXATHERRRNRERRESHA
B - AT HER D RIBESERERERB 2HRE - TARER -

For each advertising project, ET New Media shall offer at least 50% discount to the list
price of such advertising project (being prices ET New Media offer to its clients which are
Independent Third Parties) to be specified on the supplementary contracts to be entered
between the parties regarding each advertising project.

REEESHEAMS  RRNMEBKEZESHBENEERRAFERALBLE
=ARPREZERBREEDS0%ITH - ZFRERRNTHH 2HRSEEEEE ]
MEHFAKIPETA o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

1. ET New Media Cooperation Agreement (Continued)

Directors’ Report

EEEHRES

BAEXZREENREASHNZ
=)

RAFEBSFEHRE

Annual cap Pursuant to the ET New Media Cooperation Agreement, the annual cap in respect of the

fees payable by Taiwan NB to ET New Media shall be as follows:
FELR BREBERRERSIERR - EEAXENRRTEBERZFE LRAT :

NT$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,548,772) from 1 September 2023

to 31 December 2023;

fo_ihH A2 -_=F+=-A=+—8 " #&%10,000,000t A&

RK92,548,772387T)

NT$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,097,544) from 1 January 2024 to

1 December 2024;

—E-mE—B-—BZE-_T-WME+-A=+—8 » H4%20,000,0007T(HBEZ

RH#95,097, 54478 7T)

NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$8,920,702) from 1 January 2025 to

1 December 2025; and

—E-_RE—A— EE_?_£¢+ A=+—H8 ' #&%35,000,0007T (&

M #98,920,70278 7T)

NT$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,743,860) from 1 January 2026 to

31 August 2026.

TECRF-A—HE-Z-_XHFNA=1+—H  FAE%50,000,0007THE R

#912,743,86076 7T) °

Term From 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2026.

HA PR BE-E =LA HEZ-E-_XFNA=+—H-

ET New Media is a company incorporated in Taiwan with limited liability.
It is principally engaged in operation of internet news outlet, sale of
advertising, and audio-video production. It is the first news, media and
communication networks in Taiwan.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, ET New Media is a direct non-wholly
owned subsidiary of EMIC. Since EMIC is the 100% shareholder of FESS
and FESS is a controlling shareholder of the Company, ET New Media
is a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing
Rules and the transactions contemplated under the ET New Media
Cooperation Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company.

REFREBANBEEMALZARA
Al HXERFELEBPENEHE
EEHERBETANGAE - EREE
B AR -

HERRERAUTAY BEHRIEER
HABBZEHEEZIEZEMHBAR - AR
RARBEBRBERERHEMEZ100%% R
MEREEHEMERARABIERAE R
BLETRA - RRHEEALRQRZHE
EAL BRHBIEBSER: ET%
BEOIZRGERARRZFHERE
%o
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EEEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZRESREAGNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2% ()

2. Eastern Home Consignment Agreement 2. RAGIEBAHEHR
On 12 May 2023, Taiwan NB entered into a consignment agreement RZZBE_=FAA+=H /E8AX
(the “Eastern Home Consignment Agreement”) in respect of (a) product HRREIERNMBERAT(RRIFTS
consignment, (b) cost sharing in relation to the sales of products and (c) BDH@QERRE - bERBESEXAD
trademark licensing with Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd. (3R BROBEFATZAE TR (RFRE
1T 2 BN AR 2 7)) (‘Eastern Home”). SEREmRED -
The major terms of the Eastern Home Consignment Agreement are RREZEREHZE T 2Rt m

summarised as follows:

Subject matter

EEEHE

T~

EH Products Consignment

RABZBERNKHE

Taiwan NB shall engage Eastern Home to sell cosmetic and skin care products
manufactured, distributed or sold by Taiwan NB (the “EH Target Products”) which
are selected by Eastern Home as target products (the “EH Products Consignment”).
BEBAXZRERRGIBHESEBATMEE  DHAHE (LM NES
En((RASZHBERER])  MRRAGHIBEEZFEMERBFREM(RK
SHBEMKHED -

Taiwan NB shall authorise Eastern Home to sell the EH Target Products to end
customers and to use related promotional materials for such purpose.
REEAERERREIBAKHKETFHERRSTIBEREMIMZE OE
RS EME -

Eastern Home shall be responsible for marketing and selling the EH Target Products
to end customers through its own distribution channels or third party distribution
channels.
RRGIBEEEREARGDHREAE =T DHEBMRREPHHERIHEE
RRGHBERERD °

EH Cost Sharing

RABZBREADE

Taiwan NB shall be fully responsible for the costs in relation to the sale of EH
Products Consignment to end customers, including the costs associated with
marketing, transportation and programme production (“EH Cost Sharing”).
BEBARABPAENLRZPHERRSIBERKHEBEBNKE - 1
B - BRI NGTEIEERBAOK RN (RREZERAD#E]) -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
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EEEHRES

AEXZREERERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  TE2R (4)
Eastern Home Consignment Agreement (Continued) 2. RHABEBRHEHRGE

2.

Pricing

EfE

C.
C.

EH Trademark Licensing

RABEZBEETT

Eastern Home shall pay Taiwan NB a royalty for licence to use the trademarks of
“Natural Beauty” (the “EH Royalty”).
RRSIBEAREFAIEAIEAXIBERNEEAXTINERB(RRAES
BERE] -

EH Products Consignment

RABEZBERNRHE

The price of the EH Target Products sold by Taiwan NB to Eastern Home shall be
at 50% to 90% discount to their retail price, or 20% to 60% discount to their gross
profit margin if the EH Target Products are original equipment manufacturing
("OEM") or original design manufacturing (“"ODM”") products.
AEEAXMNRRGIBMERRFIBEEERIEBRARTEBBSNE
90% 2 HrHl - HMRRGHE B IZERARIEZBERIE((OEM) SR I8 R T RS
(ToDMDEm - BIRENIZE20%ZE60%2 HH -

EH Cost Sharing

RABZBRADE

Taiwan NB shall pay a sale commission at 2% of the internet sale proceeds
during the month to Eastern Home. Taiwan NB shall additionally pay a marketing
sponsorship fee at 3% of the relevant sale proceeds to Eastern Home for such EH
Target Products sold during the month.

éfé@ﬁt%ﬁﬂif RAEBREEFSRIE 2% RARREIBZNHERE - &
EBERAERREALENZERAFTIBEERERRBBHEMSRIAZ3%M
RRSIBEIINEHEDE -

EH Trademark Licensing

RARGZBEETT

Eastern Home shall pay Taiwan NB a EH Royalty fee at 5% of the selling price (before
tax; and after deduction of any discount) from the sale of mutually agreed products.

RAGIBERRHERAABEEREBCRUA - REMBKF AT Z5%AE
BEREINRRASIBERE -
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EERREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZREEREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) R # (1)
2. Eastern Home Consignment Agreement (Continued) 2. RHABEBRHEHRGE
Annual cap Pursuant to the Eastern Home Consignment Agreement, the annual cap in relation to
EH Products Consignment, EH Cost Sharing by Taiwan NB and the aggregate EH Royalty
payable by Eastern Home shall be as follows:
FELR BRERREZBEREGR  RREGIBERNKHE  SEAAXRNRREIBRAEAS

BREARSIBRNERRSIBERBZFELRAT

a. EHProducts Consignment
a. RRGBEBEMNH
. NT$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,743,860) from 1
September 2023 to 31 December 2023;
ZEC=FAA-REZZT_=F+A=+—H - #&H%50,000,0007T
(FEE R #12,743,86078 7T)

NT$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$50,975,440) from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2024,
TECNF-A-REZ_MF+A=+—H - #&5%200,000,0007T
(FBE 1 4950,975,44078 7T)

NT$300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$76,463,160) from 1 January
2025 to 31 December 2025; and
—ECRF-A-HBEZZ_RFTA=+—RH - #&E%300,000,0007T
(FE R #76,463,1607% L) © &

NT$500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$127,438,600) from 1 January
2026 to 31 August 2026.

—EZRE-RA-BEZZT_R"FNA=+—H - #AE¥500,000,0007T
(FHE M 49127,438,60058 )
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BEEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) T 2% (4%)
2. Eastern Home Consignment Agreement (Continued) 2. RHABEBRHEHRGE
b. EH Cost Sharing

b.

C.

RAGZBEAED B

NT$2,800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$713,656) from 1 September
2023 to 31 December 2023;
ZEC=FAA-REZZ=F+_A=+—RH " 5 %2800,0007T
(FHERHKI713,656/87T)

NT$12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$3,058,526) from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2024;
—ECNF-A-BEZZEWF+A=+—H " $5%12,000,0007T
(FBE 1 493,058,526% 7T) :

NT$17,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$4,332,912) from 1 January
2025 to 31 December 2025; and
—E_RAF-A-BEZZE_AF+A=+—8H #A&%17,0000007T
(FRE R #H4,33291287T) : &

NT$28,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$7,136,561) from 1 January
2026 to 31 August 2026.

TE-RXF-A—BEZE-_ARFNA=+—H ' $15%28,000,0007T
E 497,136,561 7T) °

EH Royalty
RAGZBEAE

NT$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$509,754) from 1 September
2023 to 31 December 2023;
ZEZ=FNA—RAEZZE_=F+HA=+—H " #&E%2,000,0007T
(FB& M #1509,754%87T)

NT$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,274,386) from 1 January 2024
to 31 December 2024;

—EMFE-R-—RAE_T_WMFE+_A=+—H  HAE5,0000007T
(FRE R #1,274,386/87T)
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Exg

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

2. Eastern Home Consignment Agreement (Continued) 2.

WES

BEXZRESERERENZ
=)

RABIZBREHBRGE

NT$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$1,274,386) from 1 January 2025
to 31 December 2025; and

—TE-RF—AR— 51_7 —hE+ZRA=+—8 " #FAEH50000007T
(FBE M 491,274,386/ 7T)

NT$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$1,274,386) from 1 January 2026
to 31 August 2026.
—E-RFE—A—HEZZE-_X"ENA=+—H ' FE¥5,000,0007T (48

BIRH1,274,386787T) ©

Term From 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2026.
R B-Z_=FNA—BREZ-_R"FNA=+—H -

Eastern Home is a company incorporated in Taiwan with limited liability.
It is principally engaged in distribution of goods through TV shopping
and e-commerce in Taiwan. It is the first TV shopping company in Taiwan.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, Eastern Home was accounted for
and consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts of EMIC as a
subsidiary thereof since EMIC could during the relevant time, directly or
indirectly, control the composition of a majority of the board of directors
of Eastern Home. Since 1 January 2019, EMIC can no longer directly or
indirectly control the composition of a majority of the board of directors
of Eastern Home, and since then Eastern Home has not been and will not
be accounted for and consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts
of EMIC as a subsidiary.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

2.

Eastern Home Consignment Agreement (Continued)

However, given that (a) EMIC is holding, directly or indirectly, altogether
approximately 25.87% of the shareholding in Eastern Home, (b) one
member of the board of directors of Eastern Home, namely Mr. Liao
Shang-Wen, is also the chairperson of EMIC, (c) FESS is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, and EMIC is the 100% shareholder of FESS,
(d) the vice president of Eastern Home, namely Mr. Chao Shih Heng, is the
sole ultimate beneficial owner of Insbro which is holding 22.76% of the
issued Shares, (€) one member of the board of directors of Eastern Home,
namely Dr. Lei Chien, is also the chairperson and an executive Director
of the Company, (f) the finance vice president of Eastern Home, namely
Ms. Lin Shu-Hua, is also a non-executive Director of the Company; and (g)
the Eastern Home Consignment Agreement, the Eastern Home Franchise
Agreement and the Eastern Home Procurement Agreement (for further
details, please refer to items 3 and 7 of this section) have been entered
into on the same date as the other transactions disclosed in this section,
the Directors consider that it is appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern
Home as a connected person of the Company and to comply with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As such, the transactions
contemplated under the Eastern Home Consignment Agreement shall
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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EEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZREEREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2= (%)
3. Eastern Home Franchise Agreement 3. RHABIBEMEGR
On 12 May 2023, Taiwan NB entered into a franchise agreement (the R-ZE-=ZFRAA+_-H &EBRE

“Eastern Home Franchise Agreement”) with Eastern Home.

HRRBIBIILNBHRE(RRFH
BnEwED -

The major terms of the Eastern Home Franchise Agreement are RAREZEMBARZ 2 2GRt

summarised as follows:

Subject matter

EEEHE

Pricing

EfE

Annual cap

FE LR

T

Taiwan NB shall grant Eastern Home a non-exclusive licence to use certain trademarks in
respect of certain skin care products and provide Eastern Home with consultancy services
in connection with Eastern Home's operation and management of spa business under the
brand name “Natural Beauty”.

Eastern Home may from time to time make wholesale purchase of Taiwan NB products,
and Taiwan NB shall sell such products to Eastern Home at certain discount to relevant
retail price for on-sale by Eastern Home.

AEEAXRARTRRGHE —AFBRITAE  UETEHERERAETEE I
HRREHBELEREEBAE]MEE T KRERRRRGSBREZARS -

RAGHBAIINSHEREGEEARXER R EAARXHRERTEER 2 —EFMN
ARKRGEHIBHEXFTER  WHARKSEIBETEE -

The price of the target products sold by Taiwan NB to Eastern Home shall be at 50% to
80% discount to their retail price, or 80% to 90% discount to their retail price if it is test
products, salon-only products or near expiry products.
REBRRERNRREIBLECERERERAR/ETEB/S0%E0% I - il
RABRER PERIFEMIEOIPzER EERARETEEBINEI %L
0 o

Pursuant to the Eastern Home Franchise Agreement, the annual cap in respect of the fees
payable by Eastern Home to Taiwan NB shall be as follows:

REXRFRSHBNEHZ  AREIBERNEERTERZIFELRAT ¢

NT$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,548,772) from 1 September 2023
to 31 December 2023;
ZEZ=FAA-BEZZE_=F+=A=+—8H ' HAE%10,000,0007T HEE
492,548,772 7T)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

3.

Eastern Home Franchise Agreement (Continued)

Directors’ Report

EEEHRES

BAEXZREENREASHNZ
R )
3. RAGSIBENBEHZRGE)

NT$S0,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,743,860) from 1 January 2024 to

1 December 2024;

_?_Ei A—BZE-_Z-_WN&+_-_A=+—8 " A %50,000,0007T(HBE

R4912,743,86078 7T)

NT$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,390,176) from 1 January 2025 to

31 December 2025; and

—E-RE—A— EII_Y_ﬁﬁJr A=4+—H8 ' #&%80,000,0007T (&

R4920,390,17677T)

NT$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$25,487,720) from 1 January 2026

to 31 August 2026.

TECARF—A—HEZ-R"FNAZ=ZF+—H8 ' #HE%100,000,0007T(FHHER

#)25,487,7207%7T) °
Term From 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2026.
HiFR Q—v—_iﬂﬂ Hti_;_ﬂiﬂﬂi+—50

As disclosed in item 2 above, the Directors consider that it is appropriate
to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As
such, the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Home Franchise
Agreement shall constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

Eastern Global Sale Agreement

On 12 May 2023, Taiwan NB entered into a sale agreement (the “Eastern
Global Sale Agreement”) with Eastern Global Business Co., Ltd. (BRFk &
HREERMHB AR AR (‘Eastern Global”), formerly known as Eastern
Tenmax Direct Co, Ltd. GRAR AR EH SR AR 2 7))

BN ESCEIEFTIEEE  EERABER
/E%Bﬁéﬁé%ﬂﬁm/‘ﬁzrﬁk/\i%;_
BEMEEST EMRAE4AE - |
ﬁt RARESIEMERREBTERET S
ROEBKARNBIZFHEBERZS °

4. RAZREEHR
R-ZE_=ZFAA+=-H 8EBR
THERREREERMHBR DB (RZE
%Iﬂ AIERRREAEHEBRNAR

RAEDRIMLHER ([ RRZKHEER
&) e

—ECCEFR AREEVUNHERAR 75
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EEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZRESREAGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) & £ ()
4. Eastern Global Sale Agreement (Continued) 4. REEMEEHRE)
The major terms of the Eastern Global Sale Agreement are summarised ERDEMEEWE T F E IS0
as follows: T

Subject matter

FEEHR

Pricing

EE

Annual cap

FELR

Term

HR

A sales and procurement framework had been established between Taiwan NB and
Eastern Global, whereby Taiwan NB may from time to time sell and Eastern Global may
from time to time make wholesale purchase of Taiwan NB products such as health
supplements, skin care products and cosmetic products.
AEEREERREHRERIHERRBER - Bl - /EEBAEAITRHE - MR
RERATRHHERBSEAAEZER(PINRER - #E @ MEizm) -

(1) At 50% to 80% discount to the relevant retail price; and (2) at 20% to 60% discount to
the gross profit margin if it is OEM products and ODM products.
NBAEBETEBHTMN0%E80% : &) AOEME dh XODME M » RIEERN X
20%Z260% °©

Pursuant to the Eastern Global Sale Agreement, the annual cap in respect of the fees
payable by Eastern Global to Taiwan NB shall be as follows:

RERREHHEEHZ  RREPENGEAAXZEANEE LRI T

NT$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,097,544) from 1 September 2023
to 31 December 2023;

—E-=HFHhA-BE-T-_=F+-A=+—8 - $4%20,000,0007THE
FA#5,097,54478 7T)

NT$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,390,176) from 1 January 2024 to
31 December 2024;

ZEMFE-A-BEZT-NF+-A=+—H ' $A%80,000,0005T (HHE
7 4920,390,1767& 7T)

NT$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$38,231,580) from 1 January 2025
to 31 December 2025; and

—ERF—A— Elif7f£¢+ A=+—8 " $4&%150,000,0007t (HE
F#938,231,5807 7T)

NT$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$50,975,440) from 1 January 2026
to 31 August 2026.
ZEZRE-A-HEZE-RENA=+—H - #E%200,000,0007T HEE®
#950,975,4407%8 7T) °

From 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2026.
BE-E_=FNA—HBEZ_Z_FNA=+—H8-
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

4.

Eastern Global Sale Agreement (Continued)
Eastern Global is a company incorporated in Taiwan with limited liability.
Itis principally engaged in wholesale and retailing of various goods.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, each of
Eastern Global and its ultimate beneficial owners is an Independent Third
Party. However, given that (a) one member of the board of directors
and the vice-president of Eastern Global, namely Mr. Chao Shih Heng,
is the sole ultimate beneficial owner of Insbro which is holding 22.76%
of the issued Shares, and (b) the Eastern Global Sale Agreement and the
Eastern Global Procurement Agreement (for further details, please refer
to item 8 of this section) have been entered into on the same date as
the other transactions disclosed in this section, the Directors consider
that it is appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern Global as a connected
person of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules accordingly. As such, the transactions contemplated under the
Eastern Global Sale Agreement shall constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company.

ET New Retail Consignment Agreement

On 12 May 2023, Taiwan NB entered into a consignment agreement
(the “ET New Retail Consignment Agreement”) in respect of (a) product
consignment and (b) cost sharing in relation to the sales of products with
Eastern New Retail Department Store Company Limited (R ZEH
E R 1A BR 2 F]) (‘ET New Retail’).

The major terms of the ET New Retail Consignment Agreement are
summarised as follows:
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RAZREEHRE)
RRAERSNREEBEMKRIZBRA
Al - HIENEZERMCBABERT
%0

HERKERATAY  BEREE—
PAEBERERFN  SBLEE  BRHR
PHREREGREGHEB AL ABISE
ZH A BR@QEHREHZEES
RERBEEREIHEEZAE) BRE
PH—BRREZBEEAN MREREE
22.76%2 B BTG ¢ R(b)ERFHRE IR
EWELRRRDIREBE HEE—PFE
E2MARESE) CEAMATIEEE
X FRRABEIY EERABRHZSE
KEFERABARRZHEBEALIBEE
BZAMREEST ETRAIE14AE Bt -
RAREHEERRBTITRETZIRSE
BN T 2 FHBERERS °

REAFSEREHE
R-ZE-_=ZFRA+-H &EBARE
HRGTTEEERNER AR (EHK
HEEDR@QERRBEROERBEK
ROBTLREHE(REFSTERB
#pazl) °

RAFTERE DR T EERFT MM
T

Subject matter

FEER

ET New Retail Products Consignment

RANZEERNKHE

Taiwan NB agreed to engage ET New Retail to sell cosmetic and skin care products
(the "ET New Retail Target Products”) supplied by Taiwan NB. Taiwan NB shall
authorise ET New Retail to sell the ET New Retail Target Products to end customers
and to use related promotional materials for such purpose (“ET New Retail Products
Consignment”).
BEBAXAERERRNTEHESEBAEMERNALEEER (R
RATEERER] c AEAAEBRERRTTENRBETFHERRNTE
BREmERZBENERERBEEMH(RANTEERRE])
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’

AEXZREERERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2= (%)
ET New Retail Consignment Agreement (Continued) 5. RAMZSERFEHRE)

5.

Pricing

EE

ET New Retail shall be responsible for marketing and selling the ET New Retail Target
Products to end customers through its own distribution channels or third party
distribution channels.

AR TZEREEREARGDHREAE =S D HEBMRREPHHERIEE
RRNTERRER °

ET New Retail Cost Sharing

RAHMBERED B

Taiwan NB shall be responsible for the costs in relation to the sale of ET New Retalil
Products Consignment to end customers, including the costs associated with
the marketing, transportation and programme production (“ET New Retail Cost
Sharing”).
AEBAEZKEEABAAKKEFPHERRTZEERRENALR - 815
8 BRKGTEIEENEBRA(RRNTEXNESHE] -

ET New Retail Products Consignment

RANMBEERNRH

The price of the ET New Retail Target Products sold by Taiwan NB to ET New Retail
shall be at 50% to 90% discount to their retail price, or 20% to 60% discount to their
gross profit margin if the ET New Retail Target Products are OEM or ODM products.
BERAENRRTEELEZRRT ZEARERBRARKETEE0%E
90% 2 - HIMERFTZTE B IREMBOEMIODMZ Em » AIHBBRERH
FEFIE20%ZE60%2 H730 -

ET New Retail Cost Sharing

RANBEREDE

Taiwan NB shall pay a sale commission at 2% of the internet sale proceeds
during the month to ET New Retail. Taiwan NB shall additionally pay a marketing
sponsorship fee at 3% of the relevant sale proceeds to ET New Retail for such ET
New Retail Target Products sold during the month.

AEBEREHRE AEBMPHEERFRIBEZ2%ARRNTEXNEHERE - &
EBERAERREALENZERANTE B RERKRBHBHEMSRIAZ3%M
KRN ZERIIEHERE -
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EEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXZRESEREREGHNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE2% (%)
5. ET New Retail Consignment Agreement (Continued) 5. RAMZSERFEHRE)
Annual cap Pursuant to the ET New Retail Consignment Agreement, the annual caps in relation to ET

FELR

New Retail Products Consignment and ET New Retail Cost Sharing by Taiwan NB shall be
as follows:

BRERRFTZERBEHR  AEEAXERRRNTEEMRBERERTZERNAELS
BMFELERAOT

a. ET New Retail Products Consignment

a. i%’i%ﬁg’éé mC 8
NT$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,097,544) from 1 September
2023 to 31 December 2023;
TEC=FNA-RET=F+"HA=+—8H " #H%20,000,0007C
(FHE R 495,097,544 7T)

NT$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,743,860) from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2024
—ECME-A-BE_ZT-_WFFT-_A=+—H - HHE%¥50,000,0007T
(*E?E?E’\\,\\’712,743,860/%7E) ;

NT$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,390,176) from 1 January
2025 to 31 December 2025; and

—E-_RF—A— El?tfgfﬂiwL A=+—H - #&%s0,000,0007T
(FHE 7 #720,390,17678 7T)

NT$120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$30,585,264) from 1 January
2026 to 31 August 2026.

—ERFEF-A-BEZZTR"FNAA=+—H - #E*%120,000,0007T
(FE 7R #30,585,2647 7T) °

b. ET New Retail Cost Sharing
b. ﬁﬁ%ﬁg’gﬁkzkﬁﬁ
NT$900,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$229,389) from 1 September
2023 to 31 December 2023;
fyf_ijmﬂ BE-ZT-=F+_"A=+—H - #&A%900,0007T (1§
B #49229,389% 7T)

NT$2,300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$586,218) from 1 January 2024
to 31 December 2024;

TECMF-A-BE_ZT-_OF+-_A=+—H  $5%2,300,0007T
(H& 1 #1586,21887T) :

NT$3,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$917,558) from 1 January 2025
to 31 December 2025; and
—E_hE—A— EII_D?\;EEJr A=+—RH ' #&%3,600,0007T
(FBE M #7917,55887T)

TEIFER BRARENNEAERDLT
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

5.

ET New Retail Consignment Agreement (Continued)

BAEXZREENREASHNZ
RS (E)

5.

RAMEERFHHERE

NT$5,400,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,376,337) from 1 January 2026

to 31 August 2026.

—E-RF-A—HBEZZE-R"ENA=+—8 ' FE¥5,400,0007T (18

B A 41,376,337787T) ©

Term From 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2026.
HAPR E-E-_=FAA—HEZ_Z_FNA=1+—H8-

ET New Retail is a company incorporated in Taiwan with limited liability.
It is principally engaged in distribution of goods through e-commerce in
Taiwan.

ET New Retail is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eastern Home. As disclosed
in item 2 above, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to voluntarily
treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company. As such,
the Directors consider that it is also appropriate to voluntarily treat
ET New Retail as a connected person of the Company and to comply
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the ET New Retail Consignment Agreement shall
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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EEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZREEREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2% ()
6. Strawberry Sale Agreement 6. Strawberry$HE 1R
On 12 May 2023, Natural Beauty China Holding Company Limited (& RZEZ=FRA+=H Ax2paz
SREFRBIERR A PR A A]) (“NB China”), a wholly-owned subsidiary EMBARIBAZPEERBR QA
of the Company, entered into a sale agreement (the "Strawberry Sale ((BAEFRHDERFFZETERD
Agreement”) with Strawberry Cosmetics (Services) Limited (RFRFTZ & BRAE ([Strawberry ) 5T & %
AERHB BRG] (‘Strawberry”). ([Strawberry S5 & W% 1) °
The major terms of the Strawberry Sale Agreement are summarised as Strawberry$8 & & 2 £ Z G 20
follows: ™

Subject matter

EFEEHR

Pricing

EE

Annual rebate

FEER

A sales and procurement framework had been established between NB China and
Strawberry, whereby NB China may from time to time sell and Strawberry may from time
to time make wholesale purchase of products from NB China such as food and cosmetic
products for on-sale to end customers.

BAEFR B EStrawberry B R IHE RIRBIEZSR - Bt - BEAEPEAIAREE - M
Strawberry A N[ B AX P BEA EBRBE M (PINR M RbAm) - UAKnEFE
&= o

(1) At 50% to 75% discount to the relevant retail price; and (2) at 20% to 60% discount to
the gross profit margin if it is OEM products and ODM products.
(BAEBEZSEEITNS0%E75% : RQ)MAOEME B RODMER * BIEEFHITH
20%Z260% °©

5% of the aggregated annual purchase amount by Strawberry will be rebated to
Strawberry when the aggregated annual purchase amount reaches NT$3,923,458
(equivalent to approximately HKS$1,000,000);

7% of the aggregated annual purchase amount by Strawberry will be rebated to
Strawberry when the aggregated annual purchase amount reaches NT$11,770,374
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,000,000);

9% of the aggregated annual purchase amount by Strawberry will be rebated to
Strawberry when the aggregated annual purchase amount reaches NT$19,617,290
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,000,000); and

13% of the aggregated annual purchase amount by Strawberry will be rebated to
Strawberry when the aggregated annual purchase amount reaches NT$31,387,664
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,000,000).
BRATERBSHENA%3,923458 T (FHE K %1,000,000/70) B + Strawberry K 4R
BEERBESE%RIRE T Strawberry

BRATFERESTENAS11,770,37470 GHE 7 493,000,00078 70) B » Strawberry Ay
A TFERBEST7%EIRE T Strawberry

BRAFERBSTIENE19,617,2907T (FHE 7 495,000,000/ 7T) B + Strawberry#)
T FEIE S RE%R R E T Strawberry - &

AR

BRATFERESTEN 3138766470 FHE 7 498,000,00078 7T) B » Strawberry#y
REFERIBS R 13%18 R T Strawberry ©
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EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

6.

Strawberry Sale Agreement (Continued) 6.

BAEXZREENREASHNZ
@)

Strawberry$H &t & (&)

Annual cap Pursuant to the Strawberry Sale Agreement, the annual cap in respect of the fees payable

by Strawberry to NB China shall be as follows:

FE LR BRI Strawberry$H & 1735  Strawberry BN BAZETFR 2 BREMEE LRIE

HK$40,000,000 from 1 September 2023 to 31 December 2023;

TE-=FNA—HEZT-_=F1+—

A=+—8 " 40,000,000/ T :

HK$60,000,000 from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024;

—E_ME-A-BE_T-_NF+

A=+—8 - 60,000,000/ T :

HK$80,000,000 from 1 January 2025 to 31 December 2025; and

TR -A—HE_T_AF+_

A=+—H8 80,000,000/ ;: &

HK$1OO 000,000 from 1 January 2026 to 31 August 2026.
ZRE-A—BREZ-XEAHA=1+—H - 100,000,000%& T °

Term From 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2026.

R B-E_=FAA-HRE_Z_RFN\A=+—H-

Strawberry is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability.
It is principally engaged in sale of internationally renowned skin care and
beauty products through internet.

As disclosed in item 2 above, the Directors consider that it is appropriate
to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company.
As at the Latest Practicable Date, (a) Strawberry is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Eastern Home and (b) Strawberry Sale Agreement
was entered into on the same date as the other transactions disclosed
in this section, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to voluntarily
treat Strawberry as a connected person of the Company and to
comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As such, the
transactions contemplated under the Strawberry Sale Agreement shall
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2023
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EEEHRES

AEXZREENRERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) & £ ()

7. Eastern Home Procurement Agreement 7. iﬁ 5 BERE R
On 12 May 2023, Taiwan NB entered into a procurement agreement (the »m= =“FRA+TZA AaEEAE
“Eastern Home Procurement Agreement”) with Eastern Home. Eﬁiﬁ ?% SRR R RREF

BREWED

The major terms of the Eastern Home Procurement Agreement are RAREZIEREHBZ 2 T 2GR

summarised as follows:

Subject matter

FEEH

Pricing
EE
Annual cap

FELR

T

A sales and procurement framework had been established between Taiwan NB and
Eastern Home, whereby Eastern Home may from time to time sell and Taiwan NB may
from time to time make wholesale purchase of products such as health supplements,
commodities and food from Eastern Home for on-sale at its franchised/self-owned spas,
medical cosmetology centers and counters.

REBREERRGIBORIHE RIKBER - Bit - RREIBAINKEE - M
REBAEATHRARRSIBHERBERPIVRER - BmEkRdam) - AREN
B BEREKERDY BREDTFOLRAEEESEE -

(1) At 50% to 80% discount to the relevant retail price; or (2) at 10% to 30% discount to
the gross profit margin.

MEBBEBZEEBINS0%E80% ; HQ)EEFEITH10%ZE30% o

Pursuant to the Eastern Home Procurement Agreement, the annual cap in respect of the
fees payable by Eastern Home to Taiwan NB shall be as follows:

RERRSIEREDGS  ARCHIBEERNEBEAXERZFELRAT

NT$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,823,158) from 1 September 2023
to 31 December 2023;

—E-=HFHhA-BE-T-=F+-A=+—8 ' $4%15000,0007THE
##93,823,1587T)

NT$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,743,860) from 1 January 2024 to
31 December 2024;

ZENF-A-BEZZT_NFF+A=+—Q ' HES50,000,0007T (HHE
#R4912,743,8607 7T)

NT$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$25,487,720) from 1 January 2025
to 31 December 2025; and

T -RF—A— Eli_7_£¢+ A=+—8 ' #$&%100,000,0007T (HE
R #925,487,7207 7T)

NT$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$38,231,580) from 1 January 2026
to 31 August 2026.
= —/\fﬁ H E:I:
#938,231,580/8 L) °

TARENA=+T—H - #FA150,000,0007T FHER

TEIFER BRARENNEAERDLT
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EEEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZRESREAGNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2= (%)

7. Eastern Home Procurement Agreement(Continued) 7. RARGBIBEBHRGE
Term From 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2026.
HAPR BE-E_=FNA—HRBEZZE-"F/\H=+—H-
As disclosed in item 2 above, the Directors consider that it is appropriate BN EXEBFIERE  EERABRR
to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company BH5BEREARRRIZHEEALEE
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As such, E - BAMEREST FTREIE14AE o
the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Home Procurement At - KRGS EHRBERIE T HHET
Agreement shall constitute continuing connected transactions of the ZRGEBRARB 2 FHERERS o
Company.

8. Eastern Global Procurement Agreement 8. RARZWMEEWHZ
On 12 May 2023, Taiwan NB entered into a procurement agreement (the RZEZ=FAHA+=H 8EBRXE
"Eastern Global Procurement Agreement”) with Eastern Global. BRARBIRFT I HRE W& ((RAR DR

Bz o

The major terms of the Eastern Global Procurement Agreement are RREHEBBE 2 E BRI
summarised as follows: ™

Subject matter

TEBHR

Pricing

EE

Annual cap

FELR

A sales and procurement framework had been established between Taiwan NB and
Eastern Global, whereby Eastern Global may from time to time sell and Taiwan NB may
from time to time make wholesale purchase of products such as health supplements,
commodities and food, and Eastern Global shall sell such products to Taiwan NB.
AEEREERREHRERIHELRBER - Bl - RREHATRHLHE - A&
BAEATARFHERBERPINRER  BAakEnR)  MEREEREMAEEARE
HEZSEmR -

(1) At 50% to 80% discount to the relevant retail price; and (2) at 10% to 30% discount to
the gross profit margin if it is OEM products and ODM products.
NBAEBTEBHTM0%E80% : &(Q2)HABOEME f RODME M@ » RIEERN X
10%2230% °

Pursuant to the Eastern Global Procurement Agreement, the annual cap in respect of the
fees payable by Eastern Global to Taiwan NB shall be as follows:

BRERZEHRBH S  RREHRENGEEBAXBERZFELRNT :

NT$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,823,158) from 1 September 2023
to 31 December 2023;
TE-=HFhA-BE-_E-_=%F+-A=+—8 " H4%15000,0007T(HE
FA#]3,823,158%8 7T)

NT$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,646,316) from 1 January 2024 to
1 December 2024;

ZEME-A-BEZTNF+-A=+—H ' $A%30,000,0005T (HHE

FA#17,646,316787T)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

8. Eastern Global Procurement Agreement (Continued)

Directors’ Report
EEEWMESE

BAEXZREENREASHNZ
@)
8. EAWMIEBIGEE

NT$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,743,860) from 1 January 2025 to

31 December 2025; and

—E-RAF—A—HEZ-Z—

W#712,743,860787T) 5 &

AE+ZA=+—H  HE%50,000,000THEE

NT$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$25,487,720) from 1 January 2026

to 31 August 2026.

TE-RFE-A-BE-ZE-RENA=+—8 - #E%100,000,0007T FHE R

#4925,487,720587T) ©

Term

R

As disclosed in item 2 above, the Directors consider that it is appropriate
to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As such,
the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Home Procurement
Agreement shall constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

For further details regarding the agreements discussed in items 1 through 8
above, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 12 May 2023
and 27 June 2023, and the circular of the Company dated 4 August 2023.

The above transactions are regarded as “continuing connected transactions”
and “connected transactions” of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Group confirms that the above disclosure has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business,
on normal commercial term or better and in accordance with the terms of the
respective agreements governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable
and are in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The board of Directors confirmed that the Group’s auditors have confirmed the
matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

From 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2026.
B-E-_=FAA-BARE-_T-_A<FN\A=1+—A-

AN EXF AT - EERRERZR
SIBERERARRIZHAEALEE
g - BZAMEMET EHARRIE4AE -
Bt - RFBHBRBHHR T EET
ZRPEBRARBZFERERS °

EEXE EoBEFTM R E— S B
Z2HARTBRA-_ZE_=FRA+-_BR=
T _ZFRNAZTEBENRYE  URARFA
AT -=F)\AHMNBXK -

R ETRAUE AR EARZHER BN
RAZFHEMRERZ S IRBER 5] -

AEBEER LA KECKHE ETRAE A
BHRBERE

BUIRTEBDRR - LRSI DRAEE
t— B RARESBRTTY - AR KA
R E (R IR B E B R 52 & 1hik
BRI MRPERBATAE - BFAA
ARRABEZ BRFIS -

BEEEeHR  AEERHMEERHEN LETHE
BI|Z514A5615H)ZETE -

TEIFER BRARENNEAERDLT
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EESWESE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company,
an entity connected with a Director, a Controlling Shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2023 or at any time
during such year; and

(i) there were no related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 as set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements which need to be disclosed as connected transactions or
continuing connected transaction (as the case may be) in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is adopted by the Board
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
as authorized by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share awards schemes as an incentive to

Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2023

BAEXZREENREASHNZ
@)
% FCREE -

() ZARBRKELAHBARBRETLAR
AEF HEZAMBNER  ERK
RAEERMEAREEKFEERES
BEEA R ARBE_T =%+
— A=t BUEFERIZFREME
BINALERZERMERELD &

(i) WETMERE T EREM T2 AE
Bz -_=F+_A=1+—HIL*F
EZHEMEBALRSEERBEMR
A7 RERELBEIHUIFEBER
SEEBRAME) °

EERmERBHEDS
FP9 - BHRERRARE Y $ 10 H R RS
BERTFERT 2 AAEBFAG TR
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=S o
g

B & BUR
AEEREEHEBREEFERBEE LS
K- ABERENTRG -

ARRBEREBTBABZME I RHME
BERERARARERE MARARAE
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E o WRBRRERFBEFAG LRE -
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PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes which
are available to all employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group
and employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds. For further details, please refer
to note 33 of the consolidated financial statements.

No forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) were used to reduce the
existing level of contributions and no forfeited contribution was available as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 to reduce future years’ contributions.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the Latest Practicable Date of this
Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong Kong
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED
Shareholders who are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing,
holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to, the
Shares, are suggested to consult an expert.

Directors’ Report
EEEWMESE

RHKEERETEAGE

RS B A TS 1 B 19 ] 2 D00 TE B AL AR AR
B - AEEREEYHENHRERERR
RF RO T LEH o 5 ABRRIKEFFH
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EESWESE

MAJOR EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any major events requiring disclosure that has
taken place subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report.

REVIEW OF AUDITED 2023 ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee which
is of the opinion that such statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, legal requirements and the Listing Rules, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

On behalf of the Board

LEI Chien
Chairperson
Hong Kong

22 February 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BY ZBENHREF

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 98 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM

HEREZEYRE
BRATRR
(RAEHEZME L FRLE])
=

AZBED AT AR EREFINERNE
BHEEF24ABAAARREYNHZBER AT
(TERFDREMBAR(EEREDO&E M
B#wEK - MEAMBBRREENR_T_=F+
A=t BHEEMBIREER - BEEZX
BLLEEMGEBREIEMEEKER « 46
BuEEHRNGEERERER - UREAMH
WA - BRERNGITHRRER -

BARR  SEVBHRRCREFESEA
(BB GTMAE)EMNCEEM RS
HRAN(EFEHBEREEANDEENA TR

My SEER-_ZE-_=F#+-_FA=+—HH
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key
audit matters we identified are:

1. Net realisable value of slow-moving or obsolete inventories
Impairment assessment on trade receivables
3. Impairment assessment of Cash Generating Unit of Sales of Cosmetic

Products in Mainland China (the "CGU")
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BYZBERES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRFTTEE @
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HRENSEE EEFTHYHRARESFSENERS £

Net realisable value of slow-moving or obsolete
inventories

FHRREFE SR FE
Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2V HRERMIFE24 -

The Group’s inventories include raw materials and
finished goods. The Group has recognised an allowance
for slow-moving or obsolete inventories of approximately
HK$23.3 million in arriving at a total inventories value of
approximately HK$77.6 million as at 31 December 2023.

EEBETERREMBAREXR RZ2ZT=-=
F+-_A=+—H  E£EEERGFELEY
77,600,000 L « BERERSIHSRETFTEREL
23,300,000/ 7T ©

As set out in note 5(f) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group reviews
inventories on a product-by-product basis at the end of
each reporting period and makes allowance for slow-
moving or obsolete inventories. The management
estimates the net realisable value for such items with
reference to the recent selling prices, subsequent sales
and the market conditions.

WERAMBRERMESOME - BESREEEERE
BEHHSEEAZRERTEFE - BB HNKER
ERTErREE BEEESEONEE  HRHEE
KSR ER % FHE 2 A #IRFE -

Management was required to exercise significant
judgements and estimations in determining the net
realisable value and allowance for slow-moving or
obsolete inventories. Accordingly, these areas are
considered a key audit matter.

EEERGEEERHEKREFE 2 A& AL
R 1L B RHIE R AR - Bt - RETHHERS
FAsRERTEIR -

Our audit procedures included:
HIPIET R B -

Understanding and evaluating of the management
controls over the identification of slow-moving or obsolete
inventories and the assessment of their net realisable value
and assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level
of other inherent risk factors;

THREFHEEERRFHIRETE RFFEE
AR E RS TDEL B BE B AR T EE LD
REREMALRRREZKFEAFEERERRA
FIARERRR

Evaluating the reasonableness of the methods and
estimation used in determining the net realisable value of
inventories;

FEREBEEFENSREEMERAN T EARGEEZ
BIEM

Testing the inventory aging reports generated by the
application system and checking to the supporting
documents for their accuracy, on a sample basis;

AIB R RGP AR T Bl s - B H
AR Ty SR E SRS

Evaluating whether inventories were stated at the lower
of cost or net realisable value at the reporting date
by comparing the carrying amounts of inventories at
reporting date to the sales price of inventories subsequent
to the reporting date; and

WIB L3 B R EREERE S B RN
S (AR 5 B KR T AR AR AT 2R
FEREEAR R

Compared the level of inventories written-off during the
year with the provision made in prior years.

ELBAFEMENFTEKFERBEFE AR
e

TEIFER BRAREMNEARLT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FAREETEE @

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEETEE EFTHHRARETBENEES
2. Impairment assessment on trade receivables Our audit procedures included:

B 2 W ERFURE L
Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

F2RR A M MAR MRS

ARz
The Group has recognised an allowance for credit losses
of approximately HK$1.1 million in arriving at net trade
receivables of approximately HK$77.4 million as at 31
December 2023.

R-E-_=%+-_A=+—8H"
5 JFE Y BR TR 58 4977,400,00078 JT B -
B EE#91,100,00078 7T °

BEEEEENE
EHEREERE

As set out in note 4(aa) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group always recognises lifetime
Expected Credit Losses ("ECL") for trade receivables and
estimates the ECL using historical credit loss experience
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors.

NGRS W ISR K M 5 4(aa) T EL SE—8
B 5 R RS ﬁﬁu/u?_i*ﬁﬁi‘ﬁ,ﬁfgiﬁa(FJ’E,HFH:.
B - YFRBEEEERERREBASE
AEEHAR) REFTEREERSSE

Management was required to exercise significant
judgements and estimations in grouping debtors
with similar loss pattern and in determining whether
a particular debtor is considered to be in default. The
impact of economic factors, both current and future,
historical experience and forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors were also considered in management’s
assessment of the likelihood of recovery from customers.
Accordingly, these areas are considered a key audit
matter.

EREEHAEARALUEERANEREAETOMA
WEEFE BB AL WA SENRAELELRH
B Kb - EEEENMEAFEP D FIAMN A R

EﬂT%J’ET B AR ARREERE - BELRNRES
FEAMBERZNTE - it - 25 THERE
Eﬁﬁi%.ﬁr%lﬁ °

RPN EEFBRE

Assessing the key controls over the monitoring of trade
receivables and management's impairment assessment;

AN B S RYR R M EREEMRENGZ
BIRRIZ 4 7% -

Assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement of the
ECL allowance by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors;

BREEMETTHEEMENEE MEMAERREZ
gi A EEREEERREERERRANR
R

Evaluating the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in estimating the ECL allowance;

At BEBEAGEREREERBRERMERN
TR BABIBR KRR

Understanding and challenging the judgements made by
management in estimating the ECL allowance;

THRYEREEEEHERMEEBREBRFL
HYH R

Assessing the relevance and reliability of the data used to
determine historical loss rates and the appropriateness of
any adjustments for historical and forward-looking factors
or factors specific to the debtors;

AHEARNEEBEEBEXRNEIR 2RI RS
LA Kot 38 1 e AT BE 1 A R (B 7 /\%EI?VE&E
B2 EEN

Assessing the adequacy of the allowance recorded by
reviewing subsequent settlements after the reporting
period; and

BREEHREHRNRELERFGACEMEE
EERE K

Compared the bad debt written-off during the year with
the ECL allowance made in prior years.

BB AF EMEHAIRRK P RBEFEFEHANTE
HEEEERRE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRFTTEE @
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BHRENSE EEFTPYHBARESFSENERSE

3. Impairment assessment of Cash Generating Unit of Our audit procedures in relation to management's impairment
Sales of Cosmetic Products in Mainland China (the assessmentincluded:
lchU”)

3. RPEXREHELtERzZRSELEN(REEE BMEEEEEBRENGNEAEFESE
B ) RER

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.  « Understanding and evaluating management's key controls
over the impairment assessment process and assessing
B2RRA MmN T2 - the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
As at 31 December 2023, goodwill with carrying amount inherent risk factors;
of approximately HK$25.2 million was allocated to the
CGU. . TR R E R E SR ER (A RIRMBR S A
335 8 Z Bl 5t I E 1 B 12 12 I At R 72 2 B A
RZB_=%+_ H +—HB HREELOR R LA E RS AR PR B AR R
252000008 T B E D IEER S EL B -
Evaluating the outcome of prior period impairment
The CGU is tested for impairment at least annually or assessment of the CGU to assess the effectiveness of
whenever there is an impairment indicator by comparing management’s estimation process;

the carrying amount including goodwill with the
respective recoverable amount of the CGU. Management HATHRReEESMMNBAEN GERELFT
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU by B UarhEREMEBRENBRML
engaging independent qualified valuer.

. Obtaining and evaluating management’s approved cash
REELBNELBFHNELRBETREETH flow forecasts, testing the mathematical accuracy of the

BAR  FERREFEAEREERD HRSES underlying value in use calculations and agreeing them to
BUEAMAKEISE EEERBEZEEVESE the approved cash flow forecasts;

BEER - T RESEASBMU 2 KREISEE -

. BETNEERBMENRESRETEN - AFEAE
At 31 December 2023, the result of the CGU impairment FREBFENHBLEREURRAEZEAMENTE S
assessment performed by management concluded that mETER B
there was no impairment loss.

. Reviewing the valuation report from independent qualified
NZEBZ=F+A=+—H BEEMHTRS valuer and holding discussion with management and

EEBMRENMENERKE - THEERESBSE - independent qualified valuer to understand the valuation
basis, methodology used and underlying assumptions
applied;

EHBYABRMGEMMNBERS  LREEER
BIYAEMMEEMETIRNA T REEEM - &5
B 7705 M e e AE B R AR

ST CEER HRZEYNEERAT 93
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BAZHMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FEAEEITEIE (@)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEFTPHBARESFSENERSE

3. Impairment assessment of Cash Generating Unit of
Sales of Cosmetic Products in Mainland China (the

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included: (Continued)

“CGU”) (Continued)
3. RYBRAKEHELtURZREELBEN(REEE RMAREEERENENETEFRE - 8
B ) RERFE (&

The impairment assessment was based on value in
use model and management was required to exercise
significant judgements and estimations including sales
growth rates, gross profit margin and long-term growth
rates used to estimate future cash flows and discount

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent qualified valuer,

AR A ERMGERMNA & - e REEIE

rate applied to the forecasted future cash flows of the Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based

94

underlying CGU. Accordingly, these areas are considered
a key audit matter.

BERH S EREREERIEL - BERERE
HEXHE LG - BREARGERICRSREN
HERER  FMNEREMEREX - AREARNA

on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

EREMEEBRITENTHE  HEXEZRI|WEE
HERRHER - &

Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rate used

BIRSELBURARKRASRENIEEE - A
It ZESEBERABREAEE -

with the assistance of our external valuation specialists.

Eﬁiﬁ%%%@?}%ﬁ'\]%ﬁﬂ? CEHEETE AR ALR
K ZHEEM -
OTHER INFORMATION Hith & ¥
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information iimﬂﬁ@ﬁﬂ 18 o HitbER B IEF@A
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the ~ FTEEHFTE E*} - E ir e B R kR
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. I3 MR BRI RS B BRI o
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other B MIH A H B RENEEL T REEME

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEMBRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Szeto Tai Shun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

22 February 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-_A=-+—HLEFE
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2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FTERT FHET
Revenue WA 8 336,015 335,880
Cost of sales B E R A (135,670) (146,750)
Gross profit EF 200,345 189,130
Other income and other gains HE Wz FFE 9 7,883 12,593
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment BUEEERER,CRERE)
losses) net of reversal H1 B # [0 10 4,076 (4,715)
Loss on derecognition of intangible assets RILEREREE CEE - (5147)
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREEE - (2133)
Fair value (loss )/gain on investment properties & ¥ KA FE(EE), W (5,764) 1,346
Distribution and selling expenses DI REERY (142,208) (139,262)
Administrative expenses THHAX (65,965) (68,562)
Other expenses and other losses HAnF S FiE Kk (2,105) (2,455)
Loss from operations ReEEE (3,738) (19,205)
Finance costs BhE R AN 12 (8,131) (4,343)
Loss before tax BB AR (11,869) (23,548)
Income tax expense s Hif = 13 (3,242) (6,924)
Loss for the year REEEIE 14 (15,111) (30,472)
Other comprehensive income: Hit2mEE :
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T & EF S IE Bk 2 HE -
Gain on investment property revaluation, net of & & ¥ E B (HUES - HIBRIELE
deferred tax AL = 29,157
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit EREBMRARSE 2B
pension plans s 659 971
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: A RER EFT PR E 1B K 2R
H :
Exchange differences on translating foreign BMEBINEBEEZERZ5
operations (8,486) (54,106)
Other comprehensive income for theyear, AEEHMEEUZE @ NBRHFHE
net of tax (7,827) (23,978)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEEkAEMEE WG
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-A=-+—HLEFE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —F-—
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Liks3 FERT FAET
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ ANEEZ2HE NI AEE (22,938) (54,450)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTATEERFERIE
Owners of the Company ZAN/NETEZ SN (15,111) (30,472)
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATEEREFEZERZE
attributable to: -G
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ R = DN (22,938) (54,450)
Loss per share SREE 18
Basic BN (HK cent 0.75) (HK cents 1.52)
(0.75)78 4l (1.52)7 A1l
Diluted By N/A N/A
TEA 3 FA
CEI=FFR AREEYRBEERAR
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At 31 December 2023
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2023 2022
—E-=F —_F_—
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
e FHET FAET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ BB MG 19 239,974 197,046
Investment properties WEYZE 20 217,688 228714
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 21 30,676 41,086
Goodwill EES 22 25,158 25,678
Deposits for purchase of property, BEME BMELAREZES
plant and equipment - 236
Retirement benefits plan assets RIKEFET B EE 33(b)(iv) 1,391 700
Deferred tax assets RIETRIB A &= 32 14,262 13,949
529,149 507,409
Current assets REBEE
Inventories B 24 77,614 98,831
Trade and other receivables B 5N E A U AR 5K 25 98,628 97,179
Contract costs BHIRKAR 26 238 281
Bank and cash balances RITRIRESETT 27 166,805 168,609
343,285 364,900
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 A HEE%’K 28 88,715 106,531
Amount due to a related party JE < — (7 BB 75 IR 42(b) 241 493
Contract liabilities EHBE 30 19,639 16,810
Borrowings (EES 29 168,309 113,842
Lease liabilities HEAE 31 3,428 5,566
Current tax liabilities BIHATRIE B & 3,028 7,535
283,360 250,777
Net current assets REBEEFE 59,925 114,123
Total assets less current liabilities EAEERGABES 589,074 621,532




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE PR RE

At 31 December 2023

RZEZ=F+=A=+—H
2023 2022
—E_-= —E-=
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET AT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings (EES 29 3,498 6,024
Lease liabilities HEaRE 31 11,052 18,046
14,550 24,070
NET ASSETS EEFE 574,524 597,462
Capital and reserves B R
Share capital [fN 34 200,210 200,210
Reserves s 374,314 397,252
TOTAL EQUITY B 574,524 597,462

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 February 2024 and are signed on its

RoT-_ME_A-+_RAEESeHE X

behalf by: HUATREESE :
Dr. LEI Chien Mr. LIN Chia-Wei
EfEELT MRERE

TEIFER BRAREMNEARLT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_T-_=F+-_A=-+—HLEFE
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Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRREAEL
Remeasurement
Property of defined
Share Capital Share  Statutory Translation revaluation benefit  Retained
capital surplus ~ premium reserve reserve reserve  pensionplans  earnings Total equity
nEEt ERRAEKE
Ra  EABH  ROEE  iERG  EXGR ff FHZENGE RERN EREE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Thr Tin T Thr T Tin Thr TEr  TEx
(note 34)  (note 36(b)())  (note 36(b)i) ~ (note 36(d)il)) ~ (note 36(b)(v)  (note 36(b)v)
(ks (HoaEsnn)  (atsell) (Rszseolin) (Metasoli) (BtiE3sibiv)
At January 2022 R=F-—%-P-A 200210 42554 35010 179720 113274 - 1718 85432 657918
Total comprehensive income TEREEYESE
forthe year - - - - (54,106) 29157 9 (30472) (54450)
Dividend paid (note 17) EfREMEE) - - (6,006) - - - - = (6006)
Transfer to statutory reserve SETEERE - = = 3% = = = 399) =
Changes in equity for the year RERERED - - (6,006 3% (54106) 29157 o1 08I0 (60456)
At31 December 2022and i S 2 p |
1 January 2023 _+ AR
“E-=%-8-A 200210 4554 29004 180,118 59,168 9157 2689 54,562 597462
Total comprehensive income TERREYESS
forthe year - - - - (8,486) - 659 (1511) (22938)
Dividend paid (note 17) BftkE (Wik7) - - - - - - - - -
Transfer to satutory reserve BRELTHE = = = 330 = = - (330 -
Changes in equity for the year TEEREEY - - = 30 (8486) = 659 15MT (22939
At31 December 2023 RZFI=EZR
=+-A 200,210 42,554 29,004 180,448 50,682 29,157 3,348 39121 574,524
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=—Ft+_A=t—HLFE

2023 2022
—Z:== P
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R ZEBE-BEERE
Loss before tax R Al 1R (11,869) (23,548)
Adjustments for: HTINEIERE
Interest income FEA (1,508) (1,654)
Finance costs BhE AR 12 8,131 4343
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% -~ BiE M RETE 20,981 23514
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEREEBE
equipment 98 428
Loss on derecognition of intangible asset RIEERBEEZBE - 5,147
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties &% 2 AN FEEE, (W) 5,764 (1,346)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 5,669 10,362
(Gain)/loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFREEE 2 (W), i (101) 176
Gain on rental concessions HEREL = (429)
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EH = 423
Allowance for slow-moving inventories HIHE BB 873 7,330
Inventories written-off FEmMsE 2,868 5,656
Impairment loss, net of reversal on trade BAEEE (R E 5 e AR 5
receivables @) 10 (4,076) 4,715
Impairment loss on goodwill e REBE = 2,133
Operating profit before working capital changes %38 & & B B il 2 48 & 3% 7l 26,830 37,250
Decrease/(increase) in inventories ﬁaﬁi’] () 16,509 (1,013)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 R H A [ U AR RO > 1,018 19,718
Decrease in contract costs G IR AR 36 14
Decrease in trade and other payables 5’3%&%@‘&“1#55 SR (16,095) (23,257)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due FETRARE A B GRA),1E hn
to related parties (250) 2
Increase in contract liabilities AHaEE N 3,234 4418
Decrease in retirement benefit obligation RINENEERL (48) )
Cash generated from operations CEEBMB 2R 31,234 37,130
Income tax paid ERFTEH (8,398) (24,283)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEMNE (1,112) (1,289)
Net cash generated from operating activities BEEBFE 2 RS FEE 21,724 11,558
“TI=FF% BAEXLEYREERAT
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2023 2022
—Z:== P
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
P 5T FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBFIE2RERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  BERRE (69,116) (44,309)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plantand ~ HEWE MENRKREZ
equipment FriSsk1E 1 329
Decrease in pledge bank deposits BERPRITIFFRD - 3,556
Interest received B U F 8 1,508 1,654
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFTAZHSFE (67,607) (38,770)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEBFIEzRERE
Repayment of borrowings BEER (54,757) (22,062)
Borrowings raised EE£ER 109,101 53,222
Principal elements of lease payments HEMR AL (4,697) (7,057)
Bank loan interest paid BERITERF B (7,019) (4,886)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BENARATEE AKRE - (6,006)
Net cash generated from financing activities BERBAMF 2R EFE 42,628 13211
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRASEEYHI FHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,255) (14,001)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREE) s & 1,406 (9,873)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—A—BAZzRERELEEY
1 JANUARY 160,592 184,466
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RT=ZA=+—HzREREREE
31 DECEMBER ZEY 158,743 160,592
ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND CASH ReRBESEEYSH
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRESETF 27 166,805 168,609
Less: Time deposits with maturities of over B ZEAN E—FATREZ
three months but less than one year TFEHFR (8,062) (8,017)
158,743 160,592
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRS EwRAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=—Ft+_A=t—HLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered office is P.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is 5/F, Manulife Place, 348 Kwun
Tong Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December 2023,
Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A, Insbro Holdings Limited and
Next Focus Holdings Limited are substantial corporate shareholders of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. R REEITEBHBR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS £ 2EH

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2023 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

R REEBITEBMBR
&R
BEGEVBHERET - A5ECH
REAN-_ZT-_=F—H—Hs2x
% AR EEBRREHNERNBRSE
B ASRAENE BT HHRE
R a0 MERT

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
ERGFERFE S BB Bk %R BEEECR
BB RNEE2HREE]

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

R BmEERFE175% RE 4

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

BB G ERIESHRAIERT AT ER

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

BB ERSE 125k HEET HE - HELNEENRABERBONRIENREA

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform = Pillar Two Model Rules

— Amendments to HKAS 12

BEGRTERIZ 12 AERT BRBREAE - X RAEA - BB ST EANE 125RMERT

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” for the
first time in the current year. HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity's
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. If an entity
chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements”
(the "Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on
the Group's financial positions and performance but has affected
the disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”
for the first time in the current year. The amendments narrow the
scope of the initial recognition exemption to exclude transactions
that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences — e.g.
leases.

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
“International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 12 “International
Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules” for the first time in the
current year. HKAS 12 is amended to add the exception to
recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax assets
and liabilities that are related to tax law enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
(the "Pillar Two legislation”). The amendments require that
entities apply the amendments immediately upon issuance and
retrospectively. The amendments also require that entities to
disclose separately its current tax expense/income related to Pillar
Two income taxes in periods which the Pillar Two legislation is in
effect, and the qualitative and quantitative information about its
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the Pillar
Two legislation is enacted or substantially enacted but not yet in
effect in annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

The Group is yet to apply the temporary exception during
the current year because the Group’s entities are operating in
jurisdictions where the Pillar Two legislation has not yet been
enacted or substantially enacted. The Group will disclose known
or reasonably estimated information that helps users of financial
statements to understand the Group’s exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
when the Pillar Two legislation is enacted or substantially enacted
and will disclose separately current tax expense/income related to
Pillar Two income taxes when it is in effect.
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Revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
standards and interpretation that have been issued but not yet
effective:

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAH T RKETEBIEHR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) o4

(b) EHEMEEKRERZEETE

B EEREER
AEEY HBIRFERANTERME
RIARERZ BRI Z ER] ) 2 ¥

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT Bz &Rz g5
il

Amendments to HKAS 1 = Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
BEAGTEUNERNES - KABIBEARIDKIERE
Amendments to HKAS 1 = Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
BEAGENE1REE] - MmN IERB B E

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback
BEAMBHREENF 16RNER] -ERERFNHEEAR

1 January 2024
—F-WFE—-—A—H
1 January 2024
—ZE_ME—-HA—H
1 January 2024
—T-NFE—-A—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined by the HKICPA

an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BEAVBREENE 10N REBGAERFE2RNEF] - REEHE
B nmadbEC B EERESTE
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause (“HK Int 5 (Revised)”)
EEREESREEDMBBRENZ2S] - ERXRAHBEAIEREXK
ERIERNTEREFN D R(EEREE S5 BN
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 = Supplier Finance Arrangements
BB ERBSRE N B BV B HmEERE7ROER] - HEBRE H
Amendments to HKAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability
BB GTERE2RAERT - RS AT M

Except for the amendments to standards mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other amendments to HKFRSs will not have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

BREERIHARETE

1 January 2024
—ZT-NME—-F—H
1 January 2024
—T-NNFE—A—H
1 January 2025
—ZE-RF—A—H
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
(b) Revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current” and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants” (the “2022
Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as
current or non-current, which:

clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the liability
within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments
have been modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which an entity
is required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting
period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date. Covenants which
are required to comply with only after the reporting period do not
affect whether that right exists at the end of the reporting period.
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
(b) Revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current” and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants” (the “2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if
an entity classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those
liabilities is subject to the entity complying with covenants within
twelve months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying
the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with
the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early application
permitted. If an entity applies the 2020 Amendments for an earlier
period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should
also apply the 2022 Amendments for that period.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the accounting
policies below (e.g. investment properties that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAEHHEER @)

(Conti
(a)

nued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
foreign currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investments. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to calculate
the goodwill.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of
CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwiill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing
the goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS") which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(i)  Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy
are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all foreign operation
(none of which has the currency of hyperinflation economy)
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company'’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)  Translation on consolidation (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as described below). Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(e)

BEXSTHEEN @

(e) % BERRE @

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write-off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Buildings

2.5% 5%

gx 2.5% — 5%

Leasehold improvements

ME - BERREABRER SR
A 5 A SF B IR R LA MU S B A AR
ERBEEMNLRGFENE - T8
FRMT :

The shorter of the unexpired period of the lease and

estimated useful lives of 3 =10 years

HEMEERE

RERBERE R AHERFIRE10F (AREE

Machinery

Hes

Motor vehicles

BB

Furniture, fixture and equipment

HKE KERRHE

RE)
10% ~ 20%
10% ~ 20%
12.5% — 20%
12.5% — 20%
7% = 50%
7% = 50%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and equipment pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant
assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

()

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured
at that time.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

A property is transferred to investment property when, and only
when there has been a change in use. Such change in use occurs
when the property meets the definition of investment property,
and there is evidence of a change in use. If an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, any difference between
its carrying amount and fair value at the date of change in use is
treated as revaluation in accordance with HKAS 16 Property, plant
and equipment and recorded in other comprehensive income.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is withdrawn from use. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an investment property is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 4(s) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(9)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value. When the Group enters into a lease in respect
of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAEHHEER @)

(Continued)
(g) Leases (Continued) (9 HE ®
(i)  The Group as a lessee (Continued) (i) ZAEBEREBAGE)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the relevant subsidiary, which does not have recent
third-party financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for the right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property
are carried at fair value in accordance with note 4(f).
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease.
In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16. In such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative lease payments in profit or loss in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
rent concessions occurred.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i

Leases (Continued)

(ii)  The Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a
customer which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or less from the date
of initial recognition of the asset, in which case the costs are
expensed when incurred. Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

()

Other contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate directly
to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract; generate or enhance resources that will be used to
provide goods or services in the future; and are expected to be
recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs that are incurred
only because the Group entered into the contract. Other costs
of fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as inventory,
property, plant and equipment or intangible assets, are expensed
as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the contract
cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration
that the Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate
directly to providing those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Conti

1)

nued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue
before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL") in accordance with the
policy set out in note 4(Il) and are reclassified to receivables when
the right to the consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(U

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

- Amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest method.

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
- recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and
the investment is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses ("ECLs"), interest
income (calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to profit or
loss.

- FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes
in the fair value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(U

(m)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOC], are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for credit losses.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAEHHEER @)

(Conti
(n)

(o)

(p)

nued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out in notes (g) to (s)
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of
loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an equity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic
products, health supplements, make-up products and beauty
apparatus directly to the franchisees or distributors is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the distributors and franchisees’ or
distributors specific locations (delivery). Following delivery, the
franchisee has full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the franchisee or distributors as
this represents the point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Under the Group's contract terms, franchisees have a right of return
or exchange of goods within an agreed period and amount. At the
point of sale, a refund liability and a corresponding adjustment to
revenue is recognised for those products expected to be returned
or exchanged. At the same time, the Group has a right to recover
the product when customers exercise their right of exchange or
return so consequently recognises a right to returned goods asset
and a corresponding adjustment to cost of sales. The Group uses
its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of
exchanges and returns on a portfolio level using the expected
value method. It is considered highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur given
the consistent level of exchanges or returns over previous years.

Revenue from the sale of skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic
products, health supplements, make-up products and beauty
apparatus through retail outlet is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases
the products at the retail outlet. Payment of the transaction price
is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the
products.

Revenue from skin treatment, beauty and spa services through
its self-owned spas and medical cosmetology services through
its self-owned medical beauty clinics is recognised over time as
the customers of the Group simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs. The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on an output method,
which recognises revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
the services.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI income (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net
of loss allowance) of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment are established.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as expenses in the
period in which it is incurred.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii)  Pension obligations
The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans.

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAEHHEER @)

(Continued)

(u) Employee benefits (Continued) (u) EEER &)
(i)  Pension obligations (Continued) iy RAREEE &)

Obligation for contributions to the local government of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

For the defined benefit retirement plans, the liability (asset)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of plan assets. When there is
a surplus in a defined benefit plan, the net defined benefit
asset is measured at the lower of the surplus in the defined
benefit plan and the asset ceiling. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
pension obligation. If there is no deep market in such bonds,
the market rates on government bonds denominated in that
currency are used.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) —
which include actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)), and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) — are
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Service costs and net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net defined
benefit liability or asset before plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and the discount
rate used to remeasure such net defined benefit liability or
asset, taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability or asset during the period resulting from
contributions or benefit payments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group can issue equity-settled share-based payments to

certain employees and others providing similar services. Equity-

settled share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors, employees and consultants.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured
at the fair value of the services rendered or, if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. The fair value is measured at
the date the Group receives the services and is recognised as an
expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation on rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Any specific borrowing
that remain outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intend use or sales included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowing.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(x)

(y)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
different to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and
at the time of transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Conti
(y)

nued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment properties are depreciable and
are held within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties is measured based on the expected manner
as to how the properties will be recovered.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(y)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised
and a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with
the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable
that the relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using
either the most likely amount or the expected value.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(z)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or that are
not yet available for use are reviewed for impairment annually
and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the goodwill
of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent
that they reverse the impairment.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAEHHEER @)

(Continued)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets

(aa) EREERIE

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
on trade and other receivables, contract assets and bank and
cash balances. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The
ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-
tanks and other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast economic

information that relate to the Group's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit

rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of

credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

B significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

0) the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade”
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
"performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Conti
(aa)

nued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

3 the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAEHHEER @)

(Continued)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(aa) TREERE (B

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written-off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information
as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure
includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down
in the future by default date determined based on historical trend,
the Group's understanding of the specific future financing needs
of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the excepted credit loss is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the expected credit losses is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance with
HKFRS 16.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

(ac)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL
at the current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the reporting
period are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described in
note 4, the directors are required to make judgements (other than those
involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised and to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements (apart
from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(@)  Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals and
another portion that is held for use in the production of goods.
If these portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production of goods. Judgement is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment property. The
Group considers each property separately in making its judgement.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group's investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred tax for investment
properties, the directors have adopted the presumption that
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in accounting policy disclosed in note 4(ab), ECL
are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1
assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves
to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased, the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information.

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement date for
leases that include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the
Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements undertaken
and the importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in other
properties leases have not been included in the lease liability
because the Group could replace the assets without significant
cost or business disruption. See note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements for further information.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)

Determining the lease term (Continued)

The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event
or significant change in circumstance that is within the Group's
control. During the current financial year, no lease term has been
reassessed.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$3,242,000 (2022: HK$6,924,000)
of income tax was charged to profit or loss based on the estimated
assessable profits.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

Further, the cash flows projections, growth rate and discount rate
are subject to greater uncertainties in the current year due to
volatility in financial markets, including potential disruptions in the
Group’s operation.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2023 were approximately
HK$239,974,000 (2022: HK$197,046,000) and HK$30,676,000 (2022:
HK$41,086,000) respectively.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(©)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than the expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a
material impairment loss or further impairment loss may arise.

Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount rate are
subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the current
year due to volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions of the Group's operations.

The carrying amount of goodwiill at the end of the reporting period
was approximately HK$25,158,000 (2022: HK$25,678,000).

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed independent professional valuers to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the
fair values, the valuers have utilised methods of valuation which
involves certain estimates. The directors have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the methods of valuation and
inputs used are reflective of the current market conditions.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2023 was approximately HK$217,688,000 (2022: HK$228,714,000)
after recognition of the fair value loss of HKS$5,764,000 (2022: fair
value gain of HK$1,346,000) in the profit or loss during the year.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables based on the credit
risk of trade receivables. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is HKS77,415,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$1,096,000) (2022: HK$75,799,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$5,147,000)).

Allowance for inventories

The Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product basis at
the end of each reporting period, and recognised allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items that are no longer
suitable for use in production or trading. The management
estimates the net realisable value for such items based primarily
on the latest invoice prices, sales after year end and current market
conditions less all estimated costs and expenses necessary to
sell the products. As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount
of inventories, net of allowance for inventory of HK$23,291,000,
was HK$77,614,000 (2022: net of allowance for inventory of
HK$22,704,000, was HK$98,831,000).
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(9)

Actuarial assumptions on defined benéefit retirement plans
Accounting for defined benefit plans may be complex because
actuarial assumptions are required to measure the obligation and
the expense, with the possibility that actual results differ from the
assumed results. These differences are known as actuarial gains
and losses. Defined benefit obligations are measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method (“PUCM”), according to which the
Group has to make a reliable estimate of the amount of benefits
earned in return for services rendered in current and prior periods,
using actuarial techniques. In addition, in cases where defined
benefit plans are funded, the Group has to estimate the fair value
of plan assets. As a result, the use of the PUCM involves a number
of actuarial assumptions. These assumptions include demographic
assumptions such as mortality, turnover and retirement age and
financial assumptions such as discount rates, salary and benefit
levels. Such assumptions are subject to judgements and may
develop materially differently than expected and therefore may
result in significant impacts on defined benefit obligations.

The carrying amount of retirement benefit as at 31 December 2023
was HK$1,391,000 in assets (2022: HK$700,000 in liabilities).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange translations and other financial
instruments. The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to
the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group uses an internal credit system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 26% (2022: 29%) of
the total trade receivables were due from the Group's seven largest
customers as at 31 December 2023 and all of the customers are
located in the Mainland China and Taiwan (2022: Mainland China
and Taiwan).

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. Customers with significant outstanding balances
with gross carrying amounts of HK$315,000 as at 31 December
2023 were assessed individually (2022: HK$1,109,000).

The following table provides information about the Group'’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31
December 2023:
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The Group 2023
AEER=B==
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHERE=E RREAE EEEE
% HK$’000 HK$'000
% FHExT THET
Current (not past due) BIVEA (k81 HA) 0.59% 54,279 318
1180 days past due #ER1 2180 1.58% 19,916 314
181 — 360 days past due #HI1812360H 2.53% 3,516 89
More than 360 days past due %1 Hi#B #8360 H 12.37% 485 60
Assessed individually &l B FE 4 100% 315 315

78,511 1,096
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MERMREE @
(b) Creditrisk (Continued) (b) EERE (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) E 5 REWERR (B)
The Group 2022
REEBR_T__F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHRES 1B X IRMEBE S iE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% T FHT
Current (not past due) BRER (R0 EA) 4.79% 53,883 2,581
1-180 days past due #HI1Z=180H 5.23% 19,820 1,037
181 = 360 days past due #HI1812=360H 13.36% 3,599 481
More than 360 days past due 81 EfiEB #3608 30.18% 2,535 765
Assessed individually & 55 25.52% 1,109 283
80,946 5147

Mainland China 2023

FEAER=-Z==
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHAE B R BRE#&E E i8R
% HK$'000 HK$’000
% F#&xT FET
Current (not past due) BER (R0 ER) 0.34% 34,846 118
1 =180 days past due #HI1Z=180H 1.62% 15,978 259
181 = 360 days past due #HI181=360H 2.01% 3,339 67
More than 360 days past due I EfiBi8360H 12.37% 485 60
Assessed individually (ERIRRE - - -
54,648 504
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

6. EERER ®
(b) =ERE ()
B 5 ERER ()

Mainland China 2022
REARER=ZZT==

Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TR A X BREAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FHET T
Current (not past due) BRER (R0 EA) 1.23% 30,846 380
1 =180 days past due #ER1 2180 5.62% 16,299 916
181 = 360 days past due #HA1815360H 13.42% 3413 458
More than 360 days past due 81 BB #8360 H 3001% 2,529 759
Assessed individually (ERIERE = 826 -
53913 2513
Taiwan 2023

BER=-Z==F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEE=R BRI 42 E BERE
% HK$'000 HK$’000
% FHERT TET
Current (not past due) BER (R0 ER) 1.04% 19,204 200
1 =180 days past due EHR1E180H 1.53% 3,587 55
181 = 360 days past due #HA1815360H 37.50% 8 3
More than 360 days past due 1 #iB 38360 H = = =
Assessed individually (BRI 100% 315 315
23,114 573
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HHAMERE ®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERE (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) B S EBERR (B)
Taiwan 2022
AER-T_Z
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TR AR FRmEEE EiR RS
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FAET T
Current (not past due) BRER (R EA) 9.75% 22,584 2,201
1-180 days past due EHR1E180H 9.99% 1211 121
181 = 360 days past due EHR1812360H 44.44% 9 4
More than 360 days past due 81 i #8360 H 100% 6 6
Assessed individually & 55 100% 283 283
24,093 2615
Others 2023
HR—2_-=%F

Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEE=R BRI 42 (E BERE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FHERT FHET
Current (not past due) BER (R0 ER) - 229 -
1 =180 days past due EHR1E180H = 351 =
181 — 360 days past due BER 18123608 11.24% 169 19
More than 360 days past due 1 #iB 38360 H = = =
Assessed individually ERIRRE - - -
749 19
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HHAMERE ®
(b) Creditrisk (Continued) (b) EER (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) B S EBERR (B)
Others 2022
HW—_T_—

Expected Gross carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

TEHAES 1B X IRMEBE BB

% HKS$'000 HK$'000

% TFHT FAET

Current (not past due) BNER (R HA) - 453 -

1-180 days past due #HR1E180H - 2310 =

181 — 360 days past due B HA1815360H 10.73% 177 19

More than 360 days pastdue 1 #ifB 38360 H = = -

Assessed individually (EIREE - - -

2,940 19
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the TEHEREDNENBTEF ZER
past few years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences BELR  ZFHEEEABNU
between economic conditions during the period over which the B BT U SR 3 1T Bk b K 2 HAfE 2
historical data has been collected, current conditions and the KERREZR - BERIRARAEER
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the HEWRRTET TR 2 &BERRZ
receivables. The grouping is reqularly reviewed by management to RR - BESADNTHHEERESE
ensure relevant information about specific customers is updated. B UEREHEETEFEHDEE

e
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. EERER ®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER (&)

Trade receivables (Continued)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

B 5 RIRR (8)
AEEBFREERZ BRBERFR
HEnT

2023 2022
—B-=F —E -

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

At 1 January ®n—AH—H 5,147 582
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses REERERHCRERRE),

recognised for the year, net RIESE - 358 (4,076) 4,715

Exchange differences PE N ZE%R 25 (150)

At 31 December W+Z—A=+—H 1,096 5,147

The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts of
trade receivables contributed to the decrease in the loss allowance
during 2023:

- origination of new trade receivables net of those settled
resulted in a decrease in allowance of HK$4,076,000 (2022:
increase HKS$4,715,000).

Financial assets at amortised cost

All of the Group's financial assets at amortised cost are considered
to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during
the period was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
Other instruments are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The directors
of the Company consider the ECL on these financial assets are
insignificant as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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BE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+—RIEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

6. EERER ®

(c) Liquidity risk () REEELREE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected RNEBZBXRATHERE I RE
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves HMeneE2FRE  RMERAS

of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group's bank borrowings
and other financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Company can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, that

B4 R IR AR R

TRINTAEBRITERLE S
BMEENRE RS BERKRR
RASRE(BREAGHN XX
(fisl R F BYF ) BN & BRI A E
BeRTANRFENNEMT) A
ARA AR B RN R RF B H
HIRIERE K EIHIHE -

AREME - S RERERGERK
(AT RITREBITITE) WIRTTE
RME > AR RIEERAEE
5K & 23R8 (BN i & SR AT 12

HA (G (RN 7 BN 18] & 3R Th
EMHRESRL - HESRAENE
HADMREBIEK A RS -

is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call
the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other
financial liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment

dates.
Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows
HHBAN - RERRERA
Within Between Between Over
On demand 1year 1and2years 2to5years 5years Total
RER —-fR  -E@F WERF AENL #st
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THER THER TR
At31December 2023 R-EZ=%
+ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables BoRAMENER = 88,715 = = = 88,715
Amount due to related parties FERTEER 7R = 241 = = = 241
Borrowings &3 134,853 33,456 3,498 = = 171,807
Lease liabilties BERE - 3,737 4,215 3,203 4,101 15,256
At 31 December 2022 R-B_—F
+-ZA=1-H
Trade and other payables BH REMERER - 106,531 = = = 106,531
Amount due to related parties JEfI B A 50 < 493 = S S 493
Borrowings fEx 104,503 9,544 2,664 3534 S 120245
Lease liabilities REGR - 6,282 6703 5614 7210 25809
STI=FER AREEYREERAT 159
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BE

—F=

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
contained above. Taking into account the Company's financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

6.

BEERER @

(c)

RBESEME (#)
TRBAMSERERERFROR
TREFRRIBER GRS Z HEE
RERRELZFHELT - BH
CHEEEERAONEFEZANE
[5K e Bt WESERR L
FHAMBE WP IRER S HEEE
PRI S8 o st RARBZHHE
AR EERR|ITTAFRERTT
2R EROEITE - EEH
& AERTEASEREBEERD
mTE  REERBMMmMER

Maturity Analysis - bank borrowings subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

A2 -RER

EBRZERREBRARBTHER

Total
Within Between Between undiscounted
1year 1and2years 2to5years cash outflows
REREE
—£R —EmME MERE e okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FAET
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=fF
+=A=+-AH
Borrowings AR 160,814 9,915 - 170,729
At31 December 2022 i —
+-A=+-H
Borrowings AR 41,387 69,331 = 110,718
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. UBEREE @
(d) Interest rate risk (d)  FIZ=E
The Group has limited exposure to interest rate risk because the REBAZ 2FERBER - HHE
Group has no interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities other BN EIRTT AT RIRTTE A
than bank balances and bank borrowings. The future variations in SNET RS REE,BF - BRA
interest rates will not have a significant impact on the results of SEEFESHERITEFHBERH
the Group, as the Group's variable-rate bank balances are all short- ME - BRRFZEE) KT
term in nature. Therefore, no interest rate sensitivity analysis is REBEBREBETREATE - Bt -
presented. B2 F RN GPRE DT o
Other than the bank balances as mentioned above, the Group's Br EiSRITEETTIN + ANEE 2 T 8
fixed time deposits bear interest at fixed interest rates and FRIREEMEGE - WARZ R
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks. FEMERE R
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December: e M+t-A=+—HZzE&®MIA
HH
2023 2022
—=E—= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Financial assets: EREE:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost BB EC SREE 252,614 249,717
Financial liabilities: SRIEME:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEKAVERE . 2mB R 260,763 226,890
(f)  Fairvalues f) DEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial REBNEGRE B TR AR
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial ZeRmEERERBEREAMBEER
position approximate their respective fair values. EBRATEMEE -
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7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AVERE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to NP EETS2EEZENRGER &

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants EFRSPEEEEMSEIMEREEE

at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value BEAER - TXAFEFEZHE

measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels BERERBFTEATEMAMBELTEZ

the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value: WABBREREA=TER 2ATERER
i

Level 1inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F-REA AEERFERHUERZIER
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access g BEFEENTRTBORECK
at the measurement date. RHE) -

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level FRHA RE-RALEREDINEESK
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either g BEEEYHABETER CBAY
directly or indirectly. &

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. B=RHA BEELEETIBEEZHAH

g i

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any AEEBZBEDERA=ZEARERPEZ S

of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances BER SHIBEREHERAZHEAR

that caused the transfer. g o

(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 @ RT+-—A=+—B2AFEERX

December: EBzHEBEER
Fair value measurements using: Total
DR EFERA gt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2023
F—& F-& F=&k —EB-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTExT TERT FTERT

Recurring fair value BREMEATETE:
measurements:

Investment properties (note 20) &% & ¥ (K 7E20)

- Commercial units = Taiwan -EHEEM-BE = = 10,463 10,463
- Industrial buildingsand land -~ TEREEK i

~Mainland China - R A RE = = 207,225 207,225

- - 217,688 217,688
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7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@ R+=-—BA=+—HAFEER

December: (Continued)

7. AVEFE ®

ERZBEER @

Fair value measurements using: Total

NEEFERA st

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022

£/ E) 2= —T-_—F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAHAT FHT TR FAT
Recurring fair value REMATETE

measurements:

Investment properties (note 20) &% & ¥ (BT 7E20)

- Commercial units — Taiwan -HEEL-RE - = 9917 9917
- Industrial buildingsand land -~ TEREEK i

~Mainland China - RERRE - - 218,797 218,797

- - 28714 28714

“TI=FF% BAEXLEYREERAT
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVEEE@®
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based b) BREE=FBRAFEIFEZE
on Level 3: =)
Investment
Investment properties
properties - Mainland
Description - Taiwan China Total
REYE REYE
3t -A8 - B KBE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2022 )‘5’3_ T _F—H—H 9,532 = 9,532
Total gains or losses recognised in profit 718 25 FERR A U 25 8k
or loss (#) iR ARER W 1,346 - 1,346
Additions for the year FRRNE
~ Transfer from property, plant and -BWE - KERHZE
equipment B = 124,915 124915
~ Transfer from right-of-use assets -BEAREEERE = 27,058 27,058
- Construction costs - FEERAN = 29,018 29018
— Revaluation gain recognised in other  — R E b & [ U 25 o #E 52
comprehensive income B E i iz = 38,876 38,876
Exchange difference fEHZ% (961) (1,070) (2,031)
At 31 December 2022 RIEZ—F
+=-—HA=+—H 9917 218,797 228,714

Total gains or losses recognised in profit 718 25 FERR A U 25 8k

orloss (#) EiREEE®) 482 (6,246) (5,764)
Exchange difference fEHZ% 64 (5,326) (5,262)
At 31 December 2023 R-F_=%F

+=A=+—H 10,463 207,225 217,688
(#) Include gains or losses for assets WEERNRERREE

held at end of reporting period BEMBER 482 (6,246) (5,764)
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including those RIERBER WS KB REE (R
assets and liabilities at end of reporting period are presented in the RZERREHHEERZEER
other income and other gains of the consolidated statement of BRE)EFEEEREMEEKE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. FOEMWEFFEZ25 -
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(c)

7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. D¥{EFTE @ B
Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group () BEAEEMEAKERRFNU
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value RRZZB-_=F5+=-A=1-—
measurements at 31 December 2023: HzAFEEMERGER
ERBABBHEEN
The Group's chief financial officer (“CFQO") is responsible for the fair AREB 7 EAERBE (8RBT
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial ENEEMEERMELEHARE
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The ZAEEE  BEE=ZLHATEE
CFO reports directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value HE EHEUBEEERNEESSE
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results are mZELNTEASA=E - EMKBEH
held between the CFO and the Board of Directors at least twice a ExeEa MNilmbERRE
year. HEMER -
For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally ME=H N NFEEAEMS ' XEEH
engage external valuation experts with the recognised professional — e @y R B R a EEE R Fi
qualifications and recent experience to perform the valuations. HEELCSR 2 (HEERETHE -
Level 3 fair value measurements F=RNFEFTE
Effect on fair value
Description Valuation technique  Unobservable inputs Range  forincrease of inputs Fair value
BAgBE MY
it fhER % TAEZHARE #8 ATEZEE AVE
2023 2022
“B-=f —ZT_-F
HK$'000 HK$000
THT TAT
Investment properties = Mix of direct comparison  Yield 191%  Decrease 10,463 9917
Commercial units = method and income (2022:1.88%)
Taiwan (note 20) ~ capitalisation method ) n
REME-BEEN  ERHBEEKAE  KEX 191% WD
- RiE(ME0) Mozéa (ZF==F 188%)
Monthly market rent HKS42239~  Increase
HK$43,829/ping
(2022: HKS40,723 -
HK$41,495/ping)
FATHEE 0RETE BN
8382987/ F
(ZBF 40738
41495787/ HF)
Investment properties = Income capitalisation ~ Yield 5-5.7%(2022:5-5.7%)  Decrease 207,225 218,797
Industrial buildingsand - method
land ~ Mainland China
(note 20)
RENE -TERER WABAE Wz % 557% B
it - PEAR (ZBZZF: 557%)
(Bf320)
Monthly market rent HK$33-41 persquare  Increase
meter per month
(2022: HKS43-45 per
square meter per month)
FAMSHE BEARGARET  EM

__RUETL
(ZF=F: BYHAEA
BETLE4ETL)

There were no change in the valuation technique used for the
above investment properties.

“EI=FF®R

ﬁg%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%% GONERIEES (iR
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8. REVENUE

(a) Disaggregation of revenue

8. WA
(a)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products and service lines for the year is as follows:

LN

AEERTIBERMMRGEESD
KEBFPEKZWARANT

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers A& & IR & X B 51555 50
within the scope of HKFRS 15 ARBEFEHZWA
Disaggregated by major products or RIZEMIRBEESE
service lines
Sales of goods BEmiHE 331,943 327,291
Service income AR5 M 2 4,072 8,589
336,015 335,880

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services
over time and at a point in time in the following major service lines

AEBNR T E2REEHE MR
B B ] Re S Ml B R B R B o %

and geographical regions: AR EE M -
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E -
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET

Primary geographic markets FTEHENS

Mainland China ERlCTPNS 238,391 222,748
Taiwan =) | 84,105 102,680
Others Ht 13,519 10452
336,015 335,880
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8. REVENUE (Continued) 8.

(a)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

WA @
(a) WABRMA (&)

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E-

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Timing of revenue recognition R WA Z R
Products transferred at a point in time REEREZERE R 331,943 327,291
Products and services transferred over time  FEBS 8% & 7 KRS 4,072 8,589
336,015 335,880

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December
2023 and the expected timing of recognising revenue as follows:

b) PTEEEZEFEHNNBRTENE
B2REE®
R-ZT-_=F+—-A=+—H %
FeEfp T CRIEEX I D R EE
M)BHERE 2R 5B KR

ABITERTEFRIAT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Within one year —FR 19,639 16,810
SEI=EER HAZEVNEBEERAT
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9. OTHERINCOME AND OTHER GAINS

Hib Wz M A 1S

2023 2022

—E== —E- 4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Interest income on bank deposits RITIF KA B WA 1,508 1,654

Compensation income B = 1,902

Exchange gains HNE W R - 2428

Rent concessions HERE - 429

Rental income from investment properties KEME A K 244 241
Rental income from other properties and Hin RE 2 el

equipment 2,537 2,390

Government grants (note) B BE () 464 1,541

Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets RILEREREEE 2 W 101 =

Others HAh, 3,029 2,008

7,883 12,593

Note: The government grants mainly represent unconditional tax refunds

10.

received from the local government in compensation for taxes incurred
and paid by certain subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China.
(2022: Local government in compensation for taxes incurred and paid
by certain subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China and
COVID-19 related subsidies to a Taiwan operating subsidiary provided by
the local government)

(REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES)/
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL

i BRS e EEASEETREA

REG A B AR ERFRE A BTN
EIRERBRENBEEEE R
MR o (ZTEZZF W BRFEA
EEETHEARESEHBAREL
REHNBANEELIRE—RAEE
BEWEBARESE B TRENTE
BIEAERERED )

10. OR{ERSIERE) R E R (0
BREE[E!)
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2023 2022
—s=-= —ZF-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment loss BB B ERCRESERE),/
recognised on: BIEEE ¢
Trade receivables B 5 W ARSK (4,076) 4,715
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three (2022: three) reportable segments as follows:

1. Mainland China
2. Taiwan
3. Others (Hong Kong and Malaysia)

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The Group’s other reportable segment includes certain inactive
operations. None of the segments meets any of the quantitative
thresholds for determining reportable segment. The information of the
other operating segments is included in the ‘others’ column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those
described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include central administration costs, directors’
salaries and interest income.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") makes decisions
according to operating results of each segment. No analysis of segment
asset and segment liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly
review such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and segment
results are presented.

S EMEH

AEBBUTZE( T =_—F : ={@)
ATREDED
1. FREARE

=Y

Hip (BB RERAD)

ANEE 2 A 3% D E R IRE TR E &
RS 2 SRS EISEA - ARNBEBTE
TR R & RS WIRET D RE
TR -

AEBO R T ] D PEEE T
HEH - HEHBUREIAIERT
=D WL BICPIE - REHMEED
42 ERTR 0] -

RED Mz gt RS B % MR M
FE4FTALE R o DRRBRE T BIEPRIT
BER ESHMEFNSWA -

TELERARA(EEZEEREADR
BEOMOCERBEHRE - R E
BEERRAALARRERD B RFFER
EMBEMTERERNZETEN  HALE=2
SINFEERDEABHDON - Bt
B2 EBUWARDEBEE

=5
=
=

TEIFER BRAREMNEARLT
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 7HEHR @
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets ARESHzEE EEREEE
and liabilities: p
Mainland
China Taiwan Others Total
e EiPN =) | Hty st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FHET FET FET
Year ended 31 December BE-ZE-=
2023 +=-A=+-—H
IEFE
Revenue from external customers 38 B 4MER% 5 2 A 237,750 84,746 13,519 336,015
Segment (loss)/profit o EB(E5HR), (12,670) 4,578 4,508 (3,584)
Finance costs BB 7,681 335 115 8,131
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #)3 + BE &
and equipment RETE 16,729 4,046 206 20,981
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEERE
assets 2,906 2,096 667 5,669
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment Jt 2 W 98 = = 98
Loss on derecognition of right- 4% |- FERRfE FAHE A =
of-use assets 2 B8 101 = = 101
(Reversal of allowance)/ T E (B
allowance for slow-moving BE[), B
inventories (3,626) 4,874 (375) 873
Inventories write-off FE M 2,572 296 = 2,868
Reversal of allowance B SRR
for trade receivables e (1,976) (2,100) - (4,076)
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. &R @
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets ARESHzEE EEREEE
and liabilities: (Continued) @
Mainland
China Taiwan Others Total
B R B =) i) w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FAET FHET
Year ended 31 December BE-ZE—-C—
2022 +=A=+—8
IEFEE
Revenue from external customers 2R B 4N Z M A 222,045 103,053 10,782 335,880
Segment (loss)/profit o EB(E5HR), @ (25,342) 9,060 2,326 (13,956)
Finance costs BMERAR 3,805 430 108 4,343
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #13 - = K&
and equipment e 17,863 5,484 167 23514
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEERE
assets 6,799 3,033 530 10,362
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 72 & = ## 423 = = 423
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEWME - BRE &K
property, plant and equipment & 2 E518, (Mg z5) 449 2] - 428
Loss on derecognition of BIETEREREEE
right-of-use assets 2 518 176 = = 176
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) & f51F SR,
for slow-moving inventories (B fEHEE) 1427 6,434 (531) 7,330
Inventories write-off FEMH 4,945 266 445 5,656
Allowance for trade receivables & 5 & T BE & 2,105 2610 = 4715
Loss on derecognition of BIEREBREE
intangible assets ] 5,147 = = 5,147
Impairment loss on goodwill EESYEAEN S
(note 22) (F45E£22) 2,133 - - 2,133
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliations of segment revenue, profit or loss and

. THER @

DHMBA BEREEHRK:

assets:
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Revenue ON
Total revenue of reportable segments Al o EP AR A 336,015 335,880
Profit or loss B#
Total loss of reportable segments Al E D H AR e (3,584) (13,956)
Unallocated corporate expenses RABARZL (9,793) (11,246)
Unallocated income Aol 1,508 1,654
Consolidated loss before tax BRI AIAR S SR (11,869) (23,548)
Geographical information: HIRE R
The Group’s information about its non-current assets by location of assets AEBREEMEMEIDHERDEE
are detailed below: ZEBFBEEIMT
2023 2022
—EB-=F —EF -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Mainland China LAETPN3 454,953 424,941
Taiwan = 58,121 66,317
Others HAh, 1,813 2,202
Consolidated total RE KRR 514,887 493,460

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.
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11.

12.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 2EHER @
Revenue from major customers: %QIE@?ZWAi
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Customer A ZPA 19,082 30,116
Customer B =FB 6,494 =
Customer C BFC 2,465 13,103
Each of the major customers represented a single external customer EXERXPEEIINEEP - HIHER
whose sale transaction is generated from the Group's Taiwan segment. SEENAEEREST
FINANCE COSTS 12. MEKA
2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E- 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Interest on borrowings & RFE 7,019 4,886
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note 21) BEE GRS FHE21) 1,112 1,289
Total borrowing costs RIS 8,131 6,175
Amount capitalised ﬁ${|ﬁ$%§ - (1,832)
8,131 4,343
“TI=FF% BAEXLEYREERAT
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FIfEHAX
Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows: ERERERZFEHAT
2023 2022
—EBE=F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax (‘EIT")  BIERF{IE - R B EATEHR
([ZFRER)
Provision for the year FNRE 1,001 =
Over provision in prior years BAFERERE = (181)
1,001 (181)
Current tax — Taiwan Corporate income tax BVER®ITE - 8B EFT1S
Provision for the year FREME 2,115 3,736
Over provision in prior years BIFERERE (424) (545)
1,691 3,191
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax and others ~ BNERFE 18 - BB FISH M E A
Provision for the year FNRE 1,000 =
1,000 -
Withholding tax TERR 179 10,805
Deferred tax (note 32) EIERIE (M17E32) (629) (6,891)
3,242 6,924

PRC EIT has been provided at a rate of 25% (2022: 25%). The statutory
withholding income tax rate for non-PRC resident is 10% (2022:10%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Taiwan,
dividend withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 10% (2022: 10%) and
21% (2022: 21%) on dividends that are declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries respectively and that are
received by non-local resident entities. No withholding tax on dividends
(2022: HK$752,000) and HK$10,287,000 (2022: Nil) were recognised for
the PRC and Taiwan respectively for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan has been provided at a rate of 20% (2022:
20%).

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HKS2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity established in Hong Kong will be taxed at
8.25% (2022: 8.25%), and profits above that amount will be subject to
6.5% (2022: 16.5%). The profits of the group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime will continue to be
taxed at a rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).

the tax rate of 1

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group's subsidiaries
operate, based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in
respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of
loss before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as follows:

13. FRIf8®iBAZ @)

BEMCERMEHRIZ20%( - =
20%) Bt TR AR o

RIBEMAFEHEE  EEBKRILHE
EIREEE B2 A E 2,000,000 7T K 15
#825%(ZF = —F : 825%) T REF
M EENENGIEI65%(ZF =
T 16.5%) BT o FRARF S B
ETHEERSEER R BEER
165%( =2 = Z4F : 16.5%) T K EH o

ANEEE 2 B E A b 18 AT EE A R SR B A

RIFETHBE AR EEMERNEER
BBEMERED - 2BRED - ERT

BERFTERIBELH -

FriS i T R AT S IE RAP B %
TSR R 2 EREROT -

2023 2022
—EB-=F —EF -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loss before tax bR RTS8 (11,869) (23,548)
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% (2022: 25%) RP BB EEHRTE25%
(=% EWﬁ S IR (2,967) (5,887)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible DAMHIF T H 2 B 5 2,215 2,481
Tax effect of income that are not taxable BART WG 2 RIE (1,852) (654)
Tax effect on deemed sale of gift item RIEE &S E}ﬁRfl’kE/ z 626 237
Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed earnings 5 B8 AR B RFE K2 & &K B AR 2
of the PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries RO KRB 2 BLEFIBEE 144 (3/456)
Tax effect of temporary difference and unused ~ REERE b =2 M A B A HIBEEIE
tax losses not recognised 2B E 6,553 8,162
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not previously B %t Al & FER R B E 18 2 B 15
recognised T (1,042) (2,836)
Over provision in prior years BEFERERE (424) (726)
Withholding tax on income earned by non- ERE BB AR TEINT
resident entities 179 10,805
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MEBRARTRME B2 (157) (1,191)
Others Hh (33) (amn
Income tax expense RS iR 3,242 6,924
“TI=FF% BAEXLEYREERAT
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14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 14. XFEFHE
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the AEBAFEEEBRE R, GEA) T3
following: BIA

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH = 423
Amortisation of contract costs A R AN 5E 36 46
Auditor's remuneration for audit services ZE AN B SRS A B &

- Audit services - ZE RS 2,159 2111

- Non-audit services - IERBURTS 200 200
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for trade B SRR (B R E),#E

receivables (4,076) 4,715
Obsolete inventories write-off PREFEMH - (96)
Allowance for slow-moving inventories I BB E G AHEKA)

(included in cost of sales) 873 7,330
Inventories write-off (included in cost of sales) FEMEGT AEEKD) 2,868 5,752
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BEEREAT 2 FERAR 127,956 143,389
Direct operating expenses of properties and AIEAHSWEIMER

equipment that generate rental income REEELERY 456 478
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% « BiE LR EITE 20,981 23514
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (included in A EETE GTAHEEMAK

cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses 2 #§ R SRS RITHRES)

and administrative expenses) 5,669 10,362
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties  REM¥E 2 A FEEE, (W) 5,767 (1,346)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEME  BEIEEZEE

equipment 98 428
(Gain)/loss on disposals of right-of-use assets HEFERAEEE (Ke), B8 (101) 176
Advertising and promotion expenses BEE R R 19,611 13,285
Research and development cost AR 3,451 4428
Net exchange loss/(gain) bE H g 1R (Yas) F 5 53 (2,428)

BEFEXNABIEE THARN  FTERK
EHEEERL21,7380008T(Z ==
£ 128,703,000 7T) + WEEET AR KR
S -

Cost of inventories sold included staff cost, depreciation and operating
lease charges of approximately HK$21,738,000 (2022: HK$28,703,000)
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately.
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

15. ETHRANER

2023 2022
—E-=F k=S =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ B TEFIZER(BIEESHE) -
emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances - ?HE 109,105 128,924
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKTE ﬂ ‘|’2|H ERK
- Defined contribution plans - ERAERETE 9,035 10,800
- Defined benefit plan - EfEENEE 8 1
118,148 139,725
Five highest paid individuals hEEEFMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year ended rEBEHEE-_T-=F+=-A=+—H
31 December 2023, one (2022: one) was the chief executive whose FFEREEaRFMATHO—2(CE
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 16(a) to the TZF —R)ARIETHRAE  Efs
consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of the remaining RERE B HRKRM T 16() TP 9T A

four (2022: four) individuals are set out below: Jiﬂgi EHNEZ(ZZE_—_F IR A
TemT
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E - F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances #ﬁﬁ TEAT N =R E 6,247 6,637
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKE T‘J FTEIHER 266 220
6,513 6,857
The emoluments fell within the following band: HEMeBRT -
Number of individuals
AE
2023 2022
—E-= ="
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T 2 2,000,000/ 7T 2 2

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T = 1

RAFE  REBWESZNHERNTX
s EEkEM AR HMALZR
B {ERRS|EEMESIR MEREE
B2 52E) - SERBERE 2 fFE -
“EI=FF®R

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out below as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEEARER
(a) Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (a) EEHERETETHAE
The remuneration of each director and chief executive is set out BEERFETHRAB ZFH B
below: N
Employer's
contribution
Salariesand  Discretionary  toaretirement
Fees allowances bonus benefit scheme Total
ExH
RIER
ok FoREH WAL HE LofiE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2023 TEC=F TEx TER TER TER TER
Executive directors HiTES
Dr. LEI Chien (alias Joanna LE) EBEBL(ER)
(Chairperson) 1,000 = = = 1,000
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (alias lvan PAN) &3 %6 4 (FHEE()
(note (i) - - - - -
Mr. LIN Chia-Wei (notes (i) MRE 5 (L) 250 = = = 250
1,250 - - - 1,250
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BRFEEE 370 = = = 370
Ms. LU Yu-Min (alias Vicky LU) B R 2+ (B &)
(note (iii)) 941 - - - 941
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WREL LT 240 = = = 240
1,551 - - - 1,551
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BmkE L E
(alias Steve CHEN) 370 - - - 370
Mr. LU Chi-Chant (note (i) BB KA () - - - - -
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien BgLE 370 = = = 370
Mr. LIN Tslam-Hsiang WER A=)
(alias William LIN) (notes (i) 370 - - - 370
1,110 - - - 1,110
Total directors' emoluments EE 3,911 - - - 3,911
Chief executive officer THER
Ms. LIN Yen-Ling (note (v)) WIS 23 (F 3T (v)) S 2,660 421 28 3,109
Total for 2023 “E-EE 3911 2,660 421 28 7,020
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

16. EE/AIRELR @)

Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (Continued) (a) ESMHEREETHAE (B
The remuneration of each director and chief executive is set out FEERFETHAB ZFHME
below: (Continued) W (8
Employer's
contribution to
Salaries and Discretionary a retirement
Fees allowances bonus  benefit scheme Tota
BEY
RIKER
ik FeRozgt s SRR @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
2022 ZECCE TET FAT TAT FAL THAL
Executive directors HITEZE
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson) EREEL(ER) 1,000 = = = 1,000
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (alias Ivan Pan) B LA (EE0)
(note (i) 250 - - - 250
1,250 - - - 1,250
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BrExsE 600 - - - 600
Ms. LU Yu-Min EmRERT 1,051 = = = 1,051
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WRZEL+ 240 = = = 240
1891 - - - 1891
Independent BUFYTES
non-executive directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BmkE L E 370 = = = 370
Mr, LU Chi-Chant (note (i) BREE AN 370 = = = 370
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien gL E 370 = = = 370
1,110 - - - 1,110
Total directors' emoluments R 4251 S S S 4751
Chief executive officer THER
Ms. LIN Yen-Ling (note (iv) RIS 2t (PEE(v)) = 2905 443 28 3376
Total for 2022 —EoCEm 4,51 2,905 443 28 7627

“EI=FF®R
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEEFIR#ERE @

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (Continued) (a)
Notes:

(i) Mr. PAN Yi-Fan Ivan (alias lvan Pan) and Mr. LU Chi-Chant were
resigned as Directors of the Company on 1 January 2023.

(i) Mr. LIN Chia-Wei and Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang were appointed as
Directors of the Company on 1 January 2023.

(iii) Ms. LU Yu-Min (alias Vicky LU) was resigned as Director of the
Company on 1 January 2024.

(iv)  Ms. LIN Yen-Ling was appointed as Director of the Company on 1
January 2024.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments during the year (2022: Nil).

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (b)

arrangements or contracts

Save as otherwise disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Directors’ Interest in Contracts of Significance”

of this Annual Report, there are no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business

to which the Company was a party and in which a director of

the Company and the director's connected party had a material

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

EEMERFTETHRAE B)
B3

) BENEERERELREN_ZT
=5 A HEBEARAE
=

i MREEERMEFLEER-F
= —-R—REZEREART
B=-

(i BERMRZLIR-_ZT-_MNF—A—
BBIARRES -

vy MEmBELZLTR-_ZT_NMF—A—
HEZEAAARES -

FR TBTRABREFNES
MERREREMHS (T -
FiE) -

EERRG  REHHEHNZE
RS
BAFEHRIBAEXHREETNEK
BRIZER]—EBRTTHREEN
RERRFAEMESELEFET
MARABRIMARRERERE
BMBEALTERSAEEREAERAER
HBEAEEXBER I EMEARR
5 RHEREH

17. DIVIDENDS 17. BB
2023 2022
—EC=F —EF-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
2023 Final of HKS$nil (2022: Final of HK$0.003) per I E @I — T - =FRHRE
ordinary share ZBAT(CEF - REKRE
000378 7T) = 6,006
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17. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2023,
a final dividend of HK$0.003 per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2022 was declared to be payable to the owners of the
Company. The aggregate amount of the final dividend amounted to
approximately HK$6,006,000 is recognised as dividend payable as of 30
June 2023 (2022: HK$6,006,000).

18.

No dividends have been paid or proposed during the year ended 31

December 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
the reporting period.

LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HKS$15,111,000 (2022: HK$30,472,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary share of approximately 2,002,100,932 (2022:
2,002,100,932) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 is presented as the Company had no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding.

17.

18.

BRE @
R-ZE—=FERA=-+RHBBEAZAR
ARREFAE L ARFAREE=-Z
T+ - A=t+—BHI-FETREN
TR EIHEE AR KRR B ER%0.003%8
TG ° RERAR B 48 % 496,006,000/ TTIA =
T =—FNA=tHHERAEEMEE (=
T =~ : 6,006,000587T) °

BE-_T-_=-F+-A=1+—HLFE
N WARIMNREREMRS - BRE
HEE RAR IR Z AR S -

BREE

(a) BREFREHE
BREABEDIREAARES
ANEEARFEEEEL15111,0008
T(ZE = —4 : 30,472,000/ 7T)
RFEANBDBEITEBR 2 MEFY
E#492,002,100,9320 (= FE = —
2,002,100,9320%) 5t & -

BREEREF
HEZE-_=FR-_FT-__F+=
A=+—H1FE  BRAREW
BETHEIINZEEEELTRRK - &
W25 SRS EE -

(b)

TEIFER BRAREMNEARLT
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. Y% - MERRE

Freehold Leasehold
land  Buildings improvements
KARE BEYZ

14 gF )
HSOO  HSO0 HS00
TEL  TEL TER

Furniture,
Motor fixturesand  Construction

Machinery vehides e uipmenﬁp in progress Total

#3 %E BB ERIE 3

HOOO  HSOW0 HSOW HKSOD0 SO
ThL TEL ThT TEL ThT

Cost ﬁﬂi

At January 2022 T::ﬁ B-4 18652 196067 55977 018 338 111792 181,307 609,41
Additons BE = = 205 m 255 10841 30785 4309
Construction expendture capialised SZM LERRX - - - - - - 183 183
Disposdls e - - (930) o (169) (2894 = (402)
Tiansfer g - 54345 - - - 6 (4414 -
Transfer toinvestment propertes E e vEliRI)

(note 20) 5 - - - - - - (124919) (124915)
Exchange difference Eizs (17%) (1731) 17 (3139 B1) (12010) 0319 (57989)
At31 December 2022and 1 January 203 W=F=—F+-A=1-BR

Z3-=F-f-H 16857 W 55,128 905 3103 107,798 13276 468362
Additons KR = 1214 % 186! = 10530 44705 69346
Disposals i3 - - - - - (39 - (39
Witeoff ik - - (095) (14 - (11317 = (1232
Tianglr g - - - 2561 - 1412 B97) -
Exchange difference ELEE % “731) 656 (3418) I B471) 17 (11286)
At31 Decernber 2023 RZFZ=F+ZA=1-A 16951 240588 54875 40015 3104 104933 53591 514057
Accumulated depreciation ZitfiE
At January 2022 R-Z-—&-f-A = 102,197 4930 3033 254 84946 = 14042
Charge forthe year QT - 52% 281 1529 15 13563 = 3514
Disposals ﬁ% - - (604) 2 (169 (2463) - (3263)
Exchange difference BHEE - 8623 (134 (2693 (0 (8.267) = (12977
At31 December 2022and 1 Januvary 03 5= —F+-A=+-BR

Z3-=%-f-H = %870 48465 EEk) 2380 87759 g M36
Charge for theyear R = 7067 1755 1073 5 10811 = 09%!
Disposals & - - - - - B9) - (39)
Wite of s - - 1%%) i) - (1229 - (131)
xchange diference EXER - (1969 (50) (2451) 4 (1583) = (5949
At31 December 2023 St g oy - 104069 Q175 32450 2659 85,730 = 274083
Carying amount KA
At31 December 2023 AZEZZE+A=1-8 16951 136519 5700 7565 445 19,203 53591 29974
At31 December 2022 RZEZZE+ZA=1-H 16857 134305 6663 518 m 20039 13276 197,046

At 31 December 2023, freehold land and buildings amounting to
approximately HK$16,951,000 (2022: HK$16,857,000) and HK$73,600,000
(2022: HK$69,498,000) respectively were pledged as security for the
Group's bank loan (note 29).
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20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out the investment properties under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to five years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the
end of lease term.

20. REWE

AEERBELLHEHEREME 1K
AgnnEE - HENIRERBRES—
ERF -

EHEZHT  BAXmMEHEOUEHE
ERCHEYERERE  HAKEL
BAZINERR HEANATEBEE
BEERE /FEBARBETEREES
YE P32

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
At 1 January R—A—H 228,714 9532
Additions during the year REARE
— Transfer from property, plant and equipment - B¥1% - B&E RREEA (Fi:E19)
(note 19) - 124,915
= Transfer from right-of-use assets (note 21) -BEAEEEE A FTE21) - 27,058
- Construction costs - i LA AN = 29,018
— Revaluation gain recognised in other - PREMEE RS BRI E G
comprehensive income - 38,876
Fair value (loss)/gains recognised in profit or loss R IBzE AP R A FE(EE) W (5,764) 1,346
Exchange difference EHER (5,262) (2,031)
At 31 December B+ZA=+—H 217,688 228,714

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at the end of
reporting periods were valued on a mix of direct comparison method
and income capitalisation method. The valuations were performed by
independent firms of chartered surveyors.

There was no change in the valuation approach for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022. The fair value of the Group's investment
properties is within level 3 of the fair value.

AEEREMERNBRERNRORFETD
NERLEERBABEROEGE A
B %FERHEABLHFHIEMTE

P

17 -

[

HE_T-_=-FR-_T-_-"F+=A=
+T-RAEFEZHERETEESS o X
’EI&EW%Z’AF&@E’AF&FE%&%
—REBEA o
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21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

21. FHAEESE

Leasehold Leased

lands properties Total

HELH HEWE st

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

FAT FAT FAT

At 1 January 2022 R-—ZE=-——_F—H—H 49,701 32,000 81,701
Additions BEAAN - 7,197 7197
Derecognition RIETER = (5410) (5410)
Depreciation e (1,210) (9,152) (10,362)

Transfer to investment properties e eSS =bEACIE D)

(note 20) (27,058) - (27,058)
Exchange differences PE N Z%E (3,777) (1,205) (4,982)
At 31 December 2022 and i S Sy |

1 January 2023 =+—8k

—2-=F—HA—H 17,656 23,430 41,086
Additions R - 923 923
Derecognition RIETER - (1,492) (1,492)
Depreciation ?ﬁ% (641) (5,028) (5,669)
Lease modification HEEET - (3,566) (3,566)
Exchange differences PEH Z%E (430) (176) (606)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZB_=4F

+=-—A=+—H 16,585 14,091 30,676

Lease liabilities of HK$13,733,000 (2022: HK$23,612,000) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$30,021,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: HK$41,086,000). The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

21. ERAEEE @

2023 2022
—E_= —EF-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEERE 5,669 10,362
Interest expense on lease liabilities BEAEMNE T HGAREXA)
(included in finance costs) (note 12) (B5E12) 1,112 1,289
Expenses relating to leases of low value assets B EIKEEEERENF S GFATT
(included in administrative expenses and BRI RS EMEERS)
distribution and selling expenses) 774 1,395
Expenses relating to short-term lease ERARMEENRY GEATTEAX
(included in administrative expenses and ROHREERR)
distribution and selling expenses) 2,219 2,770
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions received BRHERIEEBESESR = 429

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 38(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

For both years, the Group leases offices, factory plant and land for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of two
to ten years (2022: two to ten years). Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns an office building located in the PRC. The
Group is the registered owner of this property interest, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the land interest. The leasehold land components of this owned
property is presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use
assets related to leasehold lands of HKS$5,645,000 (2022: HK$6,060,000)
were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans (note 29).

HERSRHEARFBENGAHHBR
REFFE38(D) ©

PREFE  ALEHEHRAE - BE
R AEITEE - e HESR
VAP _E+F(ZE_—_F: =+
F) o MERTIREREEREITRER - W
BEZBTIEMERRES - RETHE
HERFTETTHE PR EER - A%
EREAAGHOTEE MNETAL RN
m%@°

AN AREBBER BN EARED
RFE - AEERSUYMEEDS (RN
MELTH) ZEMAEBA - SIEH—RE
BNFRARSLIES - LEAMELZ
HE T AEXE D IEERE R FEDRAE
HZ R EBZT o

R-_E-_=F+-_A=+—H K&
EEREETHWNERAEEEREE
5,645,000 7T (ZF = —4F : 6,060,000
T EEREARSERITER 2T R
(FF7E29) °
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22. GOODWILL

22, BHE

CGU for sale

of cosmetic
products in the
Mainland China

(the “CGU") Others Total
A B K B
HEAE
ZHREEE
Bu(RE
EEEBEN]) Hit et
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FAET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2022 R-—E-—&F—A—H 31,654 5,904 37,558
Exchange difference PEH Z% (2,212) (453) (2,665)
At 31 December 2022 and N—E—-—
1 January 2023 +ZA=+—Hk
—E-=F—H—H 29,442 5451 34,893
Exchange difference fE R ZE%E 612) = 612)
31 December 2023 MRIEZ=%F
+=-—A=+—H 28,830 5451 34,281
Accumulated impairment losses R REESE
At 1 January 2022 N-ZE-—F—F—H 4,076 3,869 7,945
Impairment loss for the year FRREEE - 2,133 2,133
Exchange difference fE R A58 (312) (551) (863)
At 31 December 2022 and A,
1 January 2023 +TZA=1t—8K
—2-=%F—H—H 3,764 5451 9,215
Exchange difference PEH Z%E (92) - (92)
At 31 December 2023 i
+-—A=+—8 3,672 5451 9,123
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2023 N_—E_—=
+=—A=+—8 25,158 = 25,158
At 31 December 2022 i —
+—-A=+—8 25,678 = 25,678
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22. GOODWILL (Continued)

In addition to goodwill, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and related working capital items that generate cash flows
together with the related goodwill are also included in the CGU for the
purpose of impairment assessment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses a discounted cash flow
method. Cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management covering a five-year period and cash flows over
five years using a growth rate of 2.22% (2022: 2.02%) and a discount
rate of 16.0% (2022: 15.2%). Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the unit's past performance and the management’s expectations
for the market development. The management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of this unit to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this unit.

The management of the Group determines that there is no impairment
for the CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU calculated based on value in use
exceeded its carrying value by HK$67,437,000. A decrease in gross margin
of from 58% to 55.9%, or a rise in discount rate from 16.0% to 18.8%, all
changes taken in isolation, would remove the remaining headroom.

22. B8 »®

HREFEHENTS @ BREEI 9
¥ BEEX fﬁ FERAREAERELER
EREMEHEEEESLEE  EREH
EE NG AR EE BN -

ReELBMNZ A NESBIZFERER
ATEHETE ZAERAUMBERAESRE=E
/f IEi/MLE%E/E‘JE*ETFEET’HZ/EZ
ﬁiﬂgﬁﬁ?{f'ﬁ%lﬂﬂﬂzfﬁimhgﬂﬁi
F22%ER(ZE=-—F 1 2.02%) &
16.0%EE IR (B = —4F : 152%)15H -
FREEFER ZZEMEERZEMG
HARERA RHEEB(BREEERAR
EAMEK)  BAMHIRBESELESN
BERAREREEMBSRECTANE
E o EEEMRE  THNZERKRZEN
AE@T“W@WT\@éﬁwtiﬁiFE
M EmAEBHERESEFEBEM A
W a4 5 -

AEEERERARSELEMNTER
g o

LEREEFEMNRSEEEMN KL
S REBBERTEE67,437,000/8 7T © £
RIE58%FE = 55.9%8K BEIR Kt 16.0%F &=
18.8% * I B4 2 B F 915 51k F
BRBRZE o
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of major subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

23. RMtB R Rl ZBRE
R-E-_=F+-_A=1+—HZEZEHN

BARHEMT :
Principal country of
operation/county
of incorporation/
establishment/kind Issued capital/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary of legal entity registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
IELEREEAR/
i/ R BRTER/
WELARER B3/ tERRER EfEx BEEER 2 ILH) TERH
Direct Indirect
B 4
LREREAEMREBRAR Mainland China United States Dollars = 100%  Production and sale of skin care and

(Shanghai Natural Beauty ("USS") 29,980,000 beauty products

Bio-Technology Company Limited)*

HERRARENHBERAR hEARE 29980000 TL([%7T)) - 0% AERHERERZAER
FRERE =B RmBRAT) Mainland China RMBB,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products

(Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian Cosmetics and aroma-therapeutic products

Company Limited)*

HEaRR=BtERERAR) hEARE AR 880000007 - 1000  HEEERXREMMERER
TREREERmBRATe Mainland China US$14,800000 = 100%  Production and sale of skin care and

(Shanghai Natural Beauty beauty products, aroma-

Fuli Cosmetics Company Limited)* therapeutic products, provision
of skin treatment, beauty and Spa
service

LEaRXERtHRERARe hEARE 14800000 T - 0% EERHERERIREMR
BRERRRMEER  £5R
KBRS
FERBILSERERAR" Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Shanghai Yongli Cosmetics Company Limited* and aroma-therapeutic products
EERBlHRmERAR" EIARE ABH100000007T - 1006  HERERXREMMERER
BAFENRERNERAF Taiwan NT$201,000,000 = 100%  Production and sale of skin care and

(Natural Beauty Bio-Technology beauty products

Company Limited)*

AAREMHERNERAF) hE £78%201,0000007C - 0% AERHERBRIAER
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. RITBLAFZRE @)
Principal country of
operation/county
of incorporation/
establishment/kind Issued capital/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary of legal entity registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
IEREREEAR/
i/ R BRTER/
WEAEERE Bx/tRERERN dRER BEEER LA TEXH
Direct Indirect
B 3
BRERERNERLA Taiwan NT$126,086450 = 100%  Investment holding
(Huei Yao Investment Company Limited)*
BRRERNBRAR B $211260864507 - 100%  RERR
WA REEARBEERN AR AR Taiwan NT$50,000000 = 100%  Provision of beauty consulting and
(Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Company Limited)* training
hABEEANBAERAERAT =) #1&%500000007C - 100%  SRAEEARRE MRS R
RERERROERAH Taiwan NT$100,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Ke Mei Yan Bio-Technology Company Limited)*
HERERRDERAR BB £74%1000000007C - 100% HESEREREMR
Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR68,609,858 100% = Investment holding
(lass B shares
MYR10,000
(lass A shares
Belern Holdings Sdn. Bhd. SRED 686098585 HEBER 100% - REER
1000055 & AR AR {3
Billion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYRT,000,000 - 100%  Wholesale of skin care and beauty
(2022:MYR) products
Billion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. SRAER 1,000,005 8 = 0% HEEEREDER
(B 25%)
Great Glamour Company Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% = Investment holding
('BVI')
Great Glamour Company Limited REEARES 50000% 7T 100% - REER
(ZEEBREE))
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

23. RB AR 2RE @)

Principal country of
operation/county
of incorporation/
establishment/kind Issued capital/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary of legal entity registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
IEREREEAR/
i/ R BRTER/
WEAEERE Bx/tRERERN dRER BEEER LA TEXH
Direct Indirect
B 3
Next Success International Limited BVI US$100 100% = Investment holding
Next Success International Limited RBEARES 100%7T 100% - REER
Fortune Investment Global Limited BV 15$50,000 100% = Investment holding
Fortune Investment Global Limited ABABRES 50000%7TC 100% - RABR
Natural Beauty Bio- Technology (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited provision of beauty treatments
BAXENHR(ER)ERAF B 1000077 - 100% HELHRRRHEEDER
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% = Investment holding
BAXHEERERLT &R 2000007 100% - REER
LEEREAENBEBRA R Mainland China 552,600,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of health
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med supplement
Company Limited)*
LERRAXENERERAR hEARE 26000007 - 100% AERHERER
FEEAEEE I mBRAA) Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Haili Cosmetics and aroma-therapeutic products
Company Limited)*
LEERAZERIHmERARN hEARE AR 100000007 - 100% HESERXRERRBHER

These subsidiaries are foreign investment enterprises with limited liability
established in the PRC.

These subsidiaries are domestic limited liability enterprises in the Mainland
China.

- The subsidiary is a Chinese-foreign joint venture established in the
Mainland China.

# Being English translated names.
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24. INVENTORIES 24. 78

2023 2022

—=E-= T F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHBxT FHET

Raw material R A4 # 61,079 67,936
Finished goods UK 39,826 53,599
100.905 121,535
Less: Allowance o B (23,291) (22,704)
77,614 98,831

Recondiliation of allowance for inventories: FERELER
2023 2022
:'EZE ="

HK$’000 HK$'000

THxT FHET

At 1 January n—HA—AH 22,704 17,123
Write-off HsH - (96)
Allowance for the year FREME 873 7,330
Exchange differences e H ZRE (286) (1,653)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 23,291 22,704
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. ES R EMEWERR

2023 2022

—=E-= —EF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FHET

Trade receivables S EIRER K 78,511 80,946
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEEERE (1,096) (5.147)
77,415 75,799

Prepayments TEfT IR 13,269 16,307
Deposits b 2,125 1,712

Other receivables E fib B IR BR FR 5,819 3,361
98,628 97,179

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 150 days to its trade
customers who are qualified for credit sales. The credit period provided
to customers can vary based on a number of factors including the
customer’s credit profile and sales promotion policy.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

AEBRTHENAGEEHEERZES
BEP30E1508 2 FHEEH - IRHEP
ZEEMAREBEZHRAR(BREEPZE
AR S AR SR T A PR AN

REZEREHY  AEEEZREERRE
NERBE) 2 FREE DTN

2023 2022

—E-= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET
Within 30 days 30H A 24,759 14,043
31days to 150 days 31HE150H 35,749 44,830
Over 150 days @150 16,907 16,926
77,415 75,799
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

26.

The carrying amounts of the Group's net trade receivables are

denominated in the following currencies:

25. B REMEWERR @)
AEMBSEWESFEETEUT
B SR EHE -

2023 2022

—E2-= =T
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET
HKS BT - 1,970
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARETARE]) 54,089 51,480
New Taiwan dollar (‘NT$”) Far(lmarl) 22,540 21,503
Ringgit Malaysia ("MYR") BREEE(HED) 786 846
77,415 75,799

CONTRACT COSTS 26. SR

2023 2022

—E2-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT FHETT
Incremental costs to obtain contracts BEE 4 E KA 238 281

Contract costs capitalised as at the end of the reporting period relate

to the incremental sales commissions paid to franchisees whose

selling activities resulted in customers entering into sale and purchase

agreements for the Group’s services which are still not transferred at the

reporting date. Contract costs are recognised as part of cost of sales in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which revenue

from the related services sales is recognised. The amount of capitalised
costs recognised in profit or loss during the year was approximately
HK$36,000 (2022: HK$46,000). There was no impairment in relation to the

costs capitalised during the year.

RIREERNE A LR AREB AN
EENILEHERSEH  ZENEE
HEEEHERNEP ATEE RS H
HEAERNREICVEERS - 648
AN FE B8 AR 75 S5 & IR A FER BB R A Y
REBRRTHERAABHEERAN—I
D FARBRFERHENEK A S
B4 536,000 7T (ZZF = 4 : 46,000
WBIT) o FRLE A B E (LR AR HY R
(ERE
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27. BANKAND CASH BALANCES

27. RITRBEERF

2023 2022
—B-=F —E -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&T FAT

Bank and cash balances RITRIRG & 166,805 168,609
Less: Time deposits with maturities of overthree  J& : A A A L —F A TEIH 2

months but less than one year TEHF R (M@ R (b))
(note (a) & (b)) (8,062) (8,017)
Cash and cash equivalent B RIS EEBY 158,743 160,592

Notes:

(@)

The Group placed time deposits with banks with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies in Taiwan, with fixed
maturities and fixed interest rate which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk; while time deposits with fixed maturities and floating
interest rate are exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The balance was denominated in NTS.
Short term time deposits were made for a maximum period of one year

(2022: one year) with fixed interest rate ranging from 1.37% to 1.525% per
annum (2022:0.995% to 1.275% per annum).

The carrying amounts of the Group's cash and cash equivalents are

GEX

(b)

REEHERFERERERBRERFR
BB RREENRzAERT KA
BRI M A RIREEMEFTE - SARE
EESQAFENERRE  MAREDH
BHRIRFEF RSB 2 ERFHR - AL
REEAZRESREMEAR -

FAEERAFT B HERTE

BHTHERNSRRERE—F (=2
P —F)  BEFFENT.37%
F1505%( B -—F  EFMENT
0.995%% 1.275%) °

AEERSIRSFEMZREENLT

denominated in the following currencies: P EMEEHE -

2023 2022
:g: = ="

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
HKS BT 7,939 1,734
RMB AR 78,100 97,908
uss ETT 10,559 2,749
NTS ek 59,816 55,897
MYR 2 2,317 2,304
EUR BT 12 S
158,743 160,592
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27.

28.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank and cash balances held by the
PRC subsidiaries denominated in RMB was amounted to approximately
HK$77,926,000 (2022: HK$97,641,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

27. RITRBEHET @
N-ZE-_=F+-A=+—H A&EH
FERAENB AT ATEUARESEZ
RIT MBS E1F477,926,0008 (=&
T4 197,641,000 7T) © 5 AR K iR
7 NS 78 8 11 R B K FEE SN PE B o 6 451
EIE EERMNETEBETE °

28. EZ R EMEFRERER

2023 2022
—E_=F —E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Trade payables B S TR 20,741 9,764

Deposits from franchisees nEEEe 24,376 24,746

Other tax payables HAth pET X IR 2,856 6,133

Accruals e & M 27,634 29,141
Construction costs payable for investment JERTR & W) 3 ) b TR AR

properties 5,008 29,018

Other payables H AT ERSK 8,100 7,729

88,715 106,531

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on the date of
receipt of goods or service consumed, is as follows:

REVWEXZRARBAYH  AKEES
FEN AR Z BRI AT A0 TS

2023 2022

—E2-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&x FET
Within 90 days 90H A 20,741 9,254
91 days to 365 days 91H £365H - 510
20,741 9,764
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 28. ESZRHMEMERR 450
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are denominated in AEBZESENERCEERENTIE
the following currencies: HEHE -
2023 2022
—E== —_F_—
HK$’000 HKS$'000
T FHET
RMB AR 7,112 5,896
NTS etk 13,504 3,733
MYR B 125 135
20,741 9,764
29. BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES 29. ERRBITAE
The analysis of the Group’s bank loans is as follows: AEBRITERSTOT :
2023 2022
—E-= —_EF_—
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FHETT
Secured bank loans BIEFIREITER 171,807 114,205
Note payable NS = 5,661
171,807 119,866
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29. BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES 29. EFRETHE @)

(Continued)
2023 2022
—E-= —E-C
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within one year —F AR 33,456 30,463
More than two years, but not more than five years B LA_ ERFLAT 3,498 6,024
36,954 36,487
Portion of bank loans that are due for repayment  —F &R EHEBZERSKRENR
after one year but contain a repayment on BREROBITERBD
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) (RrREaEsr) 134,853 83,379
171,807 119,866
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months 38 : 1218 B R 2| B fe 28
(shown under current liabilities) (RRBAEIIR) (168,309) (113,842)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 A 1% 2| BA e 1~ 508 3,498 6,024
The carrying amounts of the Group's bank loans are denominated in the REBRITERZREENL TS
following currencies: 8 :
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
RMB ARE 165,750 111,297
NTS ek 6,057 8,569
171,807 119,866
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29. BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES

(Continued)
The Group's bank loans are arranged at the following interest rates:

29. {BF

ARBITRE @)

REE 7 SRITEFIZ T IR HF S

2023 2022
—E_=F —EF-—

Bank loan at floating rate of HK$171,807,000 FEIRITER
(2022: HK$114,205,000)

L)

Borrowings of HK$171,807,000 (2022: HK$114,205,000) is arranged at
floating interest rate which was exposing the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

Note payable HK$5,661,000 in year ended 31 December 2022 was at
fixed interest rate 0.05% per annum.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's banking facilities and bank
loans totalling HK$171,807,000 (2022: HK$119,866,000) are secured by
charge over the Group’s right-of-use assets related to leasehold lands
and buildings located in the PRC, freehold land and building located
in Taiwan (note 19 and 21), and personal guarantee from a director of
certain subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has approximately HK$142,158,000
(2022: HK$239,192,000) of available undrawn banking facilities.
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€ - FENZEIE5,661,00008 T2 IRE T F
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“%ﬂé&ﬁ&' TEREHE R 807000
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

0. EHNERE

2023 2022

—=2== —E-—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FAT

Prepaid beauty treatment fees BNERERER 2,931 3,749
Sales of products EmiEE 16,708 13,061
19,639 16,810

The contract liability is the consideration received from the customers
which represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods and services to
customers that has not been completed. All the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year has been realised to revenue in the current year.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities
recognised are as follows:

Prepaid beauty treatment fees
The Group typically receives a 100% deposit before the services
commence.

Sales of products

The amounts of consideration received in advance as prepayments by
customers who are not qualified for credit sales are short term as the
respective revenue is expected to be recognised within a few days when
the goods are delivered to customers.

BMAERBEEPKEIZNKE  BXE
B ARTERETRE S EEE M RRE
ZEB - FONZMERMNARERASF
AEAMA e

LHRACNABSEBRTELZ KX
BRI T

ANEREBEER
A5 B — AR AR 7% 5 46 AT W BR100% 1%
% o

Em#EE
AEERATFEEEHEERZEPRE
AR ERENRNRKESBEIEBRE
5 RARSBARMRERRNEP
ZIREVBRATER -

TEIFER BRAREMNEARLT
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31. LEASE LIABILITIES 31. HEEE

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments

200

BRIEAELR BREEENHRRE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E;-=F —EBE-—F —ZE-= —E -
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
F&T FET FET FAET
Within one year —FK 3,737 6,282 3,428 5,566
More than one year, but not —F A BT BIBRE
exceeding two years 4,215 6,703 3,947 5714
More than two years, but not more R4 LA 1B BB A F
than five years 3,203 5614 3,069 5,280
More than five years RAFELE 4,101 7,210 4,036 7,052
15,256 25,809 14,480 23,612
Less: Future finance charges B BB EER (776) 2197) N/AFRBA NATEA
Present value of lease obligations & & FIRE 14,480 23,612
Less: Amount due for settlement & : 121 B R E| HAfE
within 12 months (shown REMRRBDEaE
under current liabilities) F7R) (3,428) (5,566)
Amount due for settlement after 121 A 1% B HA fE <t 2B
12 months 11,052 18,046

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities are denominated in

the following currencies:

A :

A B E 7 R BN TS s

2023 2022

—E_= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

T FHETT

RMB AR 2,064 5212
NTS e 11,775 17,424
MYR Hi 641 976
14,480 23,612

The average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities

ranged from 1.29% to 10.6% (2022: from 1.2% to 10.6%).
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32. DEFERRED TAX

32, EEFIE

Undistributed
Allowance Other earnings
forhadand Revaluation ~ Defined  Unrealised  short-term of PRCand
doubtful  Inventory of benefit  profitson  temporary  Intangible Taiwan Tax Lease  Rightsof
debts  provision  properties liabilities inventories differences assets entities losses liabilities useassets Total
FERER
RERA AAREH  AbER REEEL
RABRR  FEEE EMR 88 WA ERER  BPEE ADWEW  BBEE  HESE RAREE i
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HES 000 HES 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HSOW0  HS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
fin T T TR TR TR T TR TER TR TR TR
At lanuary 2022 N-B-=F-f-A 162 349 3 (] 2605 %9 (1414 (5309 7% 268 (2683 1826
Gedtcharge opaftorossfor —— ERRBERIA/
the year rote 13) (A (s 59 157 (9 () % 1210 3456 61 (11%) 119% 6891
Charge oothercomprehensive EMRARAERATR
income forthe year - - (979 - - - - 9719
Bichange diffeence EizE %) () i3 5 ] (101 W 0 (134 ) 12 (1489
131 December 202.and i Sl |
1 January 2003 St-ARZ3CE
-A-H % 4687 9374 54 1440 1840 (1849 1545 1314 (1314 13049
Crcitcharge) toprofit orbossfor ERMERRHD/
theyear rote 13 (F0e) (i 13) 549 1 1466 2 ) (144 = (767 5 69
Bxchange iference ENZE ) ] i - ] ) - B7) 00 | B1e)
At31 December 2003 i St
t=A=t-8 168 499 (767 54 164 1052 (1993 15048 517 (9 14261
TEI=FFR BRELEYNBERLA
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

32, IEERIE @)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for consolidated AT AREERE AR ek mETTH IR
statement of financial position purpose: IEFTR AR DT -
2023 2022
—E-= =

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred tax assets BELEFIREE 24,411 26,060
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE (10,149) (12111)
14,262 13,949

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$123,156,000 (2022: HK$110,514,000) available to offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$60,193,000 (2022: HK$61,699,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$62,963,000 (2022: HK$48,815,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$58,017,000 (2022: HK$38,122,000) that will expire after
5 years from the year of assessment they related to. Other tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC and overseas subsidiaries arising since 1
January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated
to be distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been
provided for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to such
profits amounting to approximately HK$2,835,000 (2022: HK$8,804,000).
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REHEEER NEBBRBHAH
T8 E518#9123,156,0008 T(Z T - —
110514ooo/%n)TFHf’HfﬁfﬁﬂiJKmﬂ
2t A E 1B 460,193,000 T(ZE =
T4 1 61,699,00058 7T) HERIE TR B E
E - AR BERFIREARETE - Bt
WEFRER T 262,963,000 (ZFE ==
F 1 4881500078 7T)  TIAE I ERIELE
HIBEEE - ARV BEEBEREFNE
AT EERTAFRIENEERY
58,017,000/ 7T (ZF = =4 : 38,122,000
VETT) o Hfh IR B 1E n] MR B4k e o

AEBETRE T B ARE KGN B A
AR NF—A—BHERFEAZRK
DIREF  AEHE2BUEEHBEE R
AAEERBEBAT MG LK
AEDIR - AEBMERREEREFZ
B A= RRE IR RE B TR B 492,835,000
HBIT(ZZT = =4 : 8804,000/87T) °
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(a)

Defined contribution plan

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement plans
which are available for eligible employees in Hong Kong, Taiwan
and the PRC.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the "HK MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for
all employees employed under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong Kong) and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the Labour Standards
Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF Scheme”). The HK
MPF Scheme and the TW MPF Scheme are defined contribution
retirement plans administered by independent trustees. Under
the HK MPF Scheme and TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% and 6%, respectively, of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (with
effect from 1 June 2014) for the HK MPF Scheme while there is no
cap to monthly income under the TW MPF Scheme. Contributions
to the plans vest immediately.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the PRC
government. As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, these
relevant subsidiaries participate in various defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The employees are entitled to retirement pension
calculated with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and
their length of service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans which are calculated based
on certain prescribed rates and the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its PRC employees. The Group has no other material
obligations for the payment of pension benefits associated with
these plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$9,035,000 (2022:
HK$10,800,000) represents contributions paid or payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

(a)

TR FFR

33. BIREFEE

E R ARG E
AEERBEANEE - 8&RF
RER G B8R B M EBRHEFTERK

AT

AEEBE R EAE S B K
BI(EBEDFE48B) BHERESR
BEREHRO(BAEMFETE)E
ENATAES R BHIMEATEST
g([BEmELTE]) - RBEA
VB BB B AE VK (B RT) sR S R il 1
AESFEI(AERESEED -
BEERECIHE R ERESE
g ARBYEAIAETE 2 EREHERK
RIRETE - IBRBEBERESFEIR
RERESIHE BEREEAS
BmEtEEL IR HEREE D RIAE
ENEE BB ASNNEY o BE
BETFHECBABHAKALRA
30,0008 L(H=E—MWE S A—H
AR - MEEREST SN E
FAWA LR o 5TEI BN 5
BEFTE -

AEBEREARERBARZEER
FRIBRFEE 2 B E R RKET
TR E - BB ARIERIET
BUERME - RETEKREREES
MEZERBEERLH 2 ERER
BKGETE - BEARWELZ RS
TRBEARBBINEAR ZHRTE @ K
FRRKRE 2 EARFE LIRS F B
AH - FEBNAEERARERKE
TEIGEKRE - MAKERIZERE
BRIRFTEIMEH 3R - R E
THRELXRREPERERE 2H
T BARETREAHE - g f
ittt 8 2 AR KERAME
B TR B FEEHRIN - AEH
BEAEMERSE -

T A=K Z BN £9,035,00008
TT(ZT = —%F : 10,800,000/ 7T) *
DAEBERBRITEF AR S E
xSt 82 fEEx -
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The
Group has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds
in the scheme to pay the benefits earned by the employees. The
Group currently contributes at 2% of the total salaries monthly as
determined and approved by the relevant government authorities.
Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits equal to two months’ salary for each year of service for
the first 15 years and one month’s salary for each year of service
following the 15 years, but not more than 45 months’ salary in
aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No other post-retirement
benefits are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the PUCM. An
actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 was carried
out by an independent actuarial firm which is a member of The
Actuarial Institute of the Republic of China.
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 33. EREFET @

(b)

Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EEEFGTE B

The plan in Taiwan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as BENGESASEAZEER

investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. % Pl E R - FIXER - &

SRR EHFRER -

Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined
by reference to the weighted average rate of long-term government bond and long-term bank
deposit rate. Overall market condition is also taken into consideration. The change of discount rate
was noted mainly because of the stable level of bank interest rate. The management of the Group
considers that the general environment of Taiwan will not be changed materially over the coming
years over which the relevant present value will be discounted. Currently the plan has a relatively
balanced investment in various financial instruments and assets.

KRERR - ERENE 28 ENRENRALSERMBFES RRBRITERF E NEFHEH X
BRETHREGE - BEMSEATHAZE - BRXEFHFEXIET - RADR
RITMENREKRT - AEEEEERR  SEBRBRENAREFETIS LR IHEA
REMBRNERES - BA - ZtEEEMEHEESReRIAREENHERE -

Interest rate risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

A= BHEMERDEIEINABIAE - A - S EE SN EBIRE WL IR 50 HH o

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate
of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

REAMR ERENaaENRENK2EFA2BENERPB KRR 2T RN RIEMTE
FHE - SE2REN TSI INMIENTERE -

Salaries risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase
the plan’s liability.

Faak TREMNFEAENRAENSLEAE2EENRRFREAE - At - sHEI28EEN

FEBIKIB I EIAE -

TEIFER BRAREMNEARLT
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(i)  The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the

(b)

33. RREFNEEF @

EEENTE (@

) ‘EETREGRERMARAZ

actuarial valuations were as follows: FERRKAT :
2023 2022
—Eg== —ZE-—
Discount rate ARIR & 1.2% 1.2%
Expected return on plan assets STEIE ZE 2 TEE B ] 1.2% 1.2%
Expected rate of salary increases TERR T 2L hntE = 2.5% 2.5%

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value
of plan assets was approximately HK$5,577,000 (2022:

HK$6,354,000).

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the

defined benefit plans are as follows:

BEMERERTEEEZT
{B#95,577,0008 (=& ==
F © 6,354,000/ 7T) °

i ERNBRRTERZEHERE
Mt M

2023 2022

—B-=F g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current service cost IR AR 7 B AR - -
Interest on obligations BEBFE 67 32
Expected return on plan assets FrEIEE TERE R (75) 31)
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(iif)

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income in (iii)

33. EREFET @
(b) EFEEAFE (B
EREMEERAERY E

respect of the defined benefit plans are as follows:

BEANEEI2EMT

2023 2022
—E-= —ZE-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit B ¥t EFEBEMNAE
liability: R
Actuarial gain arising from BT EEEZEE
remeasurement Wz 626 473
Expected return on plan assets FTEIEE 2 FEAA B 33 498
659 971

(iv)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group's obligations in

vy BEIAZRBFBIRRERZ
AR B AR M A BB A

respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: EAZESBENT :
2023 2022
=—Z:== —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FAT
Present value of funded defined benefit EHFREBEEAEFRE
obligations 4,186 5,654
Fair value of plan assets SEIEE 2 ATE (5,577) (6,354)
Net asset arising from defined EERANEREE S
benefit obligations SEERE (1,391) (700)
“TI=FF% BAEXLEYREERAT
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 33. EREFET @

(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) TEEBRIFE (&)
(v)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of (iv) BiFAZREIBAKRIBRZ
financial position arising from the Group's obligations NEBEEBENEEGEBET
in respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: EEZEBENOT - (B)
(Continued)
Level of funding at the end of the reporting period are as MR EHMAE R 2 Rt
follows: Bl -
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
Level of funding HFR LI 133.23% 112.39%
(v Movements in the present value of the defined benefit v) AEETBEAGEEREZ
obligations in the current year were as follows: 2HmT -
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 January m—H—H 5,654 6,980
Interest on obligations BEBFE 67 32
Benefits paid [=ENE R (914) (219
Actuarial loss BEER (626) (473)
Exchange difference EHER 5 (666)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 4,186 5,654

2(B Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited  Annual Report 2023
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 33. EREFET @

(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EFEEAFE (B
(vi)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current Vi) ANEFEEFEEEATFEZE
year were as follows: BT
2023 2022
—Eg== g

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At 1 January Rn—H—H 6,354 6,678
Contributions from the employer BEHK 8 3
Expected return on plan assets FrEIEE TR B3R 75 31
Actuarial gain BE W 33 498
Benefits paid =ENEER (914) (219)
Exchange difference E R ZE%8 21 637)

At 31 December Rt=ZA=t+—H 5,577 6,354
Actual return on plan assets FEIEECEREH 108 529

E=MERBAERFE R
BRENREZROMEY
BEMBART _EAAZE
BIHETT o

The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based
on historical return trends and analysts’ predictions of the
market for the assets in the next twelve months.

AEIEEZ T ERBIARR
BERBEASEREE

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of
the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each

category are as follows: BEANVEZADLAT :

2023 2022
=—Z:== —E-=

% %
% %

Deposits with financial institutions £ & BigEmNER 15.62 15.81
Short-term bills SRE L 5.07 476
Stocks IRE 11.87 1301
Bonds (EE2 7.69 6.00
Others At 59.75 60.42
100.00 100.00

TEIFER BRAREMNEARLT
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(b)

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher/(lower),
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by
HK$254,000/(increase by HK$284,000) (2022: decrease
by HK$378,000/(increase by HK$424,000)).

- If the expected salary growth increases/(decreases) by
1% (2022: 1%), the defined benefit obligation would
increase by HK$234,000/(decrease by HK$215,000)
(2022: increase by HKS$355,000/(decrease by
HK$325,000)).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis,
the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the PUCM at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating
the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

The average duration of the benefit obligation at 31
December 2023 is 7 years (2022: 7 years). The Group expects
to make a contribution of HK$8,000 (2022: HK$3,000) to the
defined benefit plan during the next financial year.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, R
The Company
PN
Number of Nominal value
shares of shares
BROEE IR A5 E {8
HK$'000
FHAT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEIE T EER
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, R-Z__F—HF—H-
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 T FE+ZA=+—H"
_Y_fi A—BXK
B+ HA=+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000
Number of Nominal value
shares of shares
ROEE R4 E &
HK$'000
FHET
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAZ
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, R-_Z__—HA—H-
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 T F+ZA=+—H"
474_¢ A—RB X
—E=F+-A=+—H 2,002,100,932 200,210

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering the

Al FFR

rAEEBBEEESKARE

AEEEREAZ BRRERAKERK
REXK UEETES
REgEeR - RERFREALR -

B R

BEAXZ

cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debts.

HEARBR AT RS EAGEE - A&E
REBIKMNRE - BITHRORERAR
MEBRITHEH TN FEHEEEE
KA -

TEIFER BRAREMNEARLT
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium, capital surplus, retained earnings and other reserves).

34. R& (@)

AEEENEHHEHBEAR L RER
BN o UL EUEBFERACARE
A8 - EHFREAEBEBRRRE R
ReSEYAE  KRABREABEER
M 2 ERAEA R D (BN ~ B (& ~ B
B REBEN M EAM ) o

2023 2022
—Z-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Debit (a) &%) 186,287 143,478
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RENRREEEYD (158,743) (160,592)
Net debt B15%5 27,544 N/A 7~ F
Equity M 575,524 597,462
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FRECRABEEAR L X 0.05 N/A TN A

(a) Debt is defined as borrowings and lease liabilities as detailed in note 29 and
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing the non-
public float through the Stock Exchange’s website and it demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year. At 31
December 2023, 25% (2022: 25%) of shares were in public hands.
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35. ZXA R ZHBERRABEREE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 28
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AT 2R RIRE
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-—8
2023 2022
—FE== —E-=

Note HK$’000 HKS'000
M FHBT FHET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARIZIEE 169,398 169,398

Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments E& KB RIE 711 809
Amounts due from subsidiaries RS NGIE S 62,208 76,146
Bank and cash balances RITRIRESHET 3,173 1,058
66,092 78,013
Current liabilities REBEE

Accruals and other payables FE AT B R T B Ath FE < AR R 2,845 2,887
Amounts due to subsidiaries ANEIRIENGIE ¢ 16,888 20,610
19,733 23,497
Net current assets REBEEFE 46,359 54516
NET ASSETS EEFE 215,757 223,914

Capital and reserves R R
Share capital N 34 200,210 200,210
Reserves ] 35(b) 15,547 23,704
TOTAL EQUITY R 215,757 223914

RZE-_NMF_A-+-_HEE=S
SHE  WHRUTREER

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 February 2024 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Mr. LIN Chia-Wei
MREXE

Dr. LEIl Chien
EfEf+
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+_-_A=+—HLFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35. ZQA R Z BB AT R HEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 28 @
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) EAQTRZHEEEE

Accumulated

Share premium losses Total
R AP % B RitER mst
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FET FET

(note 36(b)(ii))

(Ft2E36(b)(0)

At 1 January 2022 P
—H—H 35,010 (24,400) 10,610
Total comprehensive income for ~ ANFE 2 EWN AR
the year - 19,100 19,100
Dividend paid (note 17) BARE (FzE17) (6,006) - (6,006)
At 31 December 2022 and RZZTZZF+=H
1 January 2023 =+—HkK
—E-=4F
—H—H 29,004 (5,300) 23,704
Total comprehensive income for ~ ANEFE 2K EEE
the year - (8,157) (8,157)
Dividend paid (note 17) AR B (B EE17) - - -
At 31 December 2023 RZT_=F
+=A=+—-H 29,004 (13,457) 15,547
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36. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

The Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein are
presented in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Capital surplus
The capital surplus represents the difference between the
consideration paid and the relevant share of the carrying
value of the subsidiaries’ net assets acquired upon the
reorganisation of the Group in year 2002.

(i)  Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(iii) ~ Statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC companies with foreign investment are required
to transfer a certain percentage of its profit after tax, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations (the
net profit under the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles (the “PRC GAAP")), to the general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund. Distribution of these reserves
shall be made in accordance with the Article of Association
and approved by the board of directors each year. Other PRC
companies are required to transfer a certain percentage of
their net profit under the PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their
paid-in capital.

(a)

(b)

TR FFR

36. f#fE

&M
AEEZHBSEIEEPINAS
Bz REEMEEKER A
RiramBEBRET

EEEERE®

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BB
BEARBBECNRELREN
—EE_FAKEEAMK
BHEAREREEEFEL
EH e

1D E

Bt BT ERESREE
ZBRBITIAMESE 2
B -REFSHEARE
ARABRMEERCESA
HORTARRBBRE - R
BEEZEDIRKRESHHE K
NRIABENEBERA R
EBEPR B

B

R A5 A B K B 5 A 0 K 3R
Bl - PEINGIRE R RERK
RiEF B =R FIE E 2B
Beaf(PBEAResRA
(THFEAREFRAUNDIET
WAETE D LERE R
REESCRCERRES -
DIkZEHEAEREARA
BMERMERZREET I
KEZSTGFIE - HMF
BRAREKAEFEARES
REBTANETE DL
BELTRBFEEERS  H
EREEBREINTHAREAD
50%4LE °

BAZRENMEAERDA
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36. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory reserve (Continued)

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan
companies shall set aside 10% of their statutory net income
each year for the legal reserve, until the reserve balance has
reached the paid-in share capital amount.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used
for purposes other than those for which they were created
and are not distributable as cash dividends.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 4(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
transfer of land and buildings to investment property in note
4(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share-based payments scheme
Share Award Schemes 2022
Refer to announcement dated on 25 May 2022, the Company has
adopted two share award schemes, namely Scheme | and Scheme
Il. Scheme | is for Eligible Participants who are connected persons of
the Company, while Scheme Il is for Eligible Participants who are non-

connected persons of the Company.
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments scheme (Continued)

Purpose of the Share Award Scheme 2022

The purpose and objective of Scheme | are: (i) to recognise the
contributions by certain Eligible Participants and to closely align
executive interests with the growth and financial achievements of the
Group; and (i) to provide a performance-driven long-term incentive
award to motivate and retain key senior management. The purpose and
objective of Scheme Il are: (i) to recognise the contributions by certain
Eligible Participants and to provide them with incentives in order to retain
them for the continual operation and development of the Group; and (ii)
to attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Scheme | is for Eligible Participants who are connected persons of the
Company. Eligible Participants of Scheme | include: (i) any directors and
employees of the Group (including without limitation any Directors, chief
executives and the directors of the Subsidiaries); (i) any directors and
employees of the holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated
companies of the Company; (iii) any person who provide services to the
Group on a continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and usual course
of business which are material to the long-term growth of the Group
as determined by the Remuneration Committee; and/or (iv) such other
persons permitted by the Listing Rules to be participants of the Scheme.
Scheme Il is for Eligible Participants who are non-connected persons of
the Company. Eligible Participants of Scheme Il include: (i) any employees
of the Group; (i) any directors and employees of the holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or associated companies of the Company; (iii) any
person who provide services to the Group on a continuing or recurring
basis in its ordinary and usual course of business which are material to
the long-term growth of the Group as determined by the Remuneration
Committee; and/or (iv) such other persons permitted by the Listing Rules
to be participants of the Scheme, excluding chief executive officers,
directors or employees of any member of the Group who are connected
persons of the Company.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board
pursuant to the Share Award Schemes Rules, each of the Share Award
Schemes shall be valid and effective for a term of ten (10) years
commencing on the Adoption Date.

37. LR AERSR @
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments scheme (Continued)
Total number of shares available for Share Award Scheme 2022

The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded Shares by
allotment and issuance of new Shares which will result in (i) the
aggregate number of the Shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Schemes and the Share Option Scheme exceeding ten per cent
(10%) of the relevant class of shares of the Company from time to time;
and (i) the aggregate number of new Shares awarded by the Board
under the Scheme exceeding three per cent (3%) of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date. If required by the
Listing Rules, the Board shall also set such scheme mandate sublimit for
such category of Eligible Participants which shall be approved by the
Remuneration Committee.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless otherwise permitted by the applicable Listing Rules and approved
in accordance with its applicable requirements under the Listing Rules,
the maximum number of new Shares which may be awarded to a
Selected Participant under the respective Share Award Schemes shall not,
in aggregate with any Awarded Shares issued and to be issued to such
relevant Selected Participant(s) and any other new Shares issued or to be
issued to such relevant Selected Participant(s), exceed one per cent (1%)
of the relevant class of shares of the Company in issue in any 12-month
period (or such other percentage as may be permitted under the Listing
Rules).

Vesting Period of awards granted under the Share Award Scheme
2022

The Awarded Shares held by the Trustee(s) on behalf of the Selected
Participant shall vest in accordance with the Vesting Schedule, which
shall comprise a minimum period of twelve (12) months or such shorter
vesting period as may be determined by the Remuneration Committee
or as may be permitted under the Listing Rules.
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 37. AR BEBRNRK @

Equity-settled share-based payments scheme (Continued) URAEEUARGAER SRS
(&)

Termination ik

The Share Award Schemes shall terminate on the earlier of: (i) the IR ERENET B AS A A TR FELKLE - (i

10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (i) such date of early KMBHMEHEFEAE &) i%A

termination as determined by the Board by a resolution of the Board. BREFEREETHRAKILERE -

No share awards have been granted since the adoption of the Share BRMN - = —FRREEFTEIE - B

Award Scheme 2022 and there are no outstanding share awards at the BEREBERG - MAARFERIFE S

end of the year. RATIE 2 BEEARAD ©

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. e RE&RERM T

CASH FLOWS
(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (a) AMETHELZEE/HE
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRETASEREZDELEZE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BB (RERe IR E
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for Ef)) cREFELECAEAES
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the MECRIARKASREBRNAE
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from EFeReneaRANEARER
financing activities. S cRenECAE -
Derecognition Interest Rent
1January  Additions of lease expenses  Concession lease  Exchange 31December
2023 of new leases liabilities  Cash flows (note 12) (note9)  modification difference 2023
tEIzE RIERR fExt  AeWE s 3
-R-A  REFEE  HERE  BeRE  (Win) (Wo)  MEBT  EXEE t-A=1-R
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000
TEn T TEn T Tn T Thn T TR
Borrowings (notes 29) () 119,866 > = 47,325 7019 > = (2,403) 171,807
Leaseliables note31)  EEREME) 23,612 %] (1,593) (5,809) 111 = (3,566) (199) 14,480

143478 923 (1,59) 41,516 8,131 - (3,566) (2,602) 186,287
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

38. MEBERERME @

(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (a) RMETBELZ2EEHER (B
activities (Continued)
Derecognition Interest Rent
1January — Additions of of lease Cash expenses  Concession Exchange 31 December
2022 new leases liabilities flows (note 12) (note 9) difference 2022
ZEoCF
St 2 LR ez ez -4
-B-B FENHE  MERE  HeRE (RtzE12) (9 EXEE  =t-H
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
AL TEn TAL AL Thr AL AL T
Borowings (notes29) {2 (3H9) 97283 = = 28106 3054 = (8577 119866
Leaseliabiites (note31) B BB 31791 7197 (5,234 (8346) 1289 (49) (2656) 3612
129074 7197 (5.234) 19,760 4343 429 (11.33) 143478
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEZBEERHLALE

Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases comprise

HENARSRERZSBER

the following: A& IR -
2023 2022
—E-=F —E- 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within operating cash flows FFARERERE 2,993 4,165
Within financing cash flows FARERERE 4,697 7,057
7,690 11,222
These amounts relate to the following: ZECRHENTSIEER
2023 2022
—E-= —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Lease rental paid BEREERS 7,690 11,222
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39.

40.

41.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. HAREE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant RZEZ=F+=ZHA=+—H8 ' &x5H
contingent liabilities (2022: Nil). TEARNENKABE(ZZE =
=) o
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EREE
Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period RBREHREEHEINERKRELEZ
but not yet incurred are as follows: BAREERAT :
2023 2022
=—Z2== —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Property, plant and equipment W - BB NEE 14,152 85,672
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 4. KREMHELZH
The Group as lessee EEBEREABEA

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As at 31
December 2023, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in
note 21.

As at 31 December 2023, outstanding lease commitments relating to
leasing of office under short-term leases is approximately HK$251,000
(2022: HK$292,000).

The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to investment properties and an office building
owned by the Group with lease terms of one to five years, with an option
to renew the lease after the date at which time all terms are negotiated.
All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the vent
that the lessee exercises its options to renew. The lessee does not have
an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

AEBTEHRPARTLRPHEE - B
—“E-=F+-A=+—H EHHEE
HEEMEFNERECEHEEIE 2
RHFEAARE -

R-—E-_=%F+-_RA=+—H &H
EHEAEET 2 HATHEZRER
FEAEL251,0008T(ZFE ==
292,000/ 7T) °

REBERHEA
AEEFMEEERENENTFERR
ZREHEHERAR—EZRHF  BrEE
REFER —VGREEE - AL
LHEANYBEEABEATERRRD
LERRIGTETEENGR - BEER
B ATHALEBEMEAEEE -

TEIFER BRAREMNEARLT
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

41, BREHEZH @)

AEBEREBEA (8

MEZ &ERKEEMNKET

2023 2022

—E-= —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within the first year —FR 2,688 1,721
In the second year F_F 2,211 288
In the third year F= 1,396 275
In the fourth year FPUF 1,071 261
In the fifth year FRF 427 45
Total Ay 7,793 2,590

The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss: TREJINEEERCEE

2023 2022

—E-= —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Lease income on operating leases KEHE 2 HERA 2,781 2,630
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42, EBALTRS
(a) In addition to those related party transactions and balances (a) BREREMEmEREMELFTEE

(b)

disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had entered into the following transactions and balances

MZERBA TR P REHRIN  F
AAKEEREATETZRS

with its related parties during the year. RAEERIAT o
Nature of
Name of related parties Relationship transactions 2023 2022
RS B8 & RXHME =Bz T
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
RARBIRAR D B R A A Shareholder Sales of goods 108 1,692
(Eastern Media International
Corporation (“EMIC")
RARBER A D B R A A S EmiHE
(RARERR D)
RARIERIER R BB A E  Subsidiary of EMIC Advertising expenses (413) 1,589
(ET New Media Holding Co.,, Ltd.
("ET New Media"))
RARFHEBIZERRNDARLAR RREBEAMNEAR RBEERAX
(RERFIERB )
Amount due to a related party (b) FE—{uBEAEES IR
Name of connected parties Relationship 2023 2022
BES 2 B —ECo=F —FE-=
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT
ET New Media Subsidiary of EMIC (241) (493)
RERFNIERE REREIRR < Fi B A A

The amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest free and
with normal credit term of 120 days upon receipt of invoice.
1208 °

e — (L RaRE T R R EIER - &
BERUEERE  —REEHA

TEIFER BRAREMNEARLT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+-_A=1t—HILFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 42. EBALTRS @)

(c) The compensation to the Group’s key management personnel, (c) AEEXZEEEBASZHRMN(BEE
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and certain IR TARRBDEZRE T &
of the highest paid employees, is disclosed in note 16 to the 1B B 2 FIB) R ERE B 75 3R I &
consolidated financial statements. T63% 5 ©
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EERHMFEERABRFALZ
management during the year was as follows: e -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHE T FAT

Short-term benefits SEEEER] 6,987 7,599

Post-employment benefits & BBt R E A 28 28

7,015 7,627
Save as otherwise disclosed in the Directors’ Report, there are no BREFEMEEITREEN B
other related party transactions constitute “connected transaction” BLEMRAUETUAT - HEEM
or “continuing connected transaction” of the Group under Chapter A TR B ANE E 2 FEE

14A of the Listing Rules. RIS FEBER S
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